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2 Bank of Scotland pic Annuat Report and Accounts 2008

Introduction

Bank of Scotland plc (BoS pic) is the banking subsidiary of

the HBOS Group. The BoS plc 2008 Results contained in this
report cover the results of the BaS plc Group (the Group) for
the year ended 31 December 2008, Unless otherwise stated,
the analysis throughout this document compares the year to 31
December 2008 with the year to 31 Decembar 2007,

Background

The continuing global dislocation in financial markets In 2008
has resulted in exceptional instability and volatility, leading to
falling market, investor and customer confidence. This has

had a profound effect on the banking sector generally and on
HBOS specifically. Since the summer of 2007, it had become
increasingly difficuit for HBOS to raise funds in wholesale
markets, Pressures on the bariking and financial services
sectors were evident through increases in the cost of insurance
against bank defaults, deterorating economic conditions,
increased concerns about credit risk and sustained tight
canditions in wholesale money markets, despite measures
taken by central banks to increase liquidity. Tha board of
HMBOS sought to restore confidence and stability through an
agreement to be acqguired by Lloyds TSB, as announced on 18
September 2008,

However turbuence in the markets continued, fuelled by
concems about credit risk and worsening economic conditions.
Measures by national authorities and central banks failec to
stemn this turbulence and restore inter-bank confidence. The UK
Government decided that it would be appropriate for the UK
banking sector to increase its level of capitalisation. This led to
the UK Government announcing, on 8 October 2008, specific
and comprehensive measures 10 ensure the stability of the

UK financial system. This included a significant recapitalisgtion
of the UK banking sector together with the introduction of

a guarantee by HM Treasury in respect of future short and
medium terms debt issu:ance. On 13 October 2008, the terms
of the acquisition by Lioyds TSB were amended and, as part

of the UK Government’s ¢co-ordinated package of measures,
HBOS announced a Placing and Open Offer to raise £11.5bn of
new capital (consisting of £8.5bn in ordinary shares and £3.0bn
in preference shares). Tne capital ralsing, underwritten by the
UK Government, was made availabie to HBOS on condition
that the acquisition by Lloyds TSB completed. On 16 January
2008, the acquisition of HBOS by Lloyds TSB completed

and the name of the combined group was changed to Lioyds
Banking Group plc (LBG).

Basis of Presentation

In order to provide a clearer representation of the Group's
underlying business performance the Group presents its results
on a basis referred to as ‘underlying” which tncorporates the
following adjustments:

- Exchuding regulatory provisions, the loss on sale of BankWest
and St. Andrews; the impact of the change in corporation tax
rates and goodwill impairment;

- Qperating lease depraciation and impairment on investment
securities are netted against income:; and

- Share of (losses)/profits of associates and jointly controlled
entities are included within underlying non-interest incomea.

A reconciliaticn of underlying {loss)/profit before tax to the
statutory profit before tax is shown on page 3.

During 2008, certain businesses wera transferred between the
Retail, Corporate and Treasury divisions, The 2008 Preliminary
Resuits are reported in line with this new structure and the 2007
divisional comparatives have been restated. There is no impact
on the 2007 Group Consolidated Balance Sheet and Income
Statement previously published.

Prospects

The prospeacts for the Graup sheuld now be considered in the
context of the combined LBG and refergnce should be made to
the LBG Annual Report and Accounts for further information.

The UK banking sactor is expected to see continued prassure
on eamings from the engaing dislocation in financial markets
and the deteriorating global economic environment, The
continuing dislocation in global financial markets is expected

to perpetuate the ongoing scarcity of wholesale funding for

the banking sector leading to higher funding costs. Valuation

for the sector's debt securities and other structured products
are expected to continue to come under pressure as the
economic slowdown impacts on asset values generally. The
reduced supply, and increased cost, of gredit in the global
economy is putting further strain on consumers, small and
madium enterprises (SMEs) and large corporate businesses
and ig a significart factor in driving the deteriorating economic
conditions. Rising UK unemployment is expected to result in
higher UK sector impairment losses for mortgage and consumer
lending. This is in addition {o higher impalrment losses expected
from property based lending as the reduced availability of credit
continues to push residential and commercial property prices
lower.

" Key Performance Indicators )
2008 2007
Statutory {loss)/profit before tax (€m) {10,635} 4,962
Undertying (loss)/profit before tax {(£m) (9,448) 5,084
Core Tier 1 capital ratio 4.7% 6.4%M
Tier 1 capital ratia 5.3% 70%MM
Core Tier 1 capitall ratioc 7.3%@
Tier 1 capital ratio 7.9%"
. o

{1} On 1 Jaruary 2008, BoS Group implemented Sasel I rutes for capital
adequacy and the capilal ratios shown are therefore on a Basel |l basis.

12} Inciudes the down-streaming from HBOS plc to BoS pic of the
net proceeds of £8.40n of ordinary shares from the UK Gevernment's
recapitalisation. This was approved by the hoard on 26 February 2009,



Year Year
ended endedc
31,12.2008 31.12.2007
Income Statement Em £m
Underlying net intarest income 8,283 . 7628
Undertying non-interest income {3,569) 3,796
Underlying net operating income 4,724 11,422
Underlying opérating expenses {4,417) {4,413)
Underlying operating profit
hefore provisions 307 7,009
Impairment losses on loans and agvances {9,857) (2.012)
Non-operating income 102 87
Underlying {loss)/profit before tax {9,448) 5,084
Adjusted for:
Regulatory provisions charge {200} {122)
Goodwill impairment (142}
Loss on salg of BankWast and
St. Andrews (845)
Impact of the 2008 change in
corporation tax rate on the
value of leasing assets (10)
L(Loss)lproﬁt before tax - statutory {10,635) 4,952J

Overview of Results

The Group aperated in difficult markst conditions during 2008.
The results were affected by a significant deterioration in

credit quality, particularly in the second half of 2008 as the UK
econamy deteriorated and residential and commearcial property
prices declined. They were alsc affected by the continuing
dislocation in financial markets which led to further sharp falls
in the values of our Treasury debt securities portfolio, Statutory
iogs bafore tax was £10,635m {2007 profit before tax of
£4,962m).

The income statement commentary that follows is presented
on an underlying basis (see 'Basis of Presentation’ on page 2},
Underlying loss before tax for the year to 31 December 2008
was £9.448m (2007 profit of £5,084m).

Net interest income

Underlying net interest income increased to £8,293m (2007
£7.626m), mainky due to growth in Retail, which benefited from
improved margins, and to growth in International and Corporate
reflecting increased advances.

Non-interest Income

Underlying non-irterest income decreased to negative £3,569m
(2007 income of £3,796m}. Excluding the negative £4,044m
{2007 negative £227m) impact of Markat Dislocation, underlying
non-interest income decraased to £475m (2007 £4,023m). The
significant decline is due to Corporate and reflects significant
impairment iosses on property related invastments made by

the Joint Venture business and private equity fund invesiments
made by the Integrated Finance busingss, together with a
material decline in the trading performance generated by joinily
controtied entities, particularty in the housebuilding and property
sectors,
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Financial Review

Operating Expenses

Underlying operating expenses were broadly stable at £4,417m
{2007 £4,413m). The slight increass includes additional costs
arising from planned investments in International, partially
offset by reduced staff costs in Corporate, benefits from cost
reduction initiatives in Retait and jower bonus costs across the
Group.

Credit Quality

Impairment losses on loans and advances were £9,857m
{2007 £2,012m). While increases were seen in al three banking
divisions. the most significant increase was in Corporate. This
increase reflects the worsening economic conditions, which
specifically dateriorated in the last quarter of 2008, The higher
impairmant losses in Corporate were also the result of applying
a provisioning mathodelogy more consistent with that used by
Lloyds TSB. In Retail, the increase in impairment losses mainly
related to secured lending as the ditficult econemic conditions
resulted in higher mortgage arrears, particularly in the specialist
book. This, togethsr with a materiai decline in house prices,
resulted in increased provisioning requirerents. Similar trends
to the UK wera evident in our Internationa!l division, reflsciing the
detericrating economies.

tems excluded from underlying (loss)/profit before tax
Regulatory Provisions charge - The regulatory provisions charge
of £200m is in respect of the Financial Services Compensation
Scheme (FSCS) relating to HBOS's share of expensas, primarily
the interest payab'a on the loan taken out by FSCS to pay
compensation to depositors. In 2007 the charge relates to ex
gratia refunds of current account service fees, together with the
associated administration costs.

Loss on sale of BankWest and St. Andrews - On 12 December
2008, BankWest and St. Andrew's Australia were soid to
Commonwealth Bank of Australia for & fotal consideration of
A$2.4bn. The sale generated a loss of £845m, including the
write oft of £240m of goodwill

Goodwili impairment - Goodwil impairment principalty
comprises £72m in respect of the full write down of goodwil
held in respect of the acquisition of the JOC business banking
division in reland and £50m being the write down of goodwill
relating to a specialist area of the UK credit card business ©© a
recoverable amount of £20m.

Balance Sheet Analysis

tLoans and acdvances to custorners wera £473.0bn (2007
£460.3bn). On a like-for-like basis, excluding BankWest and
St. Andrews which were sold in December 2008, loans and
advances to customers increased by 8% primarily reflecting
growth in Corporate resulting from growth in the first half of
2008 and by foreign currency movemeants.

Customer deposits decreased to £262.2bn (2007 £272.7bn)
reflecting net outflows in September and October, pariially offset
by the increased use of repos in Treasury. Deposit flows have
improved following the announcement of the LBG acquisition.
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Financial Review

continued

Taxation

The tax credit for the year was £2,448m (2007 tax charge of
£1,318m). The 2007 tax charge of £1,318m includes a credit

of £76m in respect of the change in the rate of UK corperation
tax. Excluding these and other itarms stripped out of underlying
{loss)/profit (fe, regulatary provision s, loss on sale of BankWest
and St. Andrews, and goodwill impainment) results in an
effective tax rate of 28% (2007 25%).

Liquidity and Funding

Following speculation on HBOS's future in mid-September, the
HBOS Group suffered deposit cutflows, further increasing the
HBOS Group's reliance on whalesale funding markets. The
majarity of these deposit cutflows were non-bank financial
institutions and large corporates, rather than personal account
customers. In recent months this position has stabilised with
net inflows evident following the announcement cf the proposed
transaction with Lloyds TSB. Further information on the HBOS
Group's funding is included in the Risk Management Report on

Segmental Analysis

page 24.

A review of the financial and operating performance of the divisions is included on pages € to 10. The following table summarises the

divisional results for the Group.

e Year Yaa?
Inter- Other ended ended

Income Statement Retall Corporate nattonal Treasury Activities'™ 31,12,2008 31.12.2007
Year ended 31 December 2008 £m £m m £m £m £m £m
Underlying nat interest ingome™ 4,242 2,208 1,477 27o% 6 8,293 7626
Underlying non-interest incomet 1,283 (1,475) 230 {3,764)" 177 {3,569)" 3,796
Underlying net cperating income'" 5,505 823 1,707 {3.494) 183 4,724 11,4220
Underlying operating expenses (2,011) (939) (745) (170) {552) (4,417) (4,413)
Underlying operating profit/{loss)
before provisions!t 3,494 (1186) 962 (3,664)" (369) 3071 70090
Impairment losses on ioans and advances {2.230) (8.669) (958) {9,857) 2,012
Underlying operating profit/(loss}v 1,264 {6,785) 4 (3.664)" {369) {9,550) 4,997
Non-operating income 102 102 87
Underlying profit/{loss) before tax 1,366 {6,789) 4 (3,664)0 {369) (9,448) 5,084
Year ended 31 Dacember 20074

\Underlying profit/{loss) befors tax 2,139 2460 630 201 {348) 5.08fU

{1} Including £(3.948)m (2007 £(227)m) impact of Market Dislocation in Treasury, comprising £96m in net interast Income and £(4,044)m (2007 £(227)m} in underlying

non-interest income.

(2) Retail, Corporate and Treasury have been restated 1o reflect ihe divisional rearganisation,

(3} Other Activities comblne the activities of the Insurance & Investrment and Greup Items divisions of the HBOS Group which are not individually material ic the Group.
HBOS Group's Insurance & Investment operations are primarily transacted in entities oulside the Group. with operations within the Group lirmited to sales activities in
the banking network. Group Items carrias out the head office and central activities of the Group,



Regulatory Capital

On 1 January 2008 BoS Group implemented the Basel Il rules
for capital adequacy and the Gapital ratios below are tharefore
shown on a Basel | basis only.

The Tier 1 capital ratio at 31 December 2008 is 5.3% (1 January
2008 7.0%) and the Core Tier 1 ratic is 4.7% (1 January 2008
6.4%). including the net capitat injection of £8.4bn from HBOS
plc in February 2003 from the Government recapitalisation, the

Tier 1 Capitai ratio would be 7.8% and the Core Tier 1 ratio 7.3%

at 31 December 2008.

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs) .
RWAs increased by 6% to £326.7bn {1 January 2008 £307.5tin)
driven by the following factors.

- Retall RWAs increased by 10% due to economilc conditions
increasing average risk weights. :

- Corporate RWAS increased by 5% initially due to Loans &
Advancas growth in the first Guarter of the year. Corporate
asset growth subsequently slowed, with the RWAs reducing
in the second half of the year as a result of asset reduction
and impairment provisions cffsetting the Impact of currency
retranslations and deteriorating ecenomic conditions.
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- In Internationat RWAs decreased by 5% with the impact of
the sale of BankWest reducing RWAs, offset by currency
retransiations.

- In Treasury & Asset Management, RWA growth was 48%
primarily due to increased tiquidity holdings and increase
in average risk weights due to rating downgrades on assst
portolios.

Tier 1 Capital

Tier 1 capital decreased by £4.2bn during the year reflecting

the loss attributable to shareholders and the payment of the
2007 final dividend in May 2008, These reductions were partially
offsat by the issua of £5.5bn of ordinary share capital in the year.
Tier 1 capital was strengthened in February 2002 as a rasult

of the down-streaming from HBOS plc to BoS plc of the net
proceeds of £8.4bn ordinary shares from the UK Government
sponsored recapitalisation of HBOS ple.

Tier 2 capital

The increase in Tier 2 capital during the year is due 1o
subordinated debt issues totaling £3bn. At 31 Dacember 2008
thera was a regulatory restriction on the vaiue of Lower Tier 2
capital however including the capital injection from HBOS plc
the full benafit of Lower Tier 2 Is recognised.

d As at As a1 As Bl )
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 01.01.2008
{including capltal
injection)*

Capital Structure Basetll £m £m £m
Risk Weighted Assets 328,703 326,703 307,482
Capital Resources
Core Tier 1 26,012 17,661 22,164
Perpetual non-cumulative preterence shares 1,200 1,200 1,200
Innovative Tier 1 698 698 698
Deductions from Tier1 {2,231} {2,231) (2,570}
Total Tier ¥ Capital 26,679 17,328 21,492
Upper Tier 2 7,005 7,005 4,033
Lower Tier 2 9,33% 9,094 9,695
Deductions from Tier 2 {861} (861) ) {960}
Total Tier 2 Capital 15,483 15,238 12,768
Total supervisory deductions {919} {918) {734)
Total Capital Resources 40,243 31,647 33,526
Core Tier 1 ratio (%} 7.3% 4.7% 6.4%
Tier 1 capital ratio (%) 7.9% 5.3% 7.0%

LTotaI capital ratio (%) 12.3% 9.7% 10.92/0/

* Inciudes the down-streaming fram HBCS pic to BeS ple of the net proceeds of £8.4bn of ardinary shares from the UK Governmant's recapitalisation. This was
approved by the board on 26 February 2009. There is no impact on Risk Weighted Assets.
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Retail

( Year Yea;\
ended anded
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
(restated)
Income Statement em £m
Net interest income 4,242 4113
Underlying non-interest income 1,263 1,239
Underlying net operating income 5,505 5,352
Underlying operating expenses {2,011) (2,023}
Underlying operating profit
before provisions 3,494 3,329
Impairment losses on lcans and advances {2,230} (1,277)
Underlying operating profit 1,264 2,052
Non-operating income 102 a7
Underlying profit before tax 1,366 2139
T | (!
&ost.|ncome ratio 36.5% 37.8% )

Financiat Performance

Underlying profit before tax in Retail decreased to £1,366m
(2007 £2,139m) as a result of increased impairment losses on
loans and advances.

Totel net operating income increased o £5,505m (2007
£5,352m). Net interest income was the main driver, increasing to
£4,242m (2007 £4,113m). Nat interest margin increased despita
the cost of both wholasale and retail funding increasing as a
conseqguence of the dislocation in financial markets and a more
competitive retail savings market. The margin improvemeant
mainly reflacts the beneficial impact of higher mortgage
acquisition and retention spreads.

Underlying operating expenses decreased to £2,011m {2007
£2,023m) and reflect the continuad benafit from cost reduction
initiatives in prior years togather with further cost reduction
measures taken during 2008.

Impairment losses increased to £2,230m (2007 £1,277m).
Secured impairment iosses were £1,125m {2007 £28m) with the
charge for unsecured lending at £1,105m (2007 £1,249m}.

Operational Performance

Mortgages

Given the slowing market and the increased cost of borrowing,
price and criteria changes have been made to focus asset
growth selactively, both to manage the overall risk profile

and improve risk adjusted returns on capital. As a result, the
proportion of high loan to value (LTV) business has been
reduced, delivering new business LTV of 67% for the full year
(2007 65%), against a backdrop where equity far bath home
purchasers and remortgage customers has been eroded by
negative house price inflation. Gross lending for 2008 was
£50bn (2007 £73bn}, representing a market share of 20% (2007
20%). Principal repaid was £47bn {2007 £58bn}, representing
amarket share of 22% (2007 23%). As a consequence, net
lending was £3bn (2007 £15bn), representing a $% (2007 15%)
market share.

Unsecured iending

in the current economic environment the cautious approach to
unsecured lending continues with the acquisition strategy being
to target the existing custorner hase with an appropriate and
increased focus on credit risk relative 1o the current economic
conditions and proactively tighten credit availability to existing
credit card customars, '

Savings and Banking

2008 has been characterised by far greater volatility of flows.
Despite thase difficult market conditions, Bank of Scatland
retains its market ieading position of Household Sector Liguid
assets with a market share of 13.2% (2007 15.6%) and this
position, combined with the brand and distribution strength
togsther with innovative products, provides an excellent platform
from which to attract future inflows.

The competitiveness of the range of current accounts has
continued o drive the sales momentum. New bank accounts
acquired totalled 960,000 {2007 one million) and of these 75%
(2007 75%) were full facility current accounts.



(" Year Year
ehded snded

31.12.2008 3132.2007

{restated)

lncome Statement £m £m

Undertying net interest income 2,298 2,272

Underlying nan-interest income {1,475) 1,80&

Underlying net operating income 823 4,077

Underlying operating expenses {939) (098)

Underlying operating (loss)/profit
befare provisions (116} 3,079
Impairment losses on loans and advanges {6,669) (B19)

Underlying (loss)/profit before tax {6,785) 2,480

kCost:income ratio 114.1% 24.5‘}5

Financial Performance

A significant deterioration in corporate cradit conditions,
particularly in the second half of 2008, led to very substantial
impairment losses of £6,669m (2007 £619m), primarity as a
result of exposure to property-related sectors. Underlying loss
before tax was £6,785m (2007 £2,460m profit).

Underlying net interest incoma increased to £2,298m {2007
£2,272m) due 1o growth in the loan book. This was offset by
jower margins reflecting slowing of back book churn, which has
impacted the timing of fee recogniticn, and increased cost of
deposits and higher wholesale funding costs.

Underlying non-interest income decreased to a loss of £1.475m
(2007 £1.805m profit). Pronounced fails in estimated vaiues of
property and other investments resulted in substantial losses
from the investment portfolio, primarily in the private equity and
joint ventures businesses.

Underlying operating expenses decreased to £838m
{2007 £998m) reflecting lower levels of performance based
remuneration and lower headcount.
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Corporate

The level of impairment losses experienced, especially in the
st quarter, was principally a reflection of the acceleration in
the deterioration in the economy and as a result of applying

2 provisicning methodelogy more consistent with that used

hy Lloyds TSB. The shape of the Corporate book, and in
particular its exposure to housebuilders, risk capital {loan stock,
preference shares and ordinary shares; and large single cradit
exposures, exacerbated the impact.

Operational Performance

In Real Estate, as UK property values have fallen, increases
in advances has been restricted to a smalf number of existing
customers drawing down existing commitrments.

In Commercial the focus was on existing lending customers and
new, primarily deposit led, full banking relationships.

in Asset Solutions the vehicle finance businesses have been
materially impacted in 2008 by residual value and impairment
losses on assets.

Specialisad Industry Finance {(SIF) businesses performed wellin
2008 in a difficult market environment.

The Joint Ventures business has seen an extremely challenging
2006 across ail sectors in the UK, with housebuilding suffering
from faling volume sales and the negative impact on land
values. Commarcial property has also been adversely impacted
by the rapid deterioration in credit markets and the underlying
economy significantly reducing values.

integrated, Structured & Acquisition Finanee has been materially
impacted by the reduced deal volumes and faliing asset vaiues
experionced across the private equity sector in the UK ana
continental Europe. The drawn L.BO portfolio debt totalled
£6.7hn (2007 £6.0bn) with undrawn facilities totalling £1.3bn
{2007 £1.3bn}.
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International

4 Year ‘:’tear‘1
ended ended
31.12,2008 31.12.2007
income Statement £m £m
Net interest income 1,477 1,105
Underlying non-interest income 230 294
Underlying net operating income 1,707 1,399
Underlying operating expenses {745} {653)
Underlying operating profit
before provisions 962 746
Impairment losses on loans and advances {958) (116)
Underlying profit before tax 4 630
| Costiincome ratio 43.6% 46.7% )

Financial Performance

Underlying profit before tax was £4m (2007 £630m} reflecting
an increase in impairment losses, as a result of the deterlorating
sconomic environment. Operating profit before provisions
increased to £962m (2007 £746m), reflecting strong income
growth across the division. The income statement includes
2008 results for the BankWest and St. Andrews businesses up
until their disposal on 18 December 2008 to Commonwealth
Bank of Australia (CBA), and the full year resuits for all other
HBOS Australia businesses.

Operating Income and Margins

Underlying net operating income increased te £1,707m (2007
£1,399m). Net interest income increased to £1,477m (2007
£1,1058m) driven by growth in lending balances, moderated by a
decline in margin. The margin decline was driven by Ireland
where higher funding costs, slower churn in the back book
impacting the timing of fee recognition and a changing asset
mix resulted in a lowear margin. Whilst significant price increases
have baen infroduced on new lending across the International
banking businesses, these have not vet fully materialised in the
overall margin.

QOperating Expenses

Underlying cperating expenses increased to £745m (2007
£653m). This increase was primarily due to investment in
Australia in physical distribution, new products, brand
recognition, customer facing staff and back office infrastructure
in BankWest and St. Andrews prior to thelr sale to CBA and in
Europe and North America (ENA) due to continued investment
in the US infrastructure, establishment of the new corporate
business in Canada and a major strategic invastment designed
to increase the deposit taking capability in Europe.

Credit Quality and Provisions

Impairment losses increased from £116m in 2007 to £958m in
2008. The extremely challenging economic and market
conditions {ed to rising arrears and falling asset vaiues. In
Eurcpe and North America deteriorating econcmic conditions
across key markets saw impairment losses increase primarily
reflecting two credit exposures in the US.

Lending and Deposit Growth

Loans and advances declined during 2008, reflecting the
£27.0bn reduction in balances in Australia following the sale of
BankWest and St. Andrews. This was offset by the effect of
currency translation and underlying growth in Ireland, ENA and
the continuing businasses in Austrafia.




é Year Yaar\
ended anded
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
(restated)
Income Statement £m £m
Net interest income 270 136
Underlying non-interest income {3,764) 252
Underlying net operating income {3,494) 388
Underlying operating expenses {170} {187}
tlnderlying {toss)/profit before tax {3,664) 201)

Financial Performance

Underlying (loss)/profit before tax decreased to £(3, 864}

{2007 £201m). This result included the impact of Market
Dislocation of £(3,948)m (2007 £({227)m) comprising £96m in
net interest income and £(4,044)m (2007 £(227)m) in underlying
non-interest income.

Operating Income

Underlying sales of Treasury products to customers remained
robust but operating income was acversely affected by the
impact of dislocated financial markets on trading revenuss,

Operating Expenses

Underlying operating expensas decreased o £170m {2007
£187m) primarily reflecting a reduction in performance related
staff costs.

Treasury Debt Securities

As part of its investment credit activities Treasury holds a
portfolio of debt securities which are analysed on the following
page. The investment credit business has two functions: firstly it
manages part of the Group's prudential liquidity portfolio and
secondly it takes investment positions principalty trough the
Grampian conduit.

Following the International Accounting Standards Board's {|ASB)
decision to perrnit the reclassification of Financial Assets,
Treasury reclassified certain securiies from assets held for
trading into the Available for Sale (AFS) portfolio and,
subseguently, in light of increasing iliquidity in the markets for
asset backed securities (ABS), changed the classification of
ABS from AFS, to Loans and Receivables.

Bank of Scotland pic Annual Report and Accounts 2008 9

Treasury

ABS and FRNs with book values {as at 31 December 2008) of
£10.1bn and £3.4bn respectively were transferred out of Trading
into the AFS portfolio with effect from 1 July 2008,
Subseguently, ABS with book values (as at 31 December 2008}
of £37.2bn were transferred out of the AFS portfolio and into
Loans ang Receivables with effect from 1 November 2008. If
these assets had not been reclassified during the year additional
negative fair value adjustments (NFVA) of £881m would have
been recognised in the income statemeant and the AFS reserve
mavement would have been reduced by £68m {post tax),

The decrease in ABS was due to paydowns of £4.3bn and
NFVA and impairment losses of £8.8bn, partially offset by the
effects of foreign currency movermnents which resulted in an
increase of £11.3bn. The holding of bank CDs have reduced
through maturities being replaced with Government backed
bonds.

Market Dislocation losses

For the year to 31 December 2008, losses taken to the income
statement due to the impact of Market Dislocation on the
Treasury debt securities portfolio totalled £3,848m (2007
£227m), after reclassification, as follows:

e

Yoar Yaar
anded ended
31.12.2008 3112.2007
£m tm

Negative fair value adjustments {2,527) (227)
impalrment losses (1,421)
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\ Jotal impact of Market Dislocation (3,948} {227))

During the sacond half of the year a significant deterioration in
market sentiment and liguidity has affected the fair value of the
ABS portfolio and in particular certain asset classes including
Alt-A bonds and CDOs. In addition the adverse trends on

credit quality which commanced in the first half of 2008 have
intensifiad in the second half of 2008 and-early 2009, and as a
result impairment losses of £6.8bn have been incurred, primarily
relating to Alt-A, £0.6bn and ABS CDOs, £0.1bn. As a result of
these developments, certain asset classes have been written
down signiticantly at year end, resulting in the Alt-A portfalio with
an average carrying mark of 58%, ABS CDOs of 20% and other
CBO positions of 53%.

In addition following the failure of a number of financial
institutions in the second half of 2008 impairment losses
hava been incurred of £0.65bn on the FRN bock relating to
the exposures to Lehman Brothers, Washington Mutual and
Icelandic Banks.
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Treasury

Treasury debt securities

Treasury's tctal debt securities portfolio as at 31 December 2008, net of negative fair value adjustments (NFVA) and impairment

provisions, is summarised in the following table:

4 N
Fair Value Total Total
Loans & Available through as at as at
Receivables for Sale P&L 31.12.2008 31.12.2007
Asset Class £bn £bn £bn €bn £bn
Asset Backed Securities
Direct 205 30 23.5 23.3
Grampian condguit 16.7 16.7 18.6
Total ABS 37.2 3.0 4.2 41.9
Covered Bonds 43 4.1 3.2
Bank/Financial Institution Floating Rate Notes (FRNs) 16.0 19 1.9 17,4
Bank Certificates of Deposit {CDs) 2.9 31 6.0 15.3®
Other? 1.8 8.0 78 2.8
Total Treasury Assets 31.2 24.8 14.0 76.0 806
Landale 0.7 0.7 0.6
k‘l‘otal (net of NFVA and impairment provisions) 3r1.2 25.5 14.0 76.7 81‘2)
{1} £1.6bn reclassified between COs and FRNSs,
{2) Principally Governments and Supra-nationals.
Exposure to Asset Backed Securities (ABS)
( Net Exposure Average Mark Netl Exposure Avarage Mark\
asat asat asat asal
31.12.2008 31.12.2008 31.12.2007 31.12.2007
Asset Class £bn %o £bn %
Mortgage Backed Securities
US RMBS™ 6.9 64 23 98
Non-US MBS 7.9 a3 79 99
CMmBSH 3.3 a5 33 a9
18.1 79 205 jeie
Collateralised Debt Obligations g
CcBoOm 21 49 3.3 a8
CLO™m 3.5 N 3.2 99
8.6 68 B.5 99
Personal Sector
Auto Loans 1.6 98 1.5 100
Credit Cards 3.5 96 2.8 99
Personal Loans 11 95 1.0 98
6.2 96 53 99
FFELP Students Loans!" 7.0 ‘94 5.8 98
Other ABS 0.6 89 07 99
Total Uncovered ABS 37.5 82 386 o]
Negative Basis® 2.7 70 33 a8
Jotal ABS®IA 40.2 81 M8 QQJ

1) RMBS means Residential Mortgage Backed Securities; CMBS means Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities; CBO means Collateralised Bond Obligations;
CLQ means Colateralised Loan Obtigations; FFELP means Federal Famity Education: Loan Programme.
{2} Megative hasis means ponds held with separals matehing credit defaukt swap (CDS) protection.

(3) The total comprises US securities of £24.3bn and Non-US securities of £15.8on.

{4) There has heen ncincreasa in net exposure as a result of the purchase of ABS during the year. Any increase in net exposure is tha resuil of exchange rate

movernents in excess of paydowns, NFVAs and impairments.
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Risk Management

Introduction
During 2008, the global dislocation in financial markats has
resultad in exceptional instability and volatility, impacting upon
market and investor confidence which has been characterised
"y a marked reduction in liquicity in the international money
markets. This crisis which started in 2007 and has impacted
upon financial markets since, led the UK Government to inject
liquidity into the financial systern and to require {and participate
in) recapitalisation of the banking sector to restore confidence to
the market.

On 13 October 2008, as part of the co-ordinated package

of capital and funding messures for the UK banking sector,
implemented by HM Treasury, the Group participated in the
Government Funding Package and thereby facilitated access to
the UK Government backed provision of liquidity,

Global market and aconomic conditions continus to pressurise
the Group. However, through the injaction of capital and liguidity
tacilitated by the UK Government, both currently and going
torward, HBOS remains confident it will navigaie through this
difficult period, as it becomes part of the Lloyds Banking Group
(LBG).

As a wholly owned subsidiary, HBOS is dependent on LBG for
funding.

The key dependencies on successfully funding the enlarged
Group's balance sheet include the continued functoning

of the money and capital market at thair current levels; the
continued access of the Group to central bank and Govarmment
sponsored liquidity faciities, including issuance under HMT's
credit guarantee scheme (CGS) and access to the Bank of
England's various facilities, imited further deterioration in the
Graup's credii ratings and no significant or sudden withdrawal
of deposits resulting in increased refiance on money markets or
Government support schemes.

The Lloyds Banking Group was created on 16 January 200
Subsequently, HBOS has adopted LBG Risk practices. This
report discusses Risk practices in effect in HBOS during 2008.

Key risks and uncertainties facing the Group
This section dascribes the risk factors which are considered to
be material in relation to the Group.

These risks shauld not be regarded as a complete and
comprehansive statement of all potential risks and uncertainties.
Additional risks and uncertainties that are not presently known.
or which are currently deemed immaterial, may also have

an adverse effect on the Group’s operating results, financial
condition and prospacts.

Each of the Divisions faces key risks and uncertainties in the
exacution of their strategy. These are set out In the divisianal
sections of the Business Review, whers they can be read

in conjunction with the Division's strategy, and financial and
cperating performance.

Credit Risk: The financial performance of the Group is
affected by borrowers ability and willingness to repay
amounts lent by the Group

Credit risk arises in the Retail, Corporate and International
divistons and.the Treasury function, reflecting the risks inherent
in the Group's lending activities. Over the last year the banking
crisis has impacted tha financial services industry resulting in
high prafile losses and writadowns.

The deteriorating economic outlook, both in the UK and
overgeas, is also leading to significant increases in impairments.
The Group is impacted by the ecenamic downturn and a lurther
worsening of the business environment could impact earnings
adversely. This poses a major risk to the Group and its lending
businasses in:

- Retail, where rising unemployment impacts the abHity of
custormners to meet repayment dates on unsecured and
secured lending and !sads to a consequent increase n
arrears. Addifionally, the downtum in the housing market
recuces colfateral values for residential property and this
impacts upon the profitability of secured fending.

- Corporate, where companies are facing increasingly difficult
conditions, resulting in corporate default levels rising and
leading 10 increases in corporate impairments.

Liquidity Risk: The Group may be unable to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due or is unable to
raise sufficient funds to take fult advantage of growth
opportunities

This is known as liquidity risk and arises from mismatches in
the maturities and the timing of cashflows relating to assets,
liabilities and off-balance shest instruments. HBCS refies

and intends to rely increasingly on customer savings and
transmission balancas, as well as ongoing access to the
wholesate lending markets, central bank liquidity facilities such
as the Speciat Liquidity Schems and the Extended Open Market
QOpsrations oparated by the Bank of England, and support from
HM Treasury's guarantee scheme,

Further information about the approach to managing liquidity
risk is explained on pages 23 to 26.
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Risk Management

continued

Market Risk: Changes in interest rates, credit spreads,
foreign exchange rates and commodity and equity
prices and other market risks affect the HBOS Group’s
business and financial results

This is referred to as market risk and is defined as the potential
loss in value or earnings of the HBOS Greun, arising from
changes in external markst factors such as interest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates, commodity and equity prices
and the potential for customers to act in a manner which is
inconsistent with business, pricing and hedging assumptions.
Changes in interest rate levels, yield curves and credit spreads
may affact the interest rate margin realised between lending and
borrowing costs.

Further information abotut the management of, and expesure to,
market risk is set out on pages 20 to 23.

Capital: The Group may have insufficient capital
resources to meet the regulatory minimum
requirements, to finance growth, or to support its credit
rating

Capital discipling is a key element of the Group’s strategy.
Capital is a scarce resource and the task is to deploy it to
achieve sustainable returns and add value for shareholders,

To strengthen the Group’s capital position, HBOS launched a
wholly underwritten £4bn Rights Issue in May 2008. However
further market pressures, the failure of Lehmart Brothers in the
US and S&P downgrading of HBOS had a severe impact on the
Group, ullimately resulting in the recommended acquisition of
HBOS plc by Lloyds TSB Group plc.

Based upon prejections by management, assuming the
availability of the existing and announced Government Funding
Package, the Group believes it has adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future,

The Group's approach to the management of capital is set out
on pages 27 to 28.

Operational Risk: Operational risks exist in the normal
course of the Group's business

In & targe organisation with many different processes, IT
systems and colleaguss, there is a risk that operational losses
can result, Examples of the sourcas of such risks include fraud,
systems reliability, human error, failure of key suppliers, IT
security, change management, operafional cutsourcing or failure
to comply with legislation or regulation.

Further information alout the management of operationai risk is
set out on page 26.

Regulatory Risk: The Group’s business and earnings
can be affected by changes in financial services laws
and regulations in each of the locations in which jt
operates

Any significant regulatory changes could affect how the Group
conducts business and its financial performance.

Regulatory risk is explained in detail an page 26.
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Management and Controls
Governance ’
The governance model comprises a well established and embedded committee structure and associated control environment

across the Group. The framework discussed describes that in effect in Bank of Scotland for the financial year.

—
HBOS Board

1st Line of Defence

i 2nd Line of Defence i 3rd Line of Defence

’_———( Group Chief Executive J
— \ »
Divisionat rExex:utive A ‘ ) Group Functions J Audit W
Chief Exgcutives i | Committee ¢ | Committee
supported by : — " :
Divisional Rigk Group Group Capital Committee )
Committees Finance - —— P —
Director Grougp Funding and Liguidity ]
Share Market Activity Commities J Bivisional
¢ 1 Risk Control
Regulatory Capilal Adequacy Commitee ] 1 | Committees
Group Credit Risk Gommittos ) i
ket Risk Comrhi
Groue Giroup Market Risk Commitlee )] Group
Risk . p Internat
i Dhecior Group Insurance Risk Cammiiee ] | vt
L \ Y. \. y, Group Operational Risk Committee ) J
!

The Risk Management Framework
HRBOS allocates specific roles in the management of risk to executives and senior managers and 1o the Board and Executive

Commitiees. This is undertaken within an overall framework and strategy established by the Board. The model is basac on the
concept of 'thres lines of defence’.

-
151 Ling of Defence RISK MANAGEMENT » Divisional CEQs * Strategy )
« Divisional Risk Specialists » Performance
+ Divisional Risk Committees » Risk control
2nd Line of Defence RISK OVERSIGHT s Group Chief Executive
» Exgcutive Committee + Centralised policy management
s Group Functions (inc, Group Risk  Inclependent oversight of risk
and Group Finance}
* Executive Risk Committeas
3rd Line of Defence RISK ASSURANCE « Audit Comimitige
« Divisional Risk Control Committees « Independent assurance
* Group Internal Audit
\.. .
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Risk Management

continued

Divisional management has primary responsibility for identifying
and gvaluating significant risks to the business and for designing
and operating suitable controls. Internal and externaf risks are
assessed, including econormic factors, control breakdowns,
disrupticn of information systems, competition and regulatory
reguirermnents.

The four Group Executive Risk Committees - Group Credit Risk
Committee, Group Market Risk Committee, Group Insurance
Risk Committee and Group Operationat Risk Committee
develop the policies and parameters within which Divisions

are required to manage risk. The Committees provide central
oversight by reviewing and ¢hallenging the work of the Divisions'
own risk committees and considering the application of
appropriate risk management techniques.

The specialist Group Risk function, reporting to the Group Risk
Director, supports these Committees. s responsibilities are:

- to recommend Group policies, standards and limits;

~ to monitor compliance with those palicies, standards and
limits;

- to provide leadership in the development and implementation
of risk management techniques; and

- to aggregate risks arising in the Divisions and to moniter the
overall Group position independently from the Divisions' own
analysis.

Consideration of capital, liquidity and balance sheet
managemeant is undertaken on an integrated basis. All capital
and funding refated activities are the responsibility of the Group
Capital Committee, supperted by three sub-committees, which
focus on the core aspects of overall Group requirements. The
Group Capital Committee is chaired by the Group Finance
Diractor and operates under delegated authority from the Board
to oversea and manage the Group’s Balance Stieet and Capital
in accordance with the Board approved Group Business Plan
and within regulatory ratlos.

In judging the effectivenaess of the Group's controls, the Board
reviews the reports of the Audit Committee and management.

Certain responsibilities are delegated {o the Audit Committee
including ensuring that there is regular review of the adeguacy
and efficiency of internal control procedures. This rofe provides
independent assurance that there is an appropriate control
structure throughout the Group,

The Audit Committee, supported by Divisional Risk Control
Committeas, obtains assurance about the internal control and
risk management envircnment through regular reports from
Group Functions (inciucing Group Risk and Group Finance) and
Group Internal Audit. It also considers external auditors’ reports.

Management of Key Risks

{The information set out below, up to and including the section
entitied ‘Market Risk’ on page 20 forms an integral part of

the audited financial statemenis as described in the Financial
Statements section in the Accounting Policies on page 40).

Credit Risk
Credit Risk is the risk of financial loss from counterparty’s
failure to settle financial obligations as they fall due.

Credit Risk Performance

Buring the second half of 2008 the pressures being experienced
in wholesale and liquidity markets spread to become severe
economic dsterioration in the UK. This pressure accelerated
significantly in quarter four 2008 and saw substantial issues
arising in Corporate lending and Treasury investments.

The Corporate Division's Credit Risk Management was

unable to react quickly enough to contain the deterioration,
exacerbated by HBOS historic levels of exposure concentration
within property and property related sectors, giving littte

room for manoeuvre in a deteriorating market and resulting in
impairment losses increasing dramatically.

In addition, Treasury has been materially Impacted by the
reduction in fair value of the ABS portfolio as a result of credit
congerns, poor market sentiment and liguidity pressures. This
has been exacerbated following a strategic decision of moving
away from using Government bonds to provide liquidity, instead
relying on AAA rated Asset Backed Securities and investment
grade bank FRNs, which whilst effective in liquidity terms,
significantly increased the credit risk profile of the Group.

The credit risk risk profile within HBOS is susceptible 1o further
increases in impairments if the UK economy cantinues to
deteriorate. Additicnal pressure will also be evident in Treasury’s
ABS partfolio if US real estate values fall further, resulting in
increasing fair value and impairment losses.

Management of Credit Risk

The Group Credit Risk Committee (GCRC), one of the Executive
Risk Committees, ts chaired by the Group Risk Director and
comprises senior executives from across the business Divisions,
Group Risk and Group Finance functions. it meets monthly and
reviews the Group's lending portiolio, approves Group credit
standards, fimits and divisiona! credit risk policies. The Group
Credit Risk Policy Statement is approved by the Board on an
annueal basis. The GCRC slso assists the Board in formulating
the Group's credit risk appetite in respect of key products and
sectors.

Greup Credit, a specialist support function within Group

Risk, provides centralised expertise in the area of credit risk
measurement and management techniques. In addition to
reporting on the performance and forward fooking risks of
each divisionat portfolio to the GCRC {and other senior HBOS
commitiees), Group Credit exercises independent oversight
over the effectiveness of credit risk management practices and
adherence to approved policies, standards and imits.



Day to day management of credit risk is undertaken by
specialist credit teams working within gach Division in
compiiance with policies approved by divisional committees,
under lending authorities delegatad by the Board (via GCRC).
Typically, furctions undertaken by these teams include credit
sanctioning, porticlic management and management of high
risk and defaulted accounts and credit risk mocdiel build and
governance.

To manage credit risk, a wide range of policies and techniques
are used across the Group:

~ For retail portfolios, extensive use is made of credit scoring
in the assessment of new applications for credit, In addition,
hehavioural scoring is used to provide an assessment
of the conduct of a customer's acceunts in granting
axtansions to, and setting limits for, existing facilities and
in identifying customers at risk of default. Affordability is a
vitally important measure and is raviewed in comtzination
with either application and/or behavioural scores. HBOS has
been invalved in data sharing initiztives within the industry
and makes extensive use of credit bureau files to inform the
assessment of customer risk and affordability and to aid
responsible lending. Small business customers are assessed
for their credit-worthiness in a similar manner to retail
customers.

- For corporate portfolios, a full credit assessment of the
financiat strength of each potential transaction and/er
custormer Is undertaken, including a stress test of key financial
aspects of the transaction, awarding an intemal risk rating
which is reviewad regulatly. The same approach is alsc used
for larger SME (small to medium enterprise) customers.

— Within Treasury Division (Treasury), which handles the
Group’s banking and sovereign related expasures, as well as
the Group's structured credit bond (ABS) portfolio held for
liquidity and proprietary purposes, focused credit risk policies
are establishad and reviewed by tha Group Wholesale Credit
Committee (GWCC), a sub-committee of the GCRC. Basel
Il Advanced IR8 compliant models are used 1o rate banking
and soveraign countarparties. Structured cradit bonds are
reviewed individually by an independsnt cradit function prior
to purchase and an internat rating is applied to all exposures.
Additional thresholds and limits are applied by rating and by
asset class in line with the busingss stratagy. As part of an
ongoing portfolio review process, monitoring is performad
covering each bond hoiding, supplemented by stress
analyses conducted on a periodic basis.

An additional measure within the credit rigk framework is the
astablishment of product, risk profile, industrial sector and
country limits to manage excessive cancentrations of risk.
Material portfciios, such as mortgages, have approvad sub-
sector limits fo ensure that they remain within plan and tolerance
for risk. All such limits are set and monitored by the GCRGC.
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Standards have been astablished across the Group for the
management of credit risk. Al Divisions ars independently

rated against these internal standards by the Grgup Credit
function (en an annual basis) and work together to cortinuously
improve credit risk managemeant capability. There continues

to be significant levels of investment in the developmant of
credit risk rating toels, including enhancements to the portiolio
risk measuremant systems and in governance arrangements

to support operatians within the terms of the Basel | Accord.
These include principles for development, validation and
parformance monitoring of credit risk models, The approval
process for credit models is dependant upon the materlality

of the mode!, with all modeis impacting the regulatory capital
calculation requiring approval by the Group Modal Governance
Committes (GMGC), which is a sub-committee of the GCRC,
and those deemed material to the Group being approved by the
Group Capital Committee (GCC).

Internal reporting has developed in response to the introduction
of improved rating tocls. Senior Management across the Group
are now provided with reports assessing the risk profile In terms
of Probability of Default and Expected Loss and will continue to
do so under the Basel Il environment going forward.

" Standard Technical Definitions

- PD - Probability of Default. The probability that an cbligor
enters default in the next 12 months,

- EAD - Exposura At Default. The obligor's credit exposure at
the point of gefauit, assuming default occurs within the next
12 months.

- LGD - Loss Given Default. The proportion of an obligor's
exposure at default that the lender loses as a result of default,
assuming that default occurs within the next 12 months. This
is a percentage.

- EL - Expected Loss. The monetary amount expected to lose
frarn an obligor, arising from a default in the next 12 months,

Derived by the formula EL = PD x EAD x LGD.

Scope of HBOS IRB Permission

in the pericd to 31 December 2007, HBOS operated under what
is commonly know as the Basel | regulatory capital regime.
Under Basel | the FSA required each bank and banking group
to maintain an individually prescribed ratio of total capital to
risk-welghted assets, taking into account both balance sheet
assets and off-balance sheet transactions, From 1 January
2008 HBOS, in common with LUK peers, adopted the Basel I
framewark through application of the FSA BIFRU rules.

Basel [l seeks o augment arrangements and introduces a risk
sensitive framework. Basel i is structured to provide a choice
of methodologies to determine cradit risk regulatory capital
requiremnents, with different levels of complexity. HBOS makes
use of the Standardised and Advanced Internal Ratings Based
{AIRB) approaches with no portfolios using the Foundation
Internal Ratings Based approach.
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Risk Management

continued

- Standardised approach. This is an extension of Basel | and
requires banks 1o use external credit ratings to detarmine risk
weightings for rated counterparties. Like Basel |, it groups
other counterparties into broad categories and applies
regulatory determined risk weightings to these categories.

- Advanced Internal Ratings Based approach. This is the
most sephisticated approach. Banks use their own internat
assessment of PD, EAD and LGD to determine risk weight
asset values.

HBOS is approved by the FSA to use the Advanced Internal
Ratings Based approach (AIRB) for reguiatory capital purposes,

The scope of permission covers all Baset! || asset classes,
howsver, HBOS has a model roli-out schedule to complete,
predominately in relation to International and Corporate
businesses. The rolt-out plan and mandatory parallel run will run
until the end of 2010.

Beside these, HBOS has a number of small portfolios where,
for economic reasons, it is not commercially viable to construct
AIRB medels. These are typically products which are no fonger
sold and effectivaly in run off mode or new products where

the critical mass of data necessary to construct AIRB models
has yet to be established. In such cases the Standardised
approach Is applied.

The models that are used in the regulatory capital calculation
also underpin the credit risk measurement framework used by
HBOS, it is a regulatory requirernent that the models deployed
in the capital calculations are used ta inform credit related
decisions.

Internal Ratings Process

For each IRB asset class the approach has been to build
internal models to ganerate PD's, LGD's and EAD's for products
within the asset class. This is summarised below.

Retail Assets

Ratail assets inciude residential mortgages. overdrafts,

credit cards and unsecured personal lending exposures,

The methodology for Retall assets is transaction based with
a foundation in the scorecards used for application decision
and account management. The regulatory EL is mapped to a
Lifetime Expected Loss {LEL} which is used in wider business
processes, including assessment of risk appetite and pricing.

Corporate Assets

Corporate assets include exposures to corporate and SME
entities. The methodology for non specialised lending Corporate
assets considers individually, the obligor PD, the transaction
EAD and LGD then combines these to produce the transaction
EL. The approach within HBOS to estimating PD has been

to undertake a statistical analysis of the obliger’s financial
statements with a supplementary qualitative but standardised
overlay. This is then calibrated to the histerically identified

{(and where necessary appropriately adjusted) default rate for
the portfolio in hand. EAD estimates are based on current
exposures plus an additional proportion of the undrawn
positions, The LGD component is estimated, taking account of
the EAD less any recognisable collateral.

Specialised Lending Assets

This asset class predominantly comprises property investment
and property development transactions but also includes major
asset financing deals, such as shipping and aircraft. Thisis a
transaction based approach. Where full models are in place, the
methodology has been to stochastically 2ssess the transaction's
cash flows over its lifetime and use this o calculate the 12
month EL.

Financial Institutions and Sovereign Assets

This comprises exposures to governments together with
exposures to bank counterparties, Given the historical limited
default data for such portfolios the methodology for these
assets has been to predict what rating would be provided by
an External Credit Assessment institution {ECAI) should the
obligor have sought one, This rafing is then related to a PD valua
based upon the long run historic information associated with
such ECAI ratings, A transaction EAD is estimated based on the
product characteristics while LGD is directly assoclated with the
standing of the obligor. These components are then combined
o produce the transaction EL.,

Within HBOS, all models have been developed internally and
there is no use of external models (aithough thers may be
reliance on external feeds such as bureau data, PD ratings for
extarnal third parties such as tenants, and feeds to Treasury’s
Bank rating models). Minimum Standards for the development
and monitoring of Credit Risk Models are in fcrce across the
Group.

In accordance with the HBOS federal structure, credit rigk
control units have been established within each divisional risk
function, Divisional credit teams are independent from business
generation teams and are responsibie for:

- development, validation, implementation and recalibration of
credit risk models;

- monitoring of the ongoing performance of the credit risk
models; and

- securing annual approval of all credit risk models from the
appropriate body.

The most material internal rating models are approved for use by
the Group Capital Committee with the remainder at the Group
Model Governance Committee, which is a sub-committee of
GCRC. Group Credit Risk undertake independent technical
review of divisional credit risk mode!s in accordance with the
Group's standards. These reviews take place annually or when
a model is materiafly changed and result in a recommendation
to the GMGC or Group Capital Committee where the madel is
appraoved for use.

Use of Internal Estimates

The Group has introduced IRB models on a phased basis,
ensuring that full confidence in the outputs is built up within the
credit areas bafore moving to Tull use in decisioning.

IRB parameters are being widely used in the Divisions,
particularly in those that will experience the most material benefit
under Basel || and for the most material requirements,



Credit approval

Credit assessment and approval within HBOS is mainly
conducted at the divisional level in tine with the Group Credit
Risk Policy Statement (GCRPS) and divisiona! credit poficy
statements. The GCRPS requirss adharence to the canons of
tending appropriate for a financial institution of HBOS's size and
sophistication, and in relation to IRB inputs it specifically requires
that: ’

- each borrower must be assigned a credit rating or score, or
directly, a probability of default (PD) which is updated at least
annuzlly; and

- PD and EL should be considered as part of a credit
assessment.

The divisional processes can be broken down into two main
categories:

Portfolio level credit approval (defined as low value, high volume
automated credit processes and used primarily for assessing
retail portfolios). Typically, LEL and EL estimates generated
from/by IRB modals are used to set application scorecard cut-
offs. Therefore, the level of business accepted via avtomated
decision making processes is directly influenced by IRB outputs.
Decisioning and pricing are linked and LEL cutputs are also fed
inta profitability models that are used to make pricing decisions.

Transaction lavel credit approval (defined as high value, fow
volume exposures which are addressed directly by credit
analysts - used for corporate, corporate SME, financial
institution and soversign asset classes).

In general, the process oparates as follows:

- tha relationship manager inputs the appropriate information
into the models which return PR/EL outputs; and

- an independent cradit risk management unit checks the
inputs to the model calcuiations for accuracy and plausibility
(and for cutputs); and verifies that the correct model has been
used.

Credit Limits
The govarnance process for imits approval is:

- at Group level, limits for products, sectors and countries are
set under the authority of GCRC; and

- within the divisions, sanctioning is conducted under a set of
agreed delegated lending authorities granted to individuals
or credit committees. These delegated authoritiss have been
revised substantially in response to the deteriorating credit
conditions.

Divisional risk committees do not make individual credit
decisions but are responsible for putting in place appropriate
governance arrangements, approving policies and standards
and credit rigk rating systems and monitoring all aspects of
credit risk within their respective Divisions.
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Pricing

Transaciion/portfolio ievel pricing Is set by the Divisions who are
increasingly basing these decisions on the outputs of the [RB
models.

For Retall, pricing and decisioning are intrinsically linked. The
lifetime expected losses are fed into the prafit model, along

with other costs, to allow a price to be set that generates the
required return, All pricing decisions have been assessed using
the Basel lifetime expected loss to ensure that current pricing
passes the required hurdle rates dependent on the risk invcived.

For Corporate, the pricing modef facilitates the incorporation of
appropriate pricing infarmation into the credit approval process.

For Treasury, the major activities are funding, liguidlity and
hedging in external marksts on behalf of the wider HBOS group.
Treasury is not normally & market maker in the markets within
which it oparates and is therefore dependent on prices quoted
to it by the market.

Portfolio Reporting

Credit risk reporting is canducted at both Group and divisional
levels, embedding IRB parameters into management
information. This includes analysing PD, LGD, EAD and EL
measures. Model performance and parameter assessment are
also presented.

Factors Impacting Loss Experience

The detericration in the loss experience generally reflects the
increasing economic pressures over the year, characterised

by declining economic activity, rising unemployrnent, the
contraction of the mortgage market, reduced availability of credit
and the fall in house and commercial property values.

The increase in mortgage losses was driven predominantly by
increasad affordabllity pressures and reduced attrition from
higher risk customers as well as the rise in Loan to Value ratios
due to reduced housing values.

The Corporate credit snvironment has suffered significant
deterioration, with an increasing number of customers operating
under stressed conditions. In particular, the exposure 10 the
construction and real estate sectors, where HBOS has had
historically large concentrations of fending, have been impacted
more sevaraly than other sectors. In addition, HBOS strategy
was to support relatively high levels of exposurs to a small
number of long term customer relationships, these single name
concentrations have placed the Group at risk of significant loss,
should default occur. The genaral deterioration of the credit
erwironment and associated market dislocation has limited

the options available to Corporate to restructure or dispose

of distressed assets. As a result, not only has HBOS been
impacted earlier and more significantly than most of its peers,

it has been very difficult to materially reduce the balance sheet
risk profile in reaction to the environment.

Likewise, the loss experience within the [niemational businesses
reflects the deteriorating economies within which it cperates.
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Risk Management

continued

Losses experienced in Treasury are due to bath the fair
value impact of the market distocation on the Asset Backed
Securities portfolio, including Alt A bonds and CDOs and the
well publicised failure of certain bank counterpartias resulting
in credit impairments. The fail in value has been driven largely
by credit concerns, poor market sentiment and lquidity
requirements.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Collateral is the pledging of assets which in the event of default
can be soid in order to realise some, or all, of the ouistanding
monies. HBOS has documentad poticies in respect of the
criteria for recognition of collateral taken as credit risk mitigation.

HBOS employs a variety of credit risk mitigation techniquas in
order to mitigate the credit risk faced. These technigues includa
netting, collateral, guarantess and credit derivatives.

The Retail mortgage portiolios are farmally secured on
residential properties. Corporate exposures utilise a broad
range of collateral types, serving to reduce the foss in event of
detault. Financial collateral is predominantly cash. Other eligitle
collateral includes first charges on commercial and residential
real estate and other physical assets such as aircraft, shipping,
commercial vehicles and car fleats.

On-balance sheet netting is recogrised where the agreement is
legally effective and enforceable, and there is an intention and
ability to settle on a net ar simuttaneous basis, in all jusisdictions.
In recognising the netting agreements, HBOS ensures it can
determine at any time those assets and liabiliies that are subject
to the netting agreement,

On-halance sheet netting is recognised in respect of mutual
claims between HBOS and its counterparty. This is imited to
reciprocat cash batances between HBOS and the counterparty,

For master netting agreements covering repurchase
transactions and/or securities or comrmaodities lending or
borrowing transactions and/or other capital market driven
transactions to be recognised for the purposes of the calculation
of regulatory capital, they shall:

- be legally effective and enforceable in all relevant jurisdictions,
including in the event of the bankruptcy or insolvency of the
counterparty;.

- give the non-defaulting party the right to terminate and close-
out in a timely manner all transactions under the agreement
upon the event of detault, including in the svent of the
pankrupticy or insolvency of the counterparty, and

- provide for the netting of gains and losses on transactions
closed out under a master agreement, so that a single net
amount is owed by one party to the other.

HBOS policy is to calculate the market value of collateral taken
and periodically reassess it. Notwithstanding, revaluation is
undartaken whenever HBOS has reason to believe that &
significant decrease in market value has occourred,

Where the collateral is held by a third party, HBOS 1akes
reascnable steps o try to ensure that the third party segregates
the collateral from its own assets.

Where real estate is pledged as collateral the value of the
property is periodically reassessed. More frequent assessment
is carried out where the market is subject to significant changes
in conditions.

Statistical methods are used to monitar the vatue of the property
and to identify property that requires to be revalued. The
property valuation is reviewed by an independent valuer when
information indicates that the value of the property may have
declined materially relative to general market prices.

The value of other physical forms of collateral is assessed on

a frequent basis and at a minimum once every year. More
frequent assessment is required where the market is subject to
significant changes in conditions.

HBOS policy is 1o ry to ensure it has the ability to liquidate

the collateral, the ability to establish objectively, a price or
market value, the frequency with which the value can readily

be obtained {including a professional appraisal or valuation),
and the volatility or a proxy of the volatility of the velue of the
collateral. Both initiat valuation and revaluation take into account
any deterioration or absolescence of the coliateral. Particular
attention is paid in valuation and revaluation to the effects of the
passage of time on fashion/date-sensitive collateral.

HBOS pelicy in recognising collateral is that there is the right to
physically inspect the coliateral, ensuring also that the collateral
taken as protection is adequately insured against damage.

Guarantees exist when one entity commits to paying the
outstanding menies in event of defauit of another entity, which
has entared into a transaction with HBOS. The Group receives
a variety of guarantee types, however, capital calculation
recognition is cnly taken through the use of PD substitution for
guarantees provided by appropriate sovereigns and institutions.

Credit derivatives are an investment banking product whereby
HBOS pays a premium 1o a credit protection provider in orcer
to receive the full amount of monies owed should a specific
counterparty default on their obligations. In effect, this is a form
of insurance policy and is used in Treasury to mitigate Credit
Risk.




Counterparty Credit Risk

Internal capital and credit limits

Bank and Sovereign AIRB rating predictor models are used

to produce an internal rating for each counterparty within the
portfolio. These ratings are mapped across to statistically
cerived (based upon Moody's history of default dataj PO and
LGD tables. When combined with EAD, these values determine
EL. To determing EAD exposure, values for derivative products
are calculated by using the mark-to-market methodology for
regulatory purposes and intemally developed models for fimit
management, EL is then used 1o calculate the minimum capital
from which the Risk Weighted Asset {[RWA) is derived. Treasury
does not use aconomic capital models, thus RWAs are used to
determine regulatory capital.

Securing collateral and establishing credit reserves
Treasury makes active use of collateral and risk mitigation
techniques to reduce credit risks in its partfolio. These
include the use of coliataral (cash, government securities and
guarantees), break clauses and netiing. In addition, a gross
notignal control for repo and stock borrowing exists.

To recognise the effects of credit risk mitigation, the mitigation
agreements must be valid, enforezable, unconditional and
irevocable. In addition, collateral must be transferred to Bank of
Scotland through the passing of tltle and shouid be netable on
a portfolio basis. Cnee these and other conditions specified by
the credit sanctioner are met, the effect of collateral received is
reflected in reductions to all applicable cradit exposures and in
capital adequacy calculations.

Treasury Collateral Qperations are required to actively monitor
collateral using established best risk management practices.

Correlation risk

Undar the repe framework, the issuer of collateral held and
the counterparty the trade is transacted with should be neither
the same nor cannected. The same rule applies for derivatives
under collatera! assets standards. Treasury Credit has the
discretion to extend the rule to other cases where therg is
significant correlation.

Financial instruments subject to credit risk

The table below sets out the Group's exposure to credit risk
relating to financial instruments befare taking account of
collateral and other security. Policyholder assets are excluded
from the analysis in the table as the underlying credit risks are
for the account of the paolicyholders and have no direct impact
cn the Group's results, A full reconciliation between the Group’s
consolidated balance sheet and financial instruments subjact 10
credit risk is set out in Note 36 on page 95.
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" Finangial Fmanciaﬁ
instruments nstruments
subject subject
to credit risk to cradit risk
As at As at
31.12.2008 $1.12.2007
£m £m
l.oans and advances to customers 473,015 480,267
Financial assets held for trading 22,5M 54,881
Cebt securities 65,219 48,094
QOther financial assels 66,271 22,335
627,076 585,377
Contingent llabiitles and commitments 88,355 106,318
\Total 715,431 691.695)

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and aclvances to customers are managed cn a divisional
basis. information about the credit quality of loans and
advances to customers is set out in Note 36 on page 95,

Financial assets held for trading

As described above, full credit anatysis is undertaken and,
based upon that, an internal rating is derived which belps to
establish a cradit appetite for the issuer or asset intended to be

acquired.

As Treasury manages the liquidity of the HBOS Group, its
mandate is to maintain a high guality credit portfciic and actively
uses portiolio techniques to manage and maniter the quality of
its portfolios. This includes the use of rating based thresholds,
established portfolio level thresholds, asset class limits and sub-
limits. There are also rules gaverning the types of assets that
can be heid within Treasury's Liquidity portfolios, Trading and
Banking books and for individual Asset Backed Security (ABS)
tranche sizes. There are also limits controlling the maximum

weighted average life of assets.

Financial assets held for trading are precdominantly investment
grade investments with 9% (2007 99%) of infer-ank and
structured investment portfolios rated "A’ or above based on an
internal credit ratings scale that is, in general, aligned with the
ratings scales of the major credit ratings agencies (Moody's,

S&P and Fitch).

During the course of 2008 £12.20n of ABS and FRN assets
were transferred from the Trading Book to the AFS Book.
Subsequently, £35.4bn of ABS was transterrad from the AFS
Bock into the Loans & Receivables Book.

d As at As al\
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
% %
AAA 67.4 51.5
AA 19.3 34.2
A 12.1 137
kBe»low A 1.2 08 )
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Risk Management

continued

Debt securities

Debt securities are primarily held within Treasury and are
predominantly invested in investment grace counterparties with
92.2% (2007 ©6.5%) of debt securities rated ‘A’ or above, again
based on the internat rating scale.

4 Ag at As aD
$1.12,2008 31.12.2007
L %
AAA 52.3 60.4
AA 229 236
A 17.0 12.5
Below A 7.8 3.5
. A

Other financial assets

Other financial assets include cash and balancas at central
banks, tems in the course of collection, derivative assets, loans
and advances to banks and sundry financial assets.

Market Risk
Market risk is defined as the potential loss in value or
earnings of the organisation arising from:

- changes in external market factors such as interest
rates (interest rate risk}, foreign exchange rates (foreign
exchange risk}, credit spread, commodities and equities;
and

- the potential for customers to act in a manner which
is inconsistent with business, pricing and hedging
assumptions.

(Market risk information is coffated at divisional and enttity levels
for submission into the consofidated HBOS Group position.
This consolidated information is used to manage market risk at
the HBOS Group level. Although the Bank forms a significant
part of the HBOS Group, management of market risk is not
undertaken at group sub-consolidation level, Additionally as
HBOS ple, the holding company, is an impaortant funding vehicle
for the HBOS Group its exclusion from any funding infarmation
presents a distorted view of the overall Group funding posttion.
Accordingly, the infarmation presented below is based on an
extract from the HBOS Group Risk Report).

The objectives of the Group's market risk framework are to
ensure that:

— market risk is taken only in accordance with the Board’s
appetite for such risk;

- such risk is within the Group's financial capability,
management understanding and staff competence;

- the Group compligs with all regulatory requirements relating to
the taking of market risk; and

- the quality of the Group's profits is appropriately managed
and its reputation safeguarded.

Risk appetite is set by the Board which allocates responsibility
for oversight anc management of market risk to the Group
Market Risk Committee, an Executive Risk Committee chaired
by the Group Risk Director.

The Group devotes considerable resources to ensuring that
market risk is captured, modelled and reported, and managed.
Trading and non-trading portfolios are managed at various
organisational levels, from the HBOS Group overall, down to
specific business areas.

Market risk measurement and management methods are
designed to meet or exceed industry standards, and the tools
used facilitate internal market risk management and reporting.

Market risk is controlled across the Group by setling limits
using a range of measurement methodologies. The principal
methodologies are Net Interest income (NII) sensitivity and
Market Value (MV) sensitivity for banking bocks and Value-at-
Risk (vVaR) for trading bocks. All are supplemented by scenario
analysis which is performed in order to estimate the potential
economic loss-that could arise from extreme, but plausible
siress events.

Detailed market risk framework documents and limit structures
have baen developed for each Division. These are tailored 1o
the specific market tisk characteristics ang business objectives
of each Division. Each divisional policy requires appropriate
divisional sanction, and is then forwarded to the Group Market
Risk Committee for approval on at least an annual basis,

Market risk within the insurance and investment businesses
arises in a number of ways and, depending upon the product;
some risks are borne diractly by the customer and scme by

the insurance and investment companies. Risk to customers is
conirolied by adherence to and regular monitering of investment
mandates and, if appropriate, unit pricing systems and controls.
In the case ot the risk to the companies, individual Boards
approve overall risk appetites and policies against which
exposure is monitored,

Market risk — principally interest rate, inflation and equity — also
arises from the Group’s defined benefit pensions obligations.
These sensitivities are regularly measured and are reporied to
the Group Market Risk Committee every month.

Interest Rate Risk {(Non-Trading)

A key market risk faced by the Group in its non-trading book is
interest rate risk. This arises where the Group's financial assets
and liabilites have interest rates sei under different bases or
reset at different times.

The principal Board fimit for structural interest rate risk is
expressed in terms of potential volatility of net interest income
in adverse market conditions. Risk exposure is monitored using
the following measures:

- Net Interest Income sensitivity - This methodology comprises
an analysis of the Group's current interest rate risk position
overlaid with behavioural assessment and re-pricing
assumptions of planned future activity. The change to
forecast Nl is calculated with reference to a set of defined
parallel interest rate shocks which measure how much current
projections would alter over a 12 month period.

~ Market Value sensitivity — This methodology considers all
re-pricing mismatches in the current balance sheet inchuding
those beyond the time horizon of the NIl measure. 1t is also
calculated with reference to a set of defined interest rate
shocks.

The Board has delegated authority to the Group Market Risk
Commitiee to allocate limits to divisions as appropriate within
the overall risk appetite approved by the Board each year. In
turn, the Group Market Risk Committee has granted limits which
constitute the rigk toferance far each Division,




Banking divisions are required to hedge all significant opan
interest rate mismatch positions with Treasury and are not
permitied to take positions of a speculative nature. A limit
structure exists to ensure that risks stemming from residual and
temporary positions or from changes in assumptions about
customer behaviour remain within the Group's risk appetite.

Market risk in non-traging books consists almest entirely of
exposure to changes in interest rates. This is the potential
impact on earnings and value that could occur when, if rates fall,
liabifties cannot be re-priced as quickly as assets; or when, if
rates rige, assets cannot be re-priced as quickly as liabilities.

Net Interest Income Sensitivity

The foltowing table shows, split by major currency, the Group's
sensitivities as at 31 December 2008 to an immediate up and
down 25 basis points change to all interest rates.

Bank of Scotland ple Annual Report and Accounts 2008 21

Basis Risk

Major structural interest rate exposure wili largely be addressed
by quantifying re-pricing risk, however, there is potentially a
material risk relating to basis le, the expasure relating to the
Group’s (net) asset position repricing off a different index than
the (net) liability position,

The primary source of basis risk exposure within the Group is
in the UK, where HBOS has a net asset position referenced to
Bank Rate and a net liability position referenced to short term
LIBOR rates. Analogous Bank Rats/LIBOR positions also exist
inlreland.

The fallowing table shows nst assets for the Banking Divisions
(excluding Treasury) by pricing basis and reflects the major
components of the Group's balance sheat as it relates to basis
risk.

- ™\
As a1 31.12.2008 - . ~
+25bps -25bps 2008 2007
impact of interest rate shift £m £m Bank Rate 97.9 3.0
Currency Variable Market Rates {79.5) (58.6)
Sterling 824 (1960 - agministered Rates {29.4} 62.3)
US Dotlar (2.9) 2.7 Fixed {including capital and low/
Euro (8.0} 81 non-interest bearing) 11,0 7.9
AU Dotlar {1.5) 1.5 \. 7
Cther {0.3) 0.3 Reserve Sensitivity
LTotaI 89.7 (107.0} The following table shows the market value sensitivity, for a 25
basis point shift, of those items in respect of which a change in
. i ; ang
— - market value is reflected In the equity of the Group - principally
As at 31.12,2007 ‘available for sale’ assets and cash flow hedges.
+ 25 bps - 25bps
Impact of intarest rate shitt £m £m
Currency ' As at 31.12.2008Y
i +25bps -25bps
Stgrlljmi (2:)'2; 2;2 Impact of interest rate shift £m £m
e ofar E4‘3) 4'3 Available for sale reserve {14.5) 14.5
uro ’ ' Cash flow hedge reserve 84.9 {84.9)
Al Doltar 01 0.1 Total 70.4 (70.4)
Other o1 (0.1) L B )
Total - (259) 26.2)
(~ ™\
Base case projected NIl is calculated on the basis of the casops e
Group's current balance sheet, forward rate paths implisd by impac! of interest rate shift £m em
current market rates, and contractual re-pricing dates (acjusted Available for sale reserve 15.7) 157
according to behavioural assumptions for some products); it Cash flow hedge reserve 161 (16.3)
also incorporates husiness planning assumptions about future Total 1004 (100.4)
balance sheet volumes and the level of early redemption fees. \ o W,

The above sensitivities show how this projected NIl wouid
change i response to an immediate parailel shift to alf refevant
interest rates — market and administerad.

The principal driver of the risk is re-pricing mismatch but the
methodology alse recognises that behavioural re-pricing
assumptions - for example, prepayrment rates - are thernselves
a function of the ievel of interast rates.

The measure, however, is simplified in that it assumes aff interast
rates, for all currencies and maturities, move at the same time
and by the same amount. Also, it does not incorporate the
impact of management actions that, in the event of an adverse
rate movement, could reduce the impact on NI

foreign Exchange Risk {(Non-Trading)

The Group Funding & Liquidity Commities is responsible for
the framework within which structural foreign currency risk is
managed. The Group Funding & Liquidity Committee manages
foreign currency exposuraes based on forecast currency
information provided by the Divisions, and mandates Treasury
to execute transactions and undartake currency programmes
to manage structural currency risk. The actual risk position is
monitored monthly by the Group Market Risk Cornimittee,
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Risk Management

continued

Transaction exposures arise primarily from profits generated in
the overseas operations, which will be remitted back to the UK
and then converted into sterling.

Translation exposures arise due o earnings that are retained
within the overseas operations and reinvested within their own
balance sheet.

Structurat currency exposures arise from the Group's
investments in overseas subsidiaries, branches and other
investments and are noted in the table befow.

(" 2008 )

Net Barrowing Remaining

investments takenoutto structural

in overseas hedge net currency

Functional currency operations investmenis exposure

of the operation £m £m £m
AU Dollar 2,015 2,015
Euro 3,01 3,011

US Dollar 191 181 10

Other (23) {23)

\Total 5,194 5,207 (13}

( 2007

Net Borrowing Rermaining

investments taken out to structural

in overseas hedge nat currancy

Functional currency operalions investments exposure

of the operation £m £m m
AU Dollar 2,023 2,023

Euro 1,888 1,613 275
US Dotar 97 97

Other 4 4

kTOtaW 4,012 3,733 2?9)

As at 31 December 2008 and 31 Decernber 2007 there are no
material net currency expgsures in the non-trading book relating
to transactional {or non-structural) positions that would give rise
to net currency gans or losses,

Trading

The Group's market risk trading activities are principally
conducted by Treasury Diviston. This Group activity is subject
to a Trading Book Policy Staterment, which is approved by the
Board, and limits set by the Group Market Risk Committee.

Treasury trading primarily centres around two activities:
proprietary trading and trading on the back of business flows.
Both activities incur market risk, the majority being interest rate
and foreign exchange rate exposure. tn addition, a number of
marketable assets held as part of the liquidity risk management
framework are also held in trading books. Such activity gives
rise to market risk as a result of movements in credit spread.

The Group employs several complementary techniques to
measure and control trading activities including: Value at Risk
(VaR), sensitivity analysis, stress testing and position limits.

The VaR medel, used as part of the Group's management of
trading activity, expresses market risk to 99% confidence using
a one day holding period. The number provides an indication
of the maximum mark-to-market loss which, to this level of
confidence, might be incurred on a single day given the size

of current trading positions. It is computed using a historical
simulation approach and a one year history of price data.

The underlying assumption of VaR s that future price volatility
and correlation will not differ significantly from that previously
observed. it also implicitly assumes that all positions are
sufficiently liquic to be realisable within the chosen one day
holding period.

VaR gives no indication of tha size of any loss that could accur
from extreme adverse prices changes (le, outside the chosen
confidence level). For these reasons, stress testing is employed
1o simulate the effect of selected adverse market movemants.
Three different types of stress tests are conducted:

- historical scenarios;
- defined scenarios tallored to key vuinerabilities; and
— extreme shocks to single risk factors.

Such measures are particularly relevant when market conditions
are abnormal and daily price movements are difficult to source.

The Group's trading market risk exposure for the year ended 31
December 2008 is analysed betow.

Owing to the unprecedented lave! of volatility in the credit
markets, VaR has been suspended as a measure for the credit
trading portfolio. Positions are now managed using sensitivity
measures. The large increase in VaR, relative to 31 December
2007, is due principally to higher price volatiiity in wholgsale
markets — the size of underlying trading positions has not
changed materially.

The regulatory capital charge for market risk trading exposures
represents only 0.85% (2007 1.87%;) of the Group's capital
hase.

For alt significant exposures VaR is calculated on a daily basis
and is used by sernior management to manage market risk. Cn
a more detailed desk and trader tevel, to increase transparency
interest rate risk relating to the trading book is principatly
managed using sensitivity methodology 1o measure exposure
and set limits, This methodology calculates the present vatus

'd 7y
As at As at Average Highest Lowest
31 Dec 2008 31 Dec 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Exposure £m £m £m tm £m £€m £m £m
Total value at risk 8.4 13.2 12.2 7.6 18.3 139 5.0 4.0
Inctuded in the above is the
Value at risk relating to:
Interest rates 8.4 47 5.5 3.0 9.1 59 28 17
Credit spread suspended 8.3 suspended 4.3 suspended 8.4 suspended 1.8
Foreign exchange 6.1 1.8 8.3 06 16.3 20 1.3 01
LEquity risk factor [ A 0.2 0.2 02 1.1 0.4 0.0 0.0
J




impact of a one basis point movement in interest rates on the
outstanding positions. Credit spread risk is managed using
posttion limits based on credit spread sensitivity. Foreign
axchange risk s principally managed by the use of position
limits. Equity risk is managed through Equity Index VaR and
position limits.

The VaR model was granted CAD2 recognition by the FSA
in December 2007 for general market risk in London for the
following risk factors:

- Interest Rate
- Foreign Exchange
-~ Equity

It is validated by daily backtesting against observed P&L both at
the total {diversified) level and at sub-portfolio levels.

Derivatives

In the normat course of business, the Group uses a fmited
range of derivative instruments for both trading and non-trading
purposes. The principal derivative instruments used are interest
rate swaps, interast rate options, cross currency swaps, forward
rate agreements, credit derivatives, forward foreign exchange
contracts and futuras. The Group uses derivatives as arisk
management tool for hadging interest rate and foreign exchange
rate rigk.

The Group's activity in derivatives is controliad within risk
management iimits set by the Beard and overseen by the
relevant Group Risk Committees. Details of derivative contracts
outstanding at the year end are included in Note 14 to the
Accounts on pages 60 to 82.

Liquidity Risk

The risk that the Group does not have sufficient financial
resources to meet its obligations when they are due or will
have to do so at excessive cost.

(Liquidity and funding risk information is coflated at divisional
and entity levels for submission Inlo the consolidated HBOS
Group position. This consolidated information & used to
manage liquidity and funding risk at the HBOS Group level,
Although the Bank forms a significant part of the HBOS Group,
managerment of liquidity and funding risk is not undertaken at
group sub-consalidation level. Additionally, as HBOS pic, the
holding company, is an important funding veficle for the HBOS
Group its exclusion from any funding information presents a
distorted view of the overall Group funding position. Accordingly,
the information presented below is based on an extract from the
HBOS Group Risk Report).

Liquidity risk is governad by the Group Liguicity Policy
Staterment which is approved by the Board and defines the core
principles for identifying, measuring, managing and monitering
liquidity risk across the Group. Detalled liquidity risk framewaork
documents and limit structures are in place for the Group’s
operations, where liquidity is managed on a Group basis,

and for overseas banking units subject to specific regulatory
requirements. The responsibility for oversight and management
of Liquidity risk is delegated to the Group Capital Committee
{GCC).
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Policy is reviewed at least annually to ensure its continued
relevance to the Group’s current and planned operations.
Operaticnal iquidity managament is delegated to Treasury. The
authority to set specific limits and guidelines and responsibility
for monitoring and controlling liquidity Is delegated by the GCC
to the Group Funding and Ligquidity Committee (GFLC).

The Group's banking operations in the UK should comply with
the FSA's Sterling Stock Ligquidity approach for sterling fiquiclity
management and regulatory reporting. A key efement of the
FSA's Sterling Stock Liquidity Policy is that a bank should hold
a stock of high quality iquid assets that can be sold or used via
repo, quickly and discraetly in order to replace funding that has
been withdrawn dus 10 an actual or perceived problemn with
the bank. The abjective is that this stock enables the bank to
continue business, whilst providing an opportunity to arrange
more permanant funding solutions. Limits on the five day sterling
net wholesale outflow and the minimum level of stack liquidity
have been agreed with the FSA. HBOS should also adhere to
the requirements of other regulatory authorities including the
Australian Prudential Reguiatory Authority (APRA), the Irish
Financial Regulator and the Office of the Compiroller of the
Currency in the Unitea States, in whose juriscictions the Group
has branches or subsidiaries.

The internai approach to liguidity management, which has
been in place for severat years, goes beyond the regulatory
requiremants. The approach lacks at the forecast cash flows
across al currencies and at longer timeframes than the
regulatory norms. At 31 December 2008, the Group's fiquidity
portiolio of marketable assets was £77.3obn (2007 £67.0bm), of
which £38.5bn (2007 £13.4bn) has been used for repo. The
liquidity portfolio is recorded in Treasury and predominantly
comprises Treasury debt securities, exciuding Grampian and
Landale.

Details of the Treasury debt securities portiolio are disclosed
on page 9. The assets in the figuidity portfolio ara treated in two
farms.

Firstly, assets known to be eligible under hormal arrangements
with the Bank of England, the European Central Bank and the
Federal Reserve, Secondly, a substantial poal of high quality
assets that allow us to manage through periods of stress taking
into account the likely behaviours of depositors and wholesale
markets. These approaches are supported by a liguidity
framework that includes:

~ funding diversity criteria focusing on retail, other customer and
wholesale sources;

- sight to one week and sight to one month mismatch limits
as a percentage of total wholesals funding for alt major
currencies and for all currenciss in aggregate;

- targets on the apporopriate balance of short to medium term
wholesale funding; and

- criteria and limits on marketable assets, by asset class
for Sterling, US.Dollars, Euros, other currencies and for all
currencies in aggregate.
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Risk Management

continued

Daily monitoring and control processes are in place to address
both statutory and prudential iquidity requirerments. In addition,
the framewark has two other important components:

- Firstly, HBOS stress tests its potential cash flow mismatch
position under various scenarios on an cngoing basis. The
cash flow mismatch position considers on-balance sheet
cash flows, commitments received and granted, and material
derivative cash flows. Specifically, commitments granted
include the pipeline of new business awaiting completion as
well as other standby or revolving credit facilities. Behaviourat
adjustments are developed, evaluating how the cash flow
position might change under each stress scenario to derive
a stressed cash flow position. Scenarics cover both HBOS
name specffic and systemic difficulties, The scenarios and the
assumptions are reviewed at least annually t¢ gain assurance
they continue to ba relevant to the nature of the business.

- Secondly, the Group has a Liquidity Contingency Plan
embedded within the Group Liguidity Policy Statement which
has been designed to identify amerging liquidity concemns at
an early stage, so that action can be taken to avoid a more
serious crisis developing. This is achieved through the use of
Early Warning Indicators (EWIs}.

Clear guidelines are sat out for the management escalation
process in the event of EWIs triggering and the actions to be
taken (short and medium term), should such an event take
piace.

In response to the market dislocation that started in the second
half of 2007 and intensified in September 2008, the Group

has increased vigilance by operating under full contingency
arrangements including daily monitaring of funding and liquidity
positions with GCC meeting on a weekly basis to monitor and
manage the Group balance shest.

Funding

The wholesale funding capacity of the Group is dependent upon
factors such as the strength of the balance sheet, eamings,
asset quality, ratings and market position, as well as market
sentiment and perception, most evident in share and debt price

volatility.
" As at . As at\
31.12.2008 31.12.2007
Ebn £bn
Loans and advancas to customers 435.2 430.0
Customer accounts 222.3 243.2
Customner lending less customer accounts 212.9 186.8
Customer accounts as a % of loans
\ and advances to custormers 51.0% 56.6%

It has been the Group's policy to manage its balance sheet
profile to ensure customer deposits sourced outside Treasury
represent a significart component of overall funding, and GFLC
directs and co-ordinates the activities of the Divisions in raising
liabilities from a range of sources.

In order to strengthen the Group's funding positicn, HBOS has
over tha last few years diversified its funding sources, and also

lengthened the maturity profile of market sensitive funding. This
has been achieved through:

- widening the whotesale investor base and product set;

- building and maintaining a term issuance programme
- securitisation, covered bonds, Medium Term Note
programmes; and

- tilising the geographic diversity of New York and Sydney as
funding hubs for the Group.

The ability of the HBOS Group to access wholesale funding
sources and raise retail deposits on favourable economic terms
is dependent on a variety of factors, including a number outside
of its control, such as general market conditions including

the state of UK and global finance markets, an increase in
competitive behaviour, and canfidence in the UK banking
systern in general or the HBOS Group in particular.

Following speculation on HBOS's future in mid-September,
HBOS suffered deposit cutflows, further increasing the Group's
reliance on wholesale funding markets, The majority of these
deposit outflows were non-bank financial institutions and large
corporates, rather than persenal account customers, In recent
menths this position has stabilised with net inflows evident
following the announcement of the proposed transaction with
Lioyds TSB.

In wholesale markats, the HBOS Group has previously looked
to achieve a geographically diverse investor base and product
set of an appropriate maturity profile to ensure it is not overly
exposed to short-term market cislocation,

As & result of the increasingly turbulent conditions in the global
financial markets in the second half of 2008, there has been

a significant deterioration in the inter-bank and term funding
markets and a consequent material reduction in the availability
of longer-term funding. As a result, HBOS has had o source
more shorter-term and overnight funding, with a consequent
increase of refinancing risk.

In recent months, the strain in the financial systems has
increased substantially, leading to a significant tightening in
market liquidity and the threat of a more marked deterioration

in the giobal eccnomic outlook, with a consequent increase in
recourse to liguidity schemes provided by central banks. While
varicus governments, including the UK Government, have taken
substantial measures 1o ease the current crisis in liquidity, such
ag the measures annaunced in the UK an 8 October 2008 and
13 October 2008, there can be no assurance that these global
measures will succeed in improving the funding and liquidity of
the markets in which the major hanks, including HBOS, operate.

HBOS, as a wholly owned subsidiary, will be dependent on
Lloyds Banking Group for funding and expects reliance for the
foreseeable future on the continued availahility of central bank
liquidity facilities {particularly those with the Bank of England) as
well as HM Treasury’s guarantee scheme for short and medium-
term debt issuance.

The Group's wholesale funding sources are shown in the tables
below. Tables are prepared on the basis that “retall” is defined
using the current statutory definition, ie, administered rate
products. Wholesale funding, whean issued in a foreign currency
but swapped into Sterling, is included at the swap exchanged
amount. Wholesale funding is shown excluding any repo activity
and the funding raised in the names of the conduits.
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- As 3t 31.12.2008 As al 3112.2007 )
Instrument £bn %% £on %
Bank Deposits 13.7 a3 331 6.7
Deposits from Customers 24.0 - 5.7 27.8 56
Debt Securities in issue:

Certificates of Deposit 510 12.2 83.8 12.9
Madium Term Nctes 45.7 10.9 43.2 87
Coveored Bonds 201 7.0 24.4 49
Commercial Paper 89 24 18.8 34
Securitisation 35.8 8.6 459 9.3
170.5 40.8 194.2 392

Subordinated Dabt 22.2 5.3 181 3.7
Other 7.6 18 6.9 1.3
Total Wholesale 238.0 56.9 2801 56.5
Retall 180.1 431 2154 435

\ Total Group Funding 418.1 100.0 495.5 100.0

g As at 31.12.2008 Asat 31‘12.2007\
Wholesale funding = Currency £bn Y% £bn %
US dollar 52.8 22.2 105.2 378
Euro 87.4 36.7 796 28.4
Steriing 80.1 33.7 70.3 251
Other 17.7 7.4 25.0 8.9

Jotal Wholesale Funding 238.0 100.0 2801 100.0J

s N

As at 31.12.2008 As af 31.12 2007
Wholesale funding ~ Residual Maturity ebn % Lo %
{ess than one year 19.4 50.2 166.2 58.3
One to two years 25.2 10.6 218 77
Two to five years 441 18.5 46.3 8.5
More than 5 yaars 49.3 207 46.0 16.5

J 'otal Wholesale Funding 238.0 100.0 2801 100.0)

The increased use of repo activity as a funding tool has materially impacted the levels of wholesale funding shawn in the tables.

The following tables reconcite whiclesale figures reported above with those In the Statutory Balance Shest.

4 interest N

Accruals and
Other Statutory
Risk Repas and Accounting Balance
Report Conduits  Adjustmemts Sheet
Accounting Classification - as at 31,12.20038 £bn £bn £hn £bn
Debt Securities in lssue 170.5 3.0 14.9 188.4
Sub Dabt and Other 29.8 0.3 30.%
Deposits by Customers 20441 18.2 222.3
Bank Deposits 13.7 70,9 12.6 97.2
\Total 418.1 92.1 y
' Interest
Apcruals and
Other Statutory
Risk Repos and Accouniing Balance
Report Conduits Adjustiments Sheet
Accounting Classification - as at 31.12.2007 thn £bn £hn £bn
Dabt Securities in Issue 194.2 12.0 0.3 206.5
Sub Debt and Other 250 0.7 24.3
Deposits by Customers 243.2 2432
Bank Beposits 331 7.8 086 4.5
LTota! 495.5 19.8 y
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Risk Management

continued

Conduits

HBOS sponsors two conduits, Grampian and Landale, which
are special purpose vehicles that invest in highly rated assets
and funds via the Asset Backed Commercial Paper (ABCP)
market, At 31 Decermnber 2008, investments held by Grampian
totalled £21.7bn and £0.7on of assets held by Landale were
consolidated. Grampian is a long establishad, high grade credit
investrnent vehicle that invests in diversified Asset Backed
Securities, of which 75.9% are rated AAA by S&P and Aaa

by Moocdy's. Grampian has a liquidity line in place with HBOS
which covers all of the assets and programme wide credit
enhancement is also provided by HBOS. Grampian has been
fully consolidated into the balance sheet. Landale holds both
assets originated from the Group balance sheet and third party
transactions. Landale has liguidity lines from HBOS and from
third party banks, and therefore the former, but not the latter, are
consclidated into the balance sheet.

In 2008, there have been occasions when Grampian and
Landale {in respect of assets backed by HBOS liquidity lines)
have declined 10 issue Asset Backed Commercial Paper.

At these times, HBOS has funded the conduits through the
available liquidity lines rather than through the ABCP markst,
At 31 December 2008, HBOS had provided funding to the
Grampian and Landale conduits of £20.4bn,

(End of information that forms an integral part of the audited
financial staterments).

Operational Risk

Operational risk exists in the normal conduct of business
and is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes or systems or from people related

or external events. Examples of potential sources of
operational risk include fraud, system reliability, human
error, failure of key suppliers, IT security, business
continuity, change management, operational outsourcing
and failure to comply with legislation or regulation.

The Board has approved an Operationat Risk Paticy that
establishes the framework for managing operational risk. The
main components of the Framework include risk and contral
assessment, internal loss reporting, capture of risk event
information, key risk indicator monitoring and evaluation of
external events.

The Group Operationat Risk Committee is one of the four
Executive Risk Committees chaired by the Group Risk Director,
It is attanded by senior executives from the Divisions and Group
specialist areas. The committee considers the management

of issues and exposures, recommends the appropriate capital
requirement, approves policies and standards and provides
oversight of tha operational risk communities.

A key enhancement to the infrastructure has been to focus on
the explicit risk management of specialist areas that underpin
the HBOS Operational Risk Framework. Each specialist risk
area is supparted by a relevant specialist Group Function. The
specialists’ role is to ensure that appropriate risk management
practice is cperating across their ‘community’. The key elements
of the Group specialists’ roles are:

-~ Set and maintain policy,

- Provide opinion on the effectiveness of risk management for
their area of speciatism.

The Group Business Risk function designs and maintains
Group-wide risk systems and ¢o-ordinates the specialist

areas. A specialist portfolio management team undertakes

the detaited modelling required o assess fisk exposure and
appropriate levels of capital using internal and external loss
event information. External information is available through
HBOS membership of the Operational Risk Data Exchange
{ORX). ORX provides anonymous information from a number of
internationat hanks which assist in the identification, assessment
and modelling of operational risk.

The FSA granted HBOS Advanced status under Basel il and
conseqguently the Group utilises the Advanced Measurement
Approach (AMA) for regulatory capital reporting in most of
its businesses. HBOS does not currently use insurance or
expecied losses to offsel its reguiatory capital requirement.

Regulatory Risk

The Financial Services Authority is the main regulator for HBOS,
although the Group’s international businesses in the USA,
Australia and Ireland are subject to direct scrutiny from the

US Federal Reserve and the OCC, APRA and The Financial
Regulator respectively.

HBOS understands that consumers bave a choloe of supplier
and product and are more demanding of financial services
providers. The Group supports the FSA's Treating Custormers
Fairly (TCF) initiative and has set clear principles for doing
business. This is supported by ongoing maintenance of
procedures across the Group, with associated enhancement
and development where necessary. The objective is to mest
the requirements of shareholders through meeting the needs of
customers. The Group's TCF self-assessment was sent to the
FSA on 30 December and HBOS awaits feedback comment.

HBOS is alert to the wider, cumulative picture of regulatory
change and utllises centralised expertise in the area of
ragulatory and legat compiiance, specificaliy to:

- Identify and assess the impact of, respond tc and where
possible influence the direction of regulatory developments on
behalf of HBOS; :

- Lead the development and monitaring of the application of
specific Group-wide policies and standzards; and

- Oversee the management, support and co-ordination of the
liaison and interaction with HBOS regulatory stakeholdears
across alt its Internaticnal businesses.

The impact of regulatory change is reported across all Executive
Risk Committees with specific referance to the discipline
aftected and at Group level to Audit Committes and the Board.



(The information set out below ending before the section entitled
‘Capital Requirements’ on page 28 forms an integral pert of

the audited financial statements as described in the Financial
Staternents section in the Accounting Poiicies on page 40.)

Capital Management

Capital management within HBOS has Board visibility and is
managed primarily through the capital planning process, which
in turn forms part of the averall Group Business Plan, The capital
planning process assists in determining the optimai ameunt

of capital that should be held by the Group and the most
appropriate mix between the different components of capital,
subject to ragulatory limits. The day to day management of the
Group's capital is delegated to the Group Capital Committee
with support from underlying committess, Including the Group
Regulatory Capital Adeguacy Committee.

The Group Capital Committee is responsible for esiabiishing
the strategic and management framawork for the assessment
and allocation of capital within the paramaters set by the Board
tnrough the agreed terms of the Group Business Plan and the
approved Risk Appetite. The committee moniters compliance
with the capital plan, including stress and scenario analysis,
contingsncy planning and capital rmanagement strategies.

The Group Capital Committee supports wider business
planning and decisions by analysing business levels that are
sustainable under internal capital generation, what options are
avaiable with regards to the levels of capital generated by the
business and also reviews and provides oversight an business
cases that are put forward for inorganic activity.

As part of its capital management remit, the Group Capital
Commitiee also ensures compliance with the Group Capital and
Funding Policy. This policy is reviewed annually and approved by
the Board.

The palicy covers the foftowing key areas:

- capital planning management process and responsibilities;
- the typa and level of capital requirad and held by the Group;
- monitoring and controling capital plans and forecasts; and
- subsidiary regulated entities and capital transferability.

For the latter, the policy governs the transferability of capiiat
around the Group subject to guiding principles which require
that all subsidiary regulated entities within the Group must

hold sufficient capital to ensure that they continue o meet

their individual regulatory capital ratios as imposed by the locat
regulator. Each regulated entity is required to get out their capital
plans for approvai by the Group Capital Committes.

Surpius capital held at regulated entity levels may be released
up to HBOS pic level in the form of dividenas or capital
repatriation.

The capital planning process ensures Divisicns and reguiated
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legal entity 'owners’ commit to and are monitored against key
drivers, inctuding:

- Risk Weighted Assets an¢ Expectec Losses;
- other deductions from capital;

- non-equity capital anc gearing; and

- Surplus capita and agreed utilisation,

The capital plan is monitored on a continuous basis. It s
updated formally as part of the annuat planning and quarterly
reforecasting cycles. in ling with the Group Business Plan,
with additional revisions made in the intervening periods as
necessary.

The capital plan is stressed under demanding economic
scenarios with both common and specific univariate sensitivity
analysis undertakan.

The Group Capital Committee recelves a monthly update
and review of the capital position of the Group. Surmmary
management information is also passed to the Exatutive
Committee and the Board. A recongiliation of monthly actual
data to forecast is also compleied with commentary on
variances and submitted to the Group Capitat Committee.

Throughout 2008, the Group Capital Committee has met
weekly in order to maintain an up to date view of market
caonditions and key capital ratios and 1o ensure issugs arising are
identifiec and actioned promptly. The Group's on-going capital
strength has been a core focus of the Group Capital Cornmittee
during the year.

The Group Regulatory Capital Adequacy Commitiee is
responsible for supporting the Group Capital Committee in its
capital management role. It achieves this through establishing
pelicies and minimum standards to measure and monitor

the financial capital resource reguirements of the Group in
accordance with the Group's risk profile and appropriate
regulatory requirements. The committes relies on input from
the specialist executive risk committess (the Group Credit Risk
GCommittee, the Group Market Risk Committes and the Group
Oparational Risk Committee).

Where capital requires to be raised, it is the Group's policy to
issue capital in a range of different forms and also from diverse
sources to spread the investor base. RBOS ple raises the non-
equity Tier 1 capital and subordinated debt for all the Group's
businesses, with the exception of Clerical Medical which is
permitted to raise capital separately as part of the overalt Group
capttal plan to spread the investor base for subordinated debt.

The types of capital held by the Group are subject to regulatory
[imits which have been established to ensure that restrictions arg
placed on the extent to which certain types of capital, such as
innovative Tier 1, are eligible for inclusion within a firm's capital
resources.
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Risk Management

continued

The regutatory limits specify that:
- at least 50 per cent of Tler 1 Capital must be ‘core’ Tier 1;

- the amount of innovative Tier 1 cannot exceed 15 per cent of
overall Tier 1 Capital;

- gualifying Tier 2 Capital cannot exceed Tier 1 Capital; and

- qualifying dated subordinated loan capital may not exceed 50
per cent of Tier 1 Capital.

There are also limitations on the amount of collectively assessed
impairment provisions which may be included as part of Tier 2
Capital.

The principal forms of capital are included in the following
balances con the consolidated balance sheet: called up share
capital, share premium account, other reserves, retained
earnings and other borrowed funds,

in Juty 2008 HBOS raised £4.0bn (net) of capital through a
rights issue. Subsequent to the year end a further £11.3bn {net)
of capital was raised. This comprised of £8.3bn of ordinary
shares raised through a Placing and Open Offer exercise
supported by the UK Government and £3.0bn of preference
shares subscribed to HM Treasury,

The latter capital raising exercise was made in support of the
Proposed Government Funding intiative devised to stabilise the
UK banking systern and was conditional on the completion of
the acquisition of HBOS by Lloyds TSB Group ple.

{End of information that forms an integral part of the audited
financial statements.)

Capital Requirements

The FSA requires each bank and barking group to maintain
adequate capital resources to meet their total capitat
requirements {Pillar 1 and Pillar 2) under the Base! Il Framework.
This includes any additional capital requirements identified
through the firm's or group's Individual Capitat Guidance.

The FSA supervises HBOS cn a regulatory consclidated basis
and as such receivas information on the capital adequacy of,
and sets capital requirements for, HBOS as a whole. A similar
function is performed at sub-group levels within the business,
including at Bank of Scotiand Groug level.

Individuat banking subsidiaries are directly regulated by
either the FSA or their focal supervisors, who set their capital
adequacy requirements, This inctudes supervision on a 'sclo
consolidation' basis.

HBOS must at alk times monitor and demonstrate compliance
with the relevant regulatory capital requirements of the FSA.
The Group has in place, extensive processes and controls to
menitor the Group’s capital adequacy and frequent reporting of

" the Group's capital position and associated data and analysis
is mads to the FSA under the Integrated Regulatory Reporting
Regime.

Capital Structure
The capital structure of HBOS is divided into two tiers:

- Tier 1 Capital comprises shareholders’ funds, innovative Tier
1 securities and minority interasts, after adjusting for items
reflected in shareholders’ funds which are treated differently
for the purposes of capital adequacy. The book values of
goodwill and intangible assats are deducted in arriving at the
Tier 1 Capital position.

- Tier 2 Capital comprises qualifying subordinated loan capital,
certain collectively assessed impairment provisions, and
unrealised gains arising on the fair valuation of equities held as
available for salz.

In addition, the excess of Expected Loss over and above any
accounting impairment provisions made is deducted 50% from
Tier 1 Capital and 50% from Tier 2 Capital. Other regulatory
deductions made on a similar basis relate to securitisation
positions held and material holdings.

From the total of Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capita! the carrying amounts
of unconsolidated investments, investments in the capital of
other banks, and certain regulatory items are deducted.

Movemnents in Tier 1 Capital and the capital structure of the
Group are given on page 109.

Pillar 2 Capital Requirements

In order to satisfy the requirements of Pillar 2, HBOS is required
to perform an internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
(ICAAPY,

The HBOS ICAAP is based upon a 'Piliar 1 Plus' approach
whereby the 'Pillar 17 regulatory capital requirements for Credit
Risk, Operational Risk and Market Risk (Trading Book) are
supplementad by consistent assessments of the key risks not
captured under Pillar 1, of which the most material are Pension
Obligation Risk and Concentration Risk,

The individual risk assessments are aggregated with no
allowance for inter-risk diversification, generating a totat internal
capital assessment which is incrementally greater than the
total Pillar 1 amount. The total minimum regulatory capital
requirement is set by the FSA taking into account this internal
assessment. A strong capitat buffer, defined as the amount

by which the total capltal resources exceed the total capital
requirement, is held.

The current capital planning forecasts show a satistactory
capital buffer even in a deteriorating economic scenario,
significantly bolstered by the past year end capital injection.

Piltar 3 Disclosures

The HBOS ple Basel i Pillar 3 Disclosures for the year ended
31 December 2008 will be published onling during the second
quarter of 2009.

These disclosures will reprasent the first full set of Pillar 3
disclosures to be pubfished by HBOS under the Basel Ii
Framewark.,

Thea purpose of Pillar 3 is to communicate the firm's risk
management practices, its approach to capital management,
its capital resources and Pillar 1 capital requirements and to
provide a detailed analysis of its credit risk exposures,

Pillar 3 disciosures build on a number of equivatent disclosures
made within the Annual Report and Accounts, providing greater
detail and analysis.



The Directors prasent the Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31 Decambar 2008,

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of financial
services. A list of the main subsidiary undertakings, and the
nature of their business, is given in Note 19 on page 69.

Post-Balance Sheet Event

On 16 January 2008, the entire issued share capital of HBOS
plc {the parent company of the Bank) was acguired by Lioyds
Barking Group ple pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement
under sections 895 to 899 of the Companies Act 2006.

Business Review

The Gompanies Act 2006 requires the Directors’ Report to
inciude a Business Review of the Bank, giving a fair review of
the business of the Group and a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing it. These are reviewed in the
Business and Financial Review on pages 2 to 10 and the Risk
Management report on pages 11 to 28. The information in both
of these sections, which fulfils the requirements of the Business
Review, is incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference.

The Annual Report and Accounts, including this Directors’
Report, have been prepared solely for the Bank’s members as
a body. To the extent permitted by law, the Bank, its Directars,
employees, agents and advisers disclaim liability to any other
persons in respect of information contained in the Annual
Report and Accounts, By their nature, statemnents containing
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, and any cther forward-
looking statements, Involve uncertainty, since futlre avenis

and circumstances can cause resuits and developments to
differ materially from those anticipated. The forward-locking
staternents reflect the knowledge and information available at
the date of preparation of the Annual Report and Accounts and
the Bank undertakes no obligation to update these forward-
iooking statements. Nothing in the Annual Report and Accounts
shall be construed as a profit forecast.

Results and Dividends
The loss before taxation for the year ended 31 December 2008

amounted to £10,635m {2007 profit before taxation of £4,952m).

The final dividend of £1,205m in respact of the year ended 31
December 2007 was paid in May 2008. No final divigend is
being proposed in respact of the yaar ended 31 December
2008.
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Directors’ Report

Directors

The Directors in office at the date of this report are W C G
Berndt, Sir Victor Blank’, E Brown, J E Daniels!, J Dawson, P
A Gore-Randal, P N Green', Sir Julian Horn-Smith?, A G Kane',
Lord Leitch?, Sir David Manning', C J McCalf, J P du Plessig!,
M A Scicluna’, G T Tate!, T J W Teokey!, D J Watkins and H A
Wair!.

C W Dunstone stood down from the Beard on 28 April 2008.

R J Cousins, P J Cummings, M H Elis, Sir Ron Garrick, A J
Hobson, A H Hornbyy, K E D Jones, J E Mack, G Matthew,

¢ L McConville, K A Nealon and Lerd Stevenson all served
tnroughout the year and resigned from the Board on 16 January
2008.

Corporate Governance

The Board met frequently during the year, at which meetings
the most important decisions affecting the Company were
taken. The Board also oversaw the Gompany's performance
and set the framework for how authority and accountability was
delegated throughaout the Group.

The Board included, throughout the year, 2 balance of Executive
Directors who managed the business on a day-to-day basis and
independent Non-executive Directors. The roles of Chairman
and Chief Exacutive were separate. The Board was also
supparted by a structurg of committees.

Going Concern .

As set out in the 'Principles Underlying Going Concern
Assumption' of the Basis of Preparation section of the Notes

to the Accounts, the Directors are satisfied that ths Group has
adequate resources to continue in business for the {oreseeable
futura and conseguently the going concern basis continues to
be appropriate in praparing the accounts.

Employees

The principal employer for UK based employees is HBOS plc.
During the year, the HEOS Group's Total Reward strategy
sought to align colleagues’ reward with personal, Divisional and
Group performance. A number of employee share schemes
operated throughout the year,

During the year HBOS used a multi-media approach when
communicating with colleagues throughout the Group. This
included e-mail, electronic and printed magazines, intranets,
business television and face-to-face communication. A Group-
wide electronic magazine, entifled HBOS Today, was used

to update colleagues on key business news. It was issued as
required (rather than on a set publishing cycle). In 2008, 37
issues wera published.

! appainted 16 January 2009,
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Directors’ Report

continued

Topical news stories were also placed on the Company's
intranet site. The views of HBQOS cclleagues were sought on a
regular basis, most notably through opinion surveys conducted
by MORLI and through regular consuliation with the recognised
trade unions ACCORD and Unite, with whom the Company has
entered into a partnership agreement.

The Group is recognised by Jobcentre Plus as a 'two-tick'
employer, actively seeking applications for employment from
disabled people and guaranteeing an interview whare disabled
applicants meet the essential griteria for the role being applied
for. In the event of an existing cotleague becoming disabled,
HBOS warks with external specialists to ensure that all possible
reasonable adjustments are made to aflow the colleague

to continue in their existing role. f, after making all possible
adjustmeénts, a colleague is not able to continue in their current
role, HBOS will look at suitable altemative roles within the
Group and provide retraining accordingly. Training and career
development opportunities are open to all colleagues including
disabled colleagues and Group policies are designed with
inclusion of disabled cafleagues in mind.

Payment Policy

The Bank’s suppliers are paid through HBOS plc’s centralised
Accounts Payable department, For the forthcoming period the
Group's policy for the payment of suppliers will be as follows:

- Payment terms will be agreed at the start of the refationship
with the supplier and will only he changed by agreement,

- Standard payment terms to suppliers of goods and services
will be 30 days from the date of a correct invoice that has
been received for satisfactory goods or services which have
been ordered and received unless other terms are agreed in
& contract;

~ Payment will be made in accordance with the agreed terms or
in accordance with the law if no agresment has been made;
and

— Suppliers will be advised without delay when an invoice is
contested and disputes will be settled as guickly as possible.

Trade creditors outstanding at 31 December 2008 represented
19 days of purchase.

HBOS plc compiies with the Better Payment Practice Code.
Information regarding this Code and its purpose can be
obtained from the Better Payment Practice Group's website at
wWww.payortime.co.uk.

Charitable and Other Donations
The Group made no charitable donations during the year,

Properties

The Directors are of the opinion that the current market value
of the Group's properties is not significantly different from the
amount at which they are included in the balance sheet.

Auditors

A resolution to appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
auditors of the Company in the place of the outgcing auditors
will ba put to the 2009 Annual General Meeting.

The Dirsctors who held office at the date of approval of this
Dirgctors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware:

- there is nc relevant audit information (as defined by section
234ZA of the Companies Act 1985) of which the Company's
Auditors are unaware; and

- each Director has taken all the steps that they ought ta have
taken as a Diractor to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors
are aware of that information,

On behalf of the Board

Harry F Baines
Company Secreta
26 February 2009
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect
of the Annual Report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Arnual Report
and the Group and parent Company financial statements in
accordance with applicable faw.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and
parent Company financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law they are required to prepare the Group financial
statements in accordance with International Financlal Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adoptad by the EU and applicable iaw
and have elected to prepare the parent Company financial
statements on the same basis.

The Group and parent Company financial statements are
required by law and IFRSs as adopted by the EU to present
fairly the financial position of the Group and the parent
Company and the perfarmance for that period; the Companies
Act 1985 provides in relation to such financial staterments that
references in the ralevant part of that Act to financial statements
giving a true and fair view are references to their achieving a fair
presentation.

in preparing each of the Group and parent Compary financial
statements, the Direciors are required 10:

-~ select suitable accounting paiicies and then apply them
consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;

- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis
unless it is inappropriate to prasume that the Group and the
parent Company will continue in business.

The Direclors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that aisclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the parent Company and enabie them to
ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 1985. They have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and ather iregularities.

Under applicable law, the Directors are also responsible for
preparing a Directors” Report that complies with that faw.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and

integrity of the corporate and financial information includad on
the Company's wabsite. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation ana dissemination of financial statements may ciiffer
from legislation: in other iurisdictions.
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Independent auditors’ report
to the members of Bank of Scotland plc

We have audited the Consolidated and Bank financial statements
{the financial statements) of Bank of Scottand ple for the year
ended 31 Becemnber 2008 which comprise the Consolidated
Income Statement, the Consclidated and Bank Batance

Sheets, the Consclidated and Bank Gash Flow Statements, the
Consolidated and Bank Statements of Recognised Income and
Expense, and the related notes. These financial statements have
been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein,

This report is made soiely to the Bank's members, as a body,

in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985.
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state

to the Bank's members those matters we are required to state
fo them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose, To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Bank and the Bank's
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed. -~

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The Directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report,
Diractors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable faw and International Financial Reperting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EL are set out in the
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 31.

Cur responsibility is to audit the financial statements in
accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial
statemnents have been propetly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 1885 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report

to you whether in our opinion, the information given in the
Directors’ Report is consisterst with the financial statements. The
information given in the Directars’ Report ingludes that specific
information presentad in the Annual Report that Is cross referred
frorn the Business Review section of the Directors’ Report. -

in addition we report to you if, in our opinion, tha Bank has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by taw regarding diractors’ remuneration
and cther transactions is not disclosed.

We read the other information: contained in the Annual Report
and consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
staternenis. We consider the implications for cur report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements, Our responsibifities
do not extend to any other information,

Basis of audit opinion

We sonducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test
hasis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
signfiicant estimates and judgements made by the directors in
the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and Bank's
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain gl the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficlent evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other iregularity or
error.

In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adeguacy of
the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion
In our apinion:

- the Consolidated financial staterments give a true and fair view,
in accordance with IFRSs as adopied by the EU, of the state of
the Group’s affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of its loss for
the year then ended;

- the Group financial statements have baen properly prepared in
accerdance with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
tAS Regulation;

- the Bank financial statements give a trug and fair view, in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of
the state of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2008,

- the Bank financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companiegs Act 1985; and

- the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with
the financial statements.

Vo Awdi-Ne

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
Edinburgh

26 February 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Nolas tm tm
Interest income 39,332 36,354
Interest expense {31,039 {28,728)
Net interest income 1 8,203 7625
Fees and commission income 2,208 2,360
Fees and commisSicn expense {382) (396)
Neat earned premiums on insurance contracts 215 245
Net trading (expensel/income 2 {2,963) 185
Net investment income refated to insurance and investment business 343 a7
Other operating income 1,665 2,292
Net operating income 3 9,070 12,349
Change in Investment contract fiabiliies’ 17 {7}
Net claims incurred on insurance contracts (76) {105)
Net change in insurance contract liabilities 22 {21)
Adrminigtrative oxpenses 5 {4,253} (4,187}
Depreciation and amortisation:
Intangible assets other than goodwil 20 (153) {130}
Property and equipment 21 {211} (218)
Qperating lease assets 23 (1,178) (985)
(1,542) {1,333}
Goodwill impairment 20 {142)
Operating expenses {5,974) (5,653)
impairment iosses on loans and advances 10 {a) (9,857) {2,012}
Impairment lasses on investment securities 10 {b} {2,193) {(60)
Operating {loss)/profit {8,954) 4,624
Share of {loss)/profit of jointly conirclled entities 18 {651} 241
Share of logs of agsociates 18 {287)
{Loss)/profit on sale of busingsses 4 (743) a7
{Loss)/profit before taxation g (10,635] 4,652
Tax on {loss)/profit ik 2,448 (1,318}
{Loss}/profit after taxation (8,187) 3,634
Profit of subsidiary acguired with a view o resgle 4
(Loss)/profit for the year {8,187) 3,638
Attributable to:
Parent company sharshclders {8,238) 3,608
pMingrity interests 51 30
(8,187) 3,638
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2008

2008 2007

Notas tm em
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 41 2,502 2,944
items in course of collaction 445 945
Financial assets heid for trading 13 22,57 54,681
Derivative assets 14 50,517 13,794
Loans and advances to banks 12,445 4,005
Loans and advances to customers 15 473,015 460,267
Investment securities 17 67,772 51,613
Interests in jointly conirolled entities 18 970 1,367
interests in associates 18 223 372
Goadwill and other intangible assets 20 1,148 1517
Praperty and eguipment 21 1,187 1,23
trvestment properties 22 43 34
Operating lsase assets 23 3,967 4,643
Other assets 2.432 4,637
Current tax assets 865
Deferred tax agssts 24 3,182
Prepayments and accrued income 694 1,430
Total Assets 643,978 603,632
Liabilities
Ceposits by banks 97,066 41,513
Customer accounts 262,201 272,687
Financial liabilities held for trading 13 18,851 22,705
Derivative liabilities 14 40,827 12,160
Notes in circutation 957 881
Insurance contract hiabilities 24
Investment contract liabilities 98
Current tax liabitties 23 728
Deferred tax labilities 24 965
Other liabilties 2,250 2,560
Accruals and deferred income 2,306 2,894
Provisions 25 345 172
Deht securities in issue 26 188,448 206,520
Other borrowed funds 27 18,779 17,881
Total Liabilities 632,053 581,788
Shareholders' Equity
lssued share capital 28 1,324 499
Share premium 29 11,018 5,343
Other reserves 29 (4,694) 1,167
Retained sarmings 29 4,013 13,478
Shareholders’ Equity {exchuding minority interests) 11,661 21488
Minority interests 29 264 358
Totat Shareholders' Equity 29 11,9256 21,844
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity 643,978 603,632

Approved by the Board on 26 February 2009 and signed on its behalf by:

Jo Dawson Philip Gore-Randall Tim Tookey Dan Watkins
Director Director j Director

AR
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Recognised Income and Expense

As at 31 December 2008

2008 2007
£m £m
Foreign exchange translation 106 8
Available for sale investments:
Nst change in fair value (nat of tax) {5,897) (336)
Net gains transferred to the income statement {net of tax) (17) {201)
impairment recognised in income statement (net of tax] o5 17
Cash fiow hedges:
Effactive portion of changes in fair value taken to equity {net of tax) {2,801) (218)
Net losses/{gains) transferred to the income statement {net of tax) 1,844 (202}
Net expense recognised directly in equity {5,850) {1,020}
(Loss)/profit for the year {8,187} 3,538
Total recognised income and expense (14,037) 2,618
Attributable to:
Parent company sharsholders {14,099) 2.576
Minority interests 62 42
(14,037) 2,618
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes Em £m

{Loss)/profit hefore taxation (10,635) 4,952
Adjustments for:
impairment lossss on loans and advances 9,857 2,02
impairment losses cn investment securities 2,193 60
Depreciation ang amortisation 1,542 1,333
Goodwill impairment 142
Interast on other borrowed funds . 1,323 915
Movement in derivatives beld for trading 1613 (2,276}
Exchange differences ™ 74 (1,430}
Other non cash items 2,075 (914)
Net change in operating assets {35,908) {80,897)
Net change in operating liabilities 30,382 BS111
Net cash fiows from operating activities before tax 2,658 (7,134}
Income taxes paid (1,061) (792)
Cash flows from operating activities 1,597 (7.926)
Cash flows from investing activities 735 (240Q)
Cash flows from financing activities 2,743 4,516
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 5,075 (3,850}
Transfer in under HBOS Group Recrganisation {27,285)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 2,911 33,826
Clesing cash and cash equivalents 4t 7,986 2,91

™ Adjustment to bring changes between opening and closing balance sheet amounts 10 average rates. This is not done on a
carnot be determined without unreasonable expense.

line-by-line basis, as details

2008 2007
Investing Activities £m £m
Sale of other intangible assets 397 33
Purchase of other intangible assets (276) (242)
Sals of property and equipment 190 180
Purchase of property and equipment {27M) {297)
Sale of investment propertias 52
Purchase of invastment properties : (18)
Investment in subsidiaries (28}
Dispasal of subsidiaries 1,110 115
Investment in iointly controlled entities and associates {472} @371
Disposal of jeintly controlled entities and associates 57 176
Chvidends received from jointly contrallec entities 8 132
Dividends recelved from associates 10 10
Cash flows from investing activities 735 {240)

2008 2007
Financing Activities ' £m £m
Issue of ordinary shares 5,600 2,480
Issus of ather barrowed funds 3,000 5,156
Repayments of other borrowed funds {3,405) {598)
Interast on other borrowed tunds refating to servicing of tinance {1,323) (905)
Minority interest acquired 242 98
Equity dividends paid {1,228} (1.672)
Dividends paid to minority sharenolders in subsidiaries (43} 43)
Cash flows from financing activities 2,743 4,516
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2008 2007
Nates £m em
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 4 1,820 1,667
ltems in course of collection 449 890G
Financial agsets held for trading 13 22,571 52,169
Derivative assets 14 46,374 12,334
Loans and advances o banks 34,144 25,458
Loans and advances to customers 15 570,255 453,590
Investment securities 17 167,852 27,020
Intarests in jointly controlled entities 18 103 103
Investments in subsidiaries 19 4,383 3,273
Goodwill and other intangible fixed assets 20 770 783
Property and equipment 21 1,061 1,108
Operating lease assets 23 2 29
Current 1ax assets 1,180
Deferred tax assets 24 2,123 152
Cther assets 2,661 4,364
Prepayments and accrued income 565 1,292
Total Assets 796,313 584,032
Liahilities
Deposits by banks 97,001 47,321
Customer accounts 458,967 316,848
Financial liablities heid for trading 13 18,851 22,145
Derivative fiabilities 14 29,648 10,646
Notes in circulation as57 881
Current tax liabilties 544
Other liabilities 2,359 1,735
Accruals and deferred income 1,837 1,654
Previsions 25 332 135
Diebt securities in issue 26 143,456 149,188
Cther borrowed funds 27 18,082 14,855
Total Liabilities 781,580 565,853
Shareholders’ Equity
Issued share capital 28 1,324 499
Share premium 29 11,018 6,343
Other raserves 29 {2,125) 1,296
Retained eamings 29 4,516 10,041
Total Shareholders' Equity 14,733 18,178
Total Liabilitias and Shareholders’ Equity 796,313 584,032
Approved by the Board on 26 February 2009 and signed an its behalf by:

Jo Dawson Philip Gore-Randall Tim Tookey Dan Watkins
Director Director i Director
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Bank Statement of Recognised

Income and Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
£m Em
Foreign exchange translation {7}
Avallable for sale investments:
Net change in fair valug (net of tax) {2,992) {248}
Net losses/(gains) transferred to the income statement {net of tax) K} {11
Impairment recognised in income statement {net of tax) 466
Cash flow hedges:
Effective partion of changes in fair value taken fo equity {net of tax) (2,789} {209)
Net losses/{gains) transferred to the income statament {net of tax) 1,863 {290}
Net expense recognised directly in equity {3,421) (765}
{Loss)/profit for the year {4,320) 2,420
Total recognised income and expense {7,741) 1,655
Attributable to:
Parent company shareholders {7,741) 1,655
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Bank Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £m £m

{Loss)/profit before taxation {5,882) 3,452
Adjusiments for: .
Impairment iosses on loans and advances 9,621 1,857
impairment losses on investment securities 1,074 27
Impairment losses on investment in subsidiaries 107
Depreciation and amortisation 33 296
Goodwill impairment 50
Interest ¢n other borrowed funds : 1,057 784
Dividends received from subsidiaries (707}
Exchange difierences ™ 923 (728)
Movements in derivatives heid for trading (2,430} {1,385)
Other non-cash dems 1,100 (678)
Net change In operating assets (185,156} (105,225)
Net change in operating liabilities 192,333 76,703
Net cash flows from operating activities before tax 13,110 (25,584}
Income taxes paid (759) (588)
Cash flows from operating activities 12,351 (26,182)
Cash flows from investing activities (100) 178
Cash flows from financing activities 5,380 2,479
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivaients 17,631 {23,525}
Transfer in under HBCS Group Reorganisatiorn {28,084)
Opering cash and cash equivalents 1,722 53,331
Closing cash and cash eguivalents 41 19,353 1,722

™ Adjustrment to bring changes between epening and closing balance sheet amounts to average rates. This is not done on a line-by-line basis, as details
cannot be determined without unreasonable expanse.

2008 2007
Investing Activities £Em £m
Sale of other intangible assets 31 g
Purchase of other intangible assets {186) {160}
Sale of property and equipment 99 116
Purchase of property and equipment (44) {255)
investmant in subsidiaries {210)
Investment in jointly controlled entities and associates {36)
Disposal of jointly controlled entities and associates 7
Dividends received from subsidiaries 707
Cash flows from investing activities {100) 178
2008 2007
Financing Activities £Em £m
Issue of ordinary stock . 5,500 2,480
Issue of other porrowed funds 3,000 3,020
Repaymenis of other borrowed funds {870) (565)
Equity dividends paid {1,205) {1,672)
nterest on other borrawed funds relating to servicing of finance {1,045) (784}
Cash flows from financing activities 5,380 2,479
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

Financial Statements

The financial statements of Bank aof Scotland ple comprise the
Consolidated Income Statement and the Consolidated and
Bank Balance Sheets, Cash Flow Statemaents and Statements
of Recognised Income and Expense together with the related
Notes to the financial statements. The notes inciude information
contained in the Risk Management section of the Business
Review on pages 11 to 28 that are cross-referenced into the
financial staternents. These disclosures are required under

IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' relating to the
management of capitat and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments:
Disclosures' relating to the nature of risks and their management.
These disclosures form an integral part of the finangial
staternents and are prefaced as such on the respective pages.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
interpretations issued by the Internaticnal Financiat Reperting
interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as adopted by the European
Union. The standards applied by the Group and Bank are those
andorsed by the European Union and effactive at the date the
financial statements are approved by the Board, However,

the Group has not utilised the carve-out provisions in respect
of full fair vatue ang portfolio hedging of core deposits in IAS
39 'Financial Instrumenis: Recognition and Measurement' as
adopted by the Eurcpean Union and has implemented IFRIC
12 Service Concession Arrangements although this has an
immaterial effect on the financial staterments. Consequently,
the financial statements comply with International Financiai
Reporting Standards.

The financial staternents also comply with the relevant provisions
of Part VIl of the Companies Act 1985, as amended by the
Companies Act 1885 (International Accounting Standards and
Other Accounting Amendments) Regulations 2004,

Basis of Preparation

a) Principles Underlying Going Concern Assumption

During 2008, global financial markets experienced difficuit
conditions which have been characterised by a marked
reduction in liquidity. As a consaguence cf this, governments
and central banks carried out a series of actions to address the
lack of liquidity within their respective banking systems. In the
UK these actions have included the introduction by the Bank of
Engtand of liquidity suppart, through schemes {collectively “Bank
of England facilities") such as the extended Long-Term Repo
open market operations and the Special Liguidity Scheme (SLS)
wheraby banks and building societies can exchange eligible
securities for UK treasury bills; and the creation of a gredit
guarantee scheme by HM Treasury, providing a government
guarantee for certain short and madium term senior debt
securities issued by eligible banks. During 2008 HB0S plc has
rnade use of these meaasures in order to maintain and improve a
stable funding position,

In the context of this continued turbulence and uncertainty in the
financial markets, combsined with a deteriorating global economic
outlook, HBOS pic has also taken steps to strengthen its capital
position in order to provide a buffer against further shocks
arising from the financial systems and to ensure that it remains
competitive. On 15 January 2008, in conjunction with the
takecover of HBOS ple by Lloyds TSB Group plc {Note 44), HBOS
plc raised £11,345m (net after costs) in preference and ordinary
share capital {Note 28).

On 18 January 2009, following completion of the acquisition of
the Group by Lioyds Banking Group plc, the Group became

a wholly owned subsidiary and became dependent upon the
ultimate parent and its banking subsidiaries for its capital,
liquidity and funding needs.

There is a risk despite the substantial measures taken so

far by governments that further deterioration in the markets
could occur. In addition the economic conditions in the UK

are ceteriorating more quickly than previously anticipated
placing further strain on the Lloyds Banking Group’s capital
resaurces. The key dependencies on successfully funding the
Lloyds Banking Group's balance shest include the continued
functioning of the money and capital markets at their current
levels; the continued access of the Lioyds Banking Group to
central bank and Government sponsored liquidity faciities
including access to HM Treasury’s credit guarantae scheme
and access to the Bank of England’s various facilities; limited
further deterioration in the Lioyds Banking Group's credit ratings;
and no significant or sudden withdrawal of deposits resulting in
increased reliance on money markets or Government support
schemes.

Based upon projections preparad by Lloyds Banking Group

plc management which take into account the acquisition on

16 January 2009 of HBOS ple and its subsidiaries (Note 44)
together with the Lloyds Banking Group's current abifity to fund
in the market and the assumption that announced government
sponsored schemes will continue to be avaitable, the Directors
are satisfied that the Bank and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. The
Group has received confirmation that it is the current intention of
Lloyds Banking Group plc to ensure that the Group’s subsidiaries
shauld have at ali times for the foreseeable future access to
adegquate rescurces to continue to trade and meet their fiabilifies
as they fall due. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Bank
and the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.

b) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis, except that the following assets and fiabilities are
stated at their fair values: derivatives, financial instruments

held for trading, financial instruments designated at fair value
through the income statement, financial instruments classified as
available for sale and invastment properties.

IFRS Applied in 2008
The following IFRS amendments have been applied in 2008:

Amendments to 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’ and IFRS 7 ‘Financial
Instruments: Disclosures’. In view of the ongoing market
dislocation and the deterioration of the world's financial markets,
the Group transferred certain asset backed securities (ABS) and
fleating rate notes (FRNs) from the *held for trading’ classification
to the "available for sale’ classification with effect from 1 July
2008 at their fair values at that date. Subsequently, in fight of
increasing illiquidity in the markets for ABS, the Group chariged
the classification of ABS from ‘available for sale’ to loans and
receivables’ with effect from 1 November 2008. There have been
no other reclassifications in the year. Thereafter the recognition
and measurement principles of IAS 39 are followed. Disclosure
of the reclassifications is given in Note 33.

The following IFRIC interpretations have been applied in 2008:



IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 “‘Group and Treasury Share Transactions',
IFRIC 11 provides guidance on accounting in the separate
financial statements of subsidiaries for transactions where a
parent grants rights to its equity instruments directly to the
employess of subsidiaries and where the subsidiary grants to

its employees rights to the equity instruments of the parent,

The application of this interpretation has not affected the Bank
financial statements as costs are recharged to the subsidiaries
on the basis prescribed in the interpretation,

IFRIC 14 ‘The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum
Furiding Requirements and their Interaction’. This
preciudes recognition of any surpius within & pansion scheme
from which the Bank could not derive a benefit. This did not
impact on thase financiat staterments.

The accounting policies below have been consistently applied
to all periods presented in these financial staternents. Certain
comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's presentation.

Basis of Consoiidation

The consolidatad financial statements include the results of the
Bank and its subsidiary undertakings (a2nd, whare appropriate,
special purpose vehicles), tagether with the Group's interests in
associates and jointly controlled entities.

The financial statements af entitles controlied by the Group are
consolidated in the Group finanziat staternents commencing on
the date control is obtained until the date contral ceases. Control
is defined as being where the Group has power, directly or
indiractly, to govern the financial and operating policies of skch
entities so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable or
convertible are taken into accournt, When assessing whether or
not a special purpose entity {SPE) that has been sponsored by
the Group should be consolidated or not, the Group considers
the indicatars of control that are included in the Standing
Interpretations Committee (SIC) Interpretation 12 *Consotidation
- Special Purpose Entities’ and if these are met the SPEis
included in the consolidation.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation,

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Assets and
Liabilities

The Groun recognises loans and advanses to customers and
banks, deposits by banks, customer accounts, debt securities
in issuie, other borrowed funds and othar financial assets and
liabllities upon origination.

The Group derecognises a financial asset whan the contractual
rights to the cash flows fram the asset expire or it transfers the
right to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset
in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
the transferred financial assat that is created or retained by the
Group is recognised as a separate assetl.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its confractual
obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.

Derivalives

Derivatives are measured at fair value and initialty recognised on
the date the contract is entered into. Where the fair value of a
derivative Is positive, it is carried as a derivative asset and where
negative, as a derivative fiability,
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The gain or loss from changes in fair value is taken to net trading
income, except for interest from darivatives used for econamic
hedging purpeses that do not qualify for hedge accounting
treatrment which is taken to net interest income, insurance and
investment related derivatives which are taken to net investment
income related 1o insurance and investment buginess or when
cash flow hedge accounting is employed.

Hedge accounting altows ong financial instrument, generally

a derivative such as a swap, to be designated as a hedge of
another financial instrument such as a loan or depoait or a
portiolio of the same. At inception of the hedge relationship
formal documentation is drawn up specitying the hedging
strategy, the component transactions and the methocalogy that
will be used to measure effectivenass.

Manitoring of hedge effectivenass is undertaken continually.

A hedge is regarded as sffective if the change in fair value or
cash flows of the hedge instrument and the hedged item are
negatively correlated within a range of 80% to 125%, either for
the period since effectiveness was last tested or cumutatively
gince incepticn,

The Group uses threa hedge accounting methods:

Firatly, fair value hedge accounting offsets the changa in the fair
value of the hedging instrument against the change in the fair
value of the hedged item in respect of the risk being hedged.
The hedged item Is adjusted for tha fair value of the risk being
hedged irraspective of its financial instrument classification.
These changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement through nat trading incorme, Adjustments mace © the
carrying amount of the hedged itern for fair value hedges will be
amortised on an effactive interest rate basis aver the remaining
expectad life in line with the presentation of the undarlying
hadged item. i the hedge Is highly effective the netimpact on the
income statement is minimised.

Secondly, cash flow hedge accounting matches the cash
flows of hedged items against the corresponding cash flow of
the hadging derivative. The effective part of any gain or loss
on a hedging Instrument is recagnised diractly in equity in the
cash {low hedge reserve and the hedged item is accounted
for in accordance with the policy for that financial instrurment.
Any Ineffective portion of the hedging instrument's fair value is
recognised immediately in the income staternent through net
trading income.

The amount deferred in reserves remains until the designated
transaction occurs at which time it is released and accounied
for in the income statement in ling with the treatment of the
hedged ftern. Where the hedge relationship subseguently
proves ineffective, or where the hedged item is settled early
or is terminated, the associated gains and losses that were
recognised directly in reserves are reclassified to the income
statement through net trading incorne. Where the hedging
instrument expires or is terminated before the ferecast

" transaction occurs, the associated gains and losses recognised

in reserves remain deferred until the forecast transaction occurs.

Thirdly, hedging of net investments in foreign operations is

-discussed within the foreign currencies accounting policy.

A derivative may be ambedded in ancther financial instrument,
known as the host contract. Where the economic characteristics
and risks of an embedded derivative are not ¢losely related to
those of the host contract, the embedded derivative is separated
from the host and held separately on the balance sheet at fair
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value, except for those instruments that have been designated at
fair value through the income statement, where the derivative is
not separated from the host instrument. Changes in fair value are
taker: tc the income staternent through net trading income, and
the host contract is accounted for in accordance with the policy
for that class of financial instrument.

if quoted or market values ara not available then derivative

fair values are determined using valuation techniques that

are consistent with technigues commonly used by market
participants to price these instruments. These technigues
include discounted cash flow analysis and other pricing modets.
The fair values calculated from these modets are regularly
compared with prices obtained in actual market transactions to
ensure reliability. In all material instances these techniques use
only observable market data.

Loans and Advances

Loans and advances held for trading principally consist of
reverse repurchase agreements, are carried at fair value and are
classified as financial assets hald for trading. Gains, losses and
relatec income are taken to net trading income as they arise.

All other loans and advances are classified as loans and
receivables. They are initially recognised at the draw down date
at the fair value on the commitment date plus directly attributable
incremental transaction costs. They are subseguently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less provision
for impairment.

The fair value of loans and advances to customers is measured
at the commitment date and calculated by discounting
anticipated cash flows, including interest, at current market rate
of interest, The fair vafue of floating rate loans and advances and
overnight deposits is considered by the Group to be equal to
the carrying value as these loans and advances are accounted
for at current interest rates and credit risk is assessed in the
impairment review. The fair value of fixed interest bearing
accounts is based on cash flows discounted using current
money markst interest rates for debts with similar maturity and
credit risk characteristics,

Loans and advances that are performing in accordance with
the underlying coniract are classified as neither past dus

nor impaired. i a custemer fails to make a payment that is
contractually due, or if the foan is in excess of facility limit, the
loan is classified as past due.

if subsequently all contractualty due payments are made or if
the toan continues to operate within limit, the loan reverts to its
neither past dus nor impaired status.

The Group assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant and individually or collectively for assets that are

not significant, The estimation involved in these impairment
assessments is considered a critical accounting estimate.

Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired includes
significant cifficulty of the custemer, breach of contract such

as interest or principat payments being missed, the loan being
in excess of facility imit for a sustained period or the likelihcod
that the borrower will enter bankruptcy. Objective evidence may
also arise from wider economic and financial market indicators
including factors that pertain to a particular industry sector or
local economy.

The amount of any impairment is calculated by comparing the
net present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the loan's original effective interest rate, with the carrying value of
the lean.

If impaired, the carrying value is adjusted via the provision and
the additional provisicn is charged to the income statement.

The written down value of the Impaired loan is compounded
back to the et realisable balance over time using the original
etfective interest rate. This is reported through interest income
in the income statement and represents the unwinding of the
discount.

A write-off is made when it is not possible or economically viable
to collect ail or part of a claim. Write-offs are offset against the
release of a praviously established impairment provision or
directly through the income statement.

Loans with no identified evidence of individua! impairment are
subject to collective impairment assessment. This is to quantify
impairment losses which exist at the balance shaet date,

but which have not yet been individually identifled. Collective
assessment is carried out for groups of assets that share similar
risk characteristics. Collective impairment is assessed using a
methodology based on existing risk conditions or events that
have a strong correlation with a tendancy to default.

Terms and conditions for past due or impaired lcans and
advances may be renegotiated. When the renegotiated contract
becomes effective, the [oan is subsequently classified as past
due, impaired or neither past due nor impaired according to its
performance under the renegotiated terms.

l.oans and advances 10 customers include advances that

are subject 10 non-returnable finance arrangements following
securitisation of portfolios of mortgages and other advances.
The principal benefits of these advances are acquired by special
purpose securitisation entities that fund thelfr purchase primarity
through the issue of debt securities in issue.

Syndications

Syndication aciivity is undertaken as part of the Group's

risk managemaeant strategy specifically with the intention of
transferring credit risk and obtaining financing as distinct from
trading.

The Group considers that loan commitments and subsequent
draw down form cone contract and the loan is therefore
racognised af the date of the draw down at the fair value as
measured at the commitrent date plus directly attributable and
ncremental transaction costs. Loans pending syndication are
classified as loans and receivables and derecognised upon sell
down when the risks and rewards are transferred to a third party.

Finance Leases and Operating Leases

Assets leased to custorners that transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the customer are
classified as finance leases. They are recorded at an amount
equal to the net investrnent in the lease, less any provisions for
impairment, within loans and advances to custormers.

The difference betwesn the gross receivable and tha present
value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. {ease income is recognised over the term of the lease
using the pre-tax net investment method, which refiects a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment.

Al other assets leased to customers that do net transfer
substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership are classified



as operating leases. These assets, lass any provision for
impairment, are separately disclosed in tha balance shest and
are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation, which is
caiculated on a straight-ine basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Operating lease rentals are recognised in operating income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Finance and operating
iease ausets are regularly reviewed for Impairmant,

Leases entered into by the Group as lessee are primarily
operating leases. Operating lease rentals payable are recognised
as an expense in the income statément on a straight-line

basis over the tarm unless a more systemaiic basis is more
appropriate.

Investment Securities

Investment securities held for trading are classified as financial
assets held for trading and are caried at fair value. Gains, losses
and related income are taken ta net trading income as they arise,
Investment securities designated at fair value through the income
staternent are carried at fair value, Gains, {osses and refated
income are taken to other operating income as they ariae, except
for those related to insurance and investment business which
are taken to net investmant income related to insurance and
investment business.

Debt securities other than those held for trading or designated at
fair value and for which there is no active market at inception are
classffied as loans and receivables. They are initially recognised
at fair value plus directly related incremental transaction costs
and are subsequently carried on the balance sheet at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less provision for
impairment.

All other investment securities are classified as available for sale.
They are initlally recognised at fair value plus directly refated
incremental transaction costs and are subsequently carrisd on
the balance sheet at fair vatue, Unrealised gains or losses atise
from changes in the fair values and are recegnised directly In
equity in the available for sale reserve, except for impairment
losses or foreign exchange gains or losses related 1o debt
securities, which are recognised immediately in the income
staterent in impairment on investment securities or other
operating income respectively,

Income on debt securities is recognised on an efiective
interest rate basis and taken to interest income through the
income statement. Income from equity shares is credited to
other operating incoma, with Income on listed equity shares
heing credited on the ex-dividend date and income on untisted
equity shares being credited on an equivalent basis. On sale or
maturity, previously unreafised gains and losses are recognised
in other operating income.

Investment securities classified as avallable for sale are
continually reviewed at the spacific investment level for
impairment. Impairment is recognised wien there is objective
evidence that a specific financial asset is impaired. Objective
evidence of impairment might include a significant or prolonged
decline in market value below the original cost of a financial asset
and, in the case of debt securities, including those reclassified
as loans and receivables, non-receipt of due Interest or principal
repayment, a breach of covenant within the security’s terms and
conditions or a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows since their initial recognition.

Impairment losses on avallable for sale equity instruments are
not reversed through the income statemant. Any increasa in
the fair value of an availabie for sale equity instrument after an
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impairment toss has been recegnised is treated as a revaluation
and recognised directly in equity. An impairment [0ss on an
available for sale debt instrument is reversed through the income
statement, if thare is evidence that the increase in fair valug is
due ta an event that ocourred after the impairment loss was
recognised.

The fair values of investment securities trading in active markets
are based on market prices or broker/dealer valuations. Where
quoted prices on instruments are not readily and regularly
available from a recognised broker, dealer or pricing service,

ar available prices do not represent regular transactions in the
market, the fair vaiues are estimated using quoted market prices
for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield characteristics
or similar valuation modals. Investment securities, principally
asset backed securities (ABS) not traded in an active market
are valued using valuation moedeis that include non-market
obsearvable inputs. These models use observed issuance

prices in related asset classes, market correlations, prepayment
assumptions and extemal credit ratings.

Additional assessments are then made on pessible deterioration
in credit risk for each individual security and on additional iquidity
considerations for particular asset classes,

The Group uses trade date acceunting when recording the
purchase and saie of investment securities.

Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates
Joinily controllad entities ara entities over which the Group has
joint control under a contractual arrangement with other parties.

Associates are entities over which the Group has signiflcant
influence, but not control over the financial and operating
policies. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financlal and operating policy decisions of the entity but is not
control over those policies,

The veniure capital exemptiar: is taken for investments where
sigrificant or joint control is present and the investing area
operates as & venture capital business, These investments

are designated at fair value through the incorne statement.
Otherwise, the Group's share of results of associates and jointly
controlled entities, generally based on audited accounts, are
inclucied in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The share of any losses is restricted 1o a
lavel that reflects an obligation to fund such losses.

Goodwill

The excess of the cost of a business combination over the
interest in the net fair value of tha identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent labifties at the date of acquisition of a business is
capitalised as goodwill. The gocdwill is allocated to the cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the acguisitions concerned.

In most cases, the cash-genarating units represent the business
acquired.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment lossaes. Cash generating units to which
goodwill is allocated are subject to a semi-annual impairment
review at 31 March and 30 September and whenever there is
an incication that the unit may be impaired. This campares the
recoverable amount, being the higher of the cash generating
unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, with its
carrying value. When this indicates that the carrying valug of
goodwill ig not recoverable, it is irrevocably written down through
the income staternent by the amount of any impaired loss
identified.
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Further details of the calculation are given in the critical
accounting estimates and in Note 20, IFRS 3 '‘Business
Combinations' has not been applied ratrospectively to business
combinations that occurred before 1 January 2004,

Software

Costs associated with the development of software for internat
use, subject to de minimis limits, are capitalised i the software
is technically feasible and the Group has both the intent and
sufficient resources to complete the development. Costs are
only capitalised if the asset can be reliably measured and will
generate future economic benefits to the Group either through
sale or use.

Only costs that are diractly attibutabie to bringing the asset into
working condition for its intended use are capitalised. These
¢osts include all directly attributable costs necessary to creats,
preduce and prepare the asset to be capable of operating

in a manner intended by management. Other developmant
expenditure is recognised in the income statemant as an
expense as incurrad.

Capitalised development expenditure and purchased software

is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
tosses. Once the software is ready for use, the capitalised

costs are amortised over their expected fives, generally four
years. Capitalised software is assessed for impairment where
there is an indication of impairment., Where impairment exists,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount and the impairment loss recognised in the incormne
statement. The amortisation charge for the asset is then adjusted
to reflect the asset’s revised carrying amount,

Subsequent expenditure is only capitalised when it increases the
future-economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which
it relates.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Freehold and leasehold
proparty, other than freehold investment properties, is stated at
cost and depreciatad over fifty years or the length of the lease
term if shorter. Improvements to leasehold properties are stated
at cost and are depreciated in equal instalments over the lesser
of the remaining life of the lease or eight years. Premiums are
amortised over the period of the lease.

The cost of equipment, which includes fixtures and fittings,
vehicles and computer hardware, less estimated residual value,
is written off in equal instalments over the expected lives of the
assets, generally between three and eight years,

Subseqguent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount,
only when itis probabie that future econornic benefits associated
with the item will fiow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably.

Property and equipment is assessed for impairment where

there is an indication of impairment. Where impairment exists,
the carrying amount of the asset Is reduced 1o its recoverable
amacunt and the impairment loss recognised in the income
statement. The depreciation charge for the asset is then adjusted
1o reflect the asset’s revised carrying amount.

Investment Properties

Investment properties comprise freehold and leasehold

property that are held, either to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation or both. They are initially recognised at cost and are
fair valued annually.

Rental income from investment properties is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term cf the lease and any gains or
losses arising from a change in the fair value are recognised in
the income statement in the period that they occur through other
operating income, except for those relating to insurance and
investrment business, which are taken through net invesiment
income related to insurance and investment business.

Investments in Subsidiaries

Investrments in subsidiaries are includad in the Bank's balance
sheet. These comprise equity investments in, and capital
contributions to subsidiary entities. These are carried at

cost less impairment provisions. At each reporting date an
assessment is undertaken to determine if thera is any indication
of impairment. This assessment can include reviewing factors
such as the solvency, profitabitity and cash flows generated by
the subsidiary. If there is an indication of impairment, an estimats
of the recoverable amount is made. If the carrying value exceeds
the recoverable amount then a provision for impairment is madea

. to reduce the carrying value to the recoverahle amount.

Disposal Group .

Assets and liabilities of a disposal group are classified as held
for sale where the carrying amount will be recovered principatly
through a sale transaction as opposed to continuing use. This
applies where the assets and liabilities are available for sale in
their present condition, subject cnly to the terms that are usual
and customary for the sale of such assets and liabllities, and
when a sale is highly probable and expected to complete within
one year of being classified as a disposal group. Disposal groups
are measured at the lower ¢f carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

Deposits by Banks and Customer Accounts

Deposits by banks and customer accounts held for trading are
classified as financial liabilities held for trading and are carried

at fair value. Gains, losses and related income are taken to net
trading income as they arise. All other customer accounts and
deposits by banks are held at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

The fair value of customer deposits with no stated maturity date
is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value
of fixed interest bearing deposits and other borrowings with

no quoted market price is calculated using a cash flow model
discounted using interest rates for debts with simitar maturities.

Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold subject 1o repurchase agreements are retained
within the balance sheet where the Group retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Funds received
under these arrangaments are included within deposits by
banks, customer accounts or financial fiabilities held for trading,
Conversely, securities acquired under commitments to resell
are not recognised in the balance sheet as debt securities
where substantially all the risks and rewards do not pass to the
Group. In this case, the purchase price is included within loans
and advances to banks, leans and advances to customers, or
financial agsets held for trading. The difference between sale
and repurchase prices for such transactions s reflected in

the incorme statement over the lives of the transactions, within
interast payable or interest receivable as appropriate.



Post Retirement Schemes

The Bank is a participating employer in both a defined
contripution pension scheme and a defined benefit pension
scheme based upon final pensionable pay. operated by HBOS
plc, the HBOS Final Salary Pension Scheme (HBOS FSPS).

The HBOS FSPS was formed on 3 July 2008 following the
merger of the Bank of Scotland 1976 Scheme and the Halifax
Retirernent Fund (HRF), in both of which the Bank was previously
a participating smployer, with two other schermes in the HBOS
Group.

Because the Bank is unable to identify its share of the schems
assets and liabilities on a consistent and reascnable basis, as
permitted by 1AS 18 'Employes penefits’ the HBOS FSPS has
been accounted for, in these financial statements, as if the
scheme was a defined contribution scheme.

Taxation

Income tax on the profit or loss for the ysar comprises current
and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income
staterment except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

The tax chargs is analysed between tax that is payable in
respect of policyholder returns and tax that is payable on
shareholders' equity retums, This allocation is based on an
assessment of the effactive rate of tax that is applicable to
sharehoiders’ equity for the year.

Deferred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet ligtblity
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
‘ollowing differences are not provided: goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets and liabilities
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit, and gverseas
earmings where both remittance is controtled by the Group and it
is probable that the difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, based on tax rates that are
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Delerred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be uiilisad. ’

The tax effects of losses availabie for carry forward are
recognised as an asset when it is probable that futurs taxable
profits will be available against which these losses can be
utilised.

Daferred and current tax assets and liabiities are offset when
they arise in the same tax reporting group and where there is
both a legal right of offset and the intention to settle on a net
basis ar to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Provisions

The Group recognises a provision if there is a present obligation
as a conseguence of either a legal or a constructive obligation
resuiting from a past event. To recognise this it should be
probable that an outflow of economic resources, that can

be reliably measured, will be required to settle the obligation.
Provisions are measured as the discounted expectedc future cash
fiows taking account of tha risks and uncertainties associated
with the specific liability where appropriate.

Bank of Scotland plc Annual Report and Accounts 2008 45

A constructive obligation is only deemed te exist in respect of
restrucluring provisions once a detailed restructuring plan has
been formally approved and the plan has been announced
publicly o work on the restructure has commenced.

Provision is made for undrawn loan commitments which have
become cnerous,

As explained under critical accourting judgements, if the Group
assasses that a constructive obligation for a regulatery provision
exists then a provision is established. Where the provisioning
criteria are met, the Group makes provisicn for the sstimated
cost of making redress payments to customears in respect

of past product sales where the sales processes have been
deficient. To calculate the provision the Group estimates the
number of cases requiring redress and the average cost per
case. These are dependent upon, inter alia, the volume of claims,
the actions of regulators and, as appropriate, the performance of
investments. As progress is made in settling claims, if necessary,
the Group revises its judgements and estimates based onihe
emerging trends.

Debt Securities in Issue

Dabt securitios in issue held for trading are classified as financial
llabilities held for trading and are carried at fair value. Gains,
lossas and related expense are taken to net trading income

as they arise. Debt securities in issue designated at fair value
through the income statement are carried at fair value. Gains,
losses and related expense are 1aken to other operating
income as they arise, except for those related to insurance

and investment business which are taken o net investment
income related to Insurance and invastrnent business, All other
debt securitles in issus ara held at amortised cost. They are
initially recognised at fair value plus directly related incremental
transaction costs and are subseguently carried an the balance
sheet at amortised cost using the effective interest mathod.

Fair values are calculated based on quoted market prices. Where
quoted market prices are not avallable, a cash flow model is
used, discountad using an appropriate current yield curve for the
remaining term o maturity.

Other Borrowed Funds

Other porrowed funds comprises preference shares that
are classifled as delt, prefarred securities and suborginated
labilities, all of which are held at amortised cost, uging the
effective interest method.

Preference shares are classified as debt where they are
redeamable on a specific date, or at the option of the
shareholders, or if dividend payments are not discretionary.
Dividends on preference shares classified as debt are
recognised in the income statemant through interast expense.

Preferred securities are issued at or close to market values.
These are classified as debt where they are redesmable on

a specific date, or at the option of the holders, or if interest
payments are not discretionary. The interest payabie on such
securities is recognised in the income statemant through interest
experise.

Subordinated liabilities consist of dated and undsated loan capital.
The intarest payable is recognised in the income statement
through interest expense.
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Share Capital
Incremental costs directly attributabile to the issue of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Netting

Financial assets and liabflities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when therz is a legally enforceable
right of offset and there is an intention and ability to settle on a
net or simultaneous basis.

Where master netting agreements allow for offset only on default
by one of the parties, the Group presents the disclosures on a
gross basis.

Foreign Currencies
The consolidated financial statements are presented in sterfing
which is the Bank's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions arg translated into sterling at the
exchange rate prevafling at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are transtated at balance sheet date exchange rates. Exchange
differences arising, including those from changes in the
amortised cost of foreign currency monetary available for sale
assets, are recognised in the income statement except for
differences arising from hedges of net investments in foreign
operations and derivatives related to cash flow hedges which are
recognised directly in equity.

Non-monetary assets and kabilittes carried at historical cost are
translated using the historical exchange rate.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
translated at exchange rates on the date the fair value is
determined. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
the income statement except those relating to avaitable for sale
financial assets (equity investments), which are recognised
directly in reserves.

The resuits and financial position of all Group entities that have
a functionat currency different from sterling are translated into
sterling as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of the balance sheet;

- goodwill and falr value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate: and

- income and expenses are translated at the average
exchangs rates for the period (unless this is not a reascnable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions).

All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate
component of other reserves within equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
transiation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments dasignated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to equity where the
hedge is deemed to be effective. When a foreign operation is
sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or foss on sale. The ineffective
portion of any net investrment hedge is recognised in the income
staterment immediately.

Cumulative translation differences for all foreign operations
are deemed to be zero at 1 January 2004. Any gain or loss
on the subsequent disposal of a foreign operation will exclude
transiation differences that arose before 1 January 2004, but
include later translation differences.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and balances at
central banks that are freely available, and loans and advances o
banks with an original maturity of three months or less excluding
financial assets that are held for trading purposes.

Effective Interest Rate

Revenue on financial instruments classified as loans and
receivables, available for sale and expense on financial liabilities
at amortised cost, are recognised on an effective interest rate
basis. This calculation takes into account interest received or
paid and fees and commissicns paid or received that are integral
to the vield as well as incremental transaction costs and all other
premiums and discounts. The effective interest rate is the rate
that discounts the expected future cash flows over the expected
life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument

at initial recognition. These calculations are undertaken on a
portfolio basis other than in respect of significant balances,
relating principally to larger corporate customars, which are
assessed individually,

in applying the portfolio basis, the Group makes use of various
statistical modelling technigues which are specific to different
portfolios to estimate redemption profiles and derive the
expected cash flows. A number of relevant considerations are
taken into account to estimate the cash flows of individually
significant corporate balances, including previcus experience
of customer behaviour, credit scoring of the customer and
anticipated future market conditions at the date of acquisition.
The impact of the assumption related to the expected life of the
instruments is considered under critical accounting estimates.

Fees and Commission

Fees and commission income and expense is recognised in tha
income staterment as the related service is provided except those
that are integral to the effective interest rate caiculations or to
investment contract deferred origination costs.

Fees and commission recognised in the income statement
include service fees, agency and management fees, transaction
fees, guarantee fees, letter of credit fess, asset management
fees and non-utilisation fees.

Syndication and underwriting fees are spread over the expected
term of the sell down. In the event of the loan not being soid
down then ne fees are recognised.

Fees and commission included in the effective interest
calculation are those that are incremental and diractly
attributable to the origination of the product and which are
integral to the yield of the procuct. These include arrangement
fees, incentives such as cash backs, intermediary fees and
cemmissions, high loan to value fees and procurement fees.

Guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a foss #
incurs bacause a specified debtor {ails to make payment when
due In accordance with the terms of a debt instrument,



Financial guarantees are initially recognised at fair value oo the
date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group's liabllities under such guarantees are measured at the
higher of the amount determined under the Group’s accounting
poiicy on provisions and the amount inittally recognised less
cumulative amartisation recognised to record any fee income
earned in the period. .

Intra-group financial guarantee contracts in the Bank financial
staternents are accounted for as general insurance contracts.
This practice also applies to any new intra-group financial
guarantees written.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requirgs management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reportad amounts of assets, liabilties, income and expenses.
Due to the inherent uncertainty in making estimates, actual
results reportad in future periods may be based on amounts
which diitfer from those estimates. Judgements, estimates

and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factots, including expectations
of futura events that are believed to be reasonable under

the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimatas are
racognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected.

a) Critical Accounting Judgements

The preparation of the financiat statements Hecessarily requires
tha exercise of judgement in the application of accounting
policies which are set out above. These judgements are
continually reviewed and evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors. The principal critical accounting
judgements made by the Group that have a material financial
impact on the financial statements are as follows:

Designation of Financial Instruments

The Group has classified its financial instruments in accordance
with [AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement'. in soma instances the classification is prescribed
whilst in others the Group is able to exercise judgerment in
determining tha classification as follows:

- Non-derivative financial assets, other than those held for
trading, where there is no active market and which have
fixed or determinable payments are classified as ‘loans and
receivables’;

— The Group's 'irading’ portfolic is classified as ‘held for trading'.
The Group exercises judgement in determining which financlal
instruments form part of its trading pook. This is determined
at acquisition by the purpose for which the instrument is
acquired,

-~ The Group exercised judgement when determining that the
ongoing market dislocation and deterioration of the world's
financial marksts that occurred during the third quarter
of 2008 was a sufficiently rare circumstance to warrant &
reclassification of certain financial assets from ‘*held for trading’
to 'available for sale’ for which the Group has the intention
and ability to hold these assets for the foreseeable future.
The Group also subsequently reclassified certain financial
assets from 'available for saie' to 'loans and receivables’, In
both cases, the Group had the intention and ability to hold
the financial assets for the foresesable future and the financial
assets transferred met the classification criteria of loans and
receivables;
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- Derlvative instruments are autormatically classified as ‘at fair
value through the income statement’ unless they form part
of an effective hedging relationship. The Group's actounting
poticy far hedge accounting is described under the policy for
derivatives;

~ Instruments that are deemed by the Group on initial
recognition to eliminate a measurement mismatch or where
they contain an embedded dervative which is not separated
from the host contract are designated on initial recognition
as ‘at fair value through the income statement”. In addition
portfolios of assets, liabilities or both that are managed and
the performence evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance
with a documented risk o investment management strategy
are designated on initial recognition 'at fair value through the
income statement’;

- In addition the venture capital exemption is taken for
investments where significant influence or joint controt
is present and the investing area operates as a ventue
capital business. These investments are designated 'at fair
value through the income statament”. This policy Is applied
consistently across the Group's pertfolics. Judgement is
applied when determining whether or not a business area
operates as a venture capital busingss. The judgement is
hasad on consideration of whether, in particular, the primary
business activity is investing for current incoms, capital
appreciation or both; whether the investment activities are
clearly and objectively distinct from any other activilies of
the Group; and whether the investee operates as a separate
business autonomous fram the Group;

- The Group has chosen not to designate any financial assets as
‘held to maturity’;

— All other financial assets are classified as ‘avallable for sale’,
and

— Al other financial liabilities are classified as ‘at amortised cost’,

The accounting treatment of these financial instruments Is set
cut in the relevant accounting policy.

Active Markets

Asset backed securities not traded in an active market are
valued using models. An activa market is one where prices are
readily and reguiarly available from an exchange, broker, pricing
service, industry group or regulator and these prices reprasant
actual and regularly occurring transactions on an arm's length
basis. Whare there arg no regular transactions occurring
(significant liquid markets) the markel is not described as active.
A significant increase in the spread between the amount sellers
are ‘asking’ and buyers are ‘bidding’ or the presence of a
refatively small number of 'bidding’ parties, are indicators that a
market may be inactive. The determination of whether a market
is inactive requires judgement,

More details of the models used to value the securities not
traded in an active market are given in the ‘falr values’ section in
critical accounting estimates below.

Impairment of Investment Securities

As explained in the accounting policy, investment securities
are reviewed at the specific investment level for mpairment,
impairment is recognised when there is objective evidence
that a specific financial asset is impaired. Objective evidence
of impairment might include a significant or prolongad decline
in market vaiue below the original cost of a financial asset and,
in the case of debt securities, including those reclassified as
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loans and receivables, non-receipt of due interest or principal
repayment, a breach of covenant within the security’s terms and
conditions or & measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows since thelr initial recognition,

The disappearance of active markets, declines in market

value and ratings downgrades do not in themseives constitute
ohisctive evidence of impairment and, unless a default has
cceurred on a debt security, the determination of whether or not
cbjective evidence of impairment is present at the balance sheet
date requires the exercise of maragement judgement.

Unarranged Overdraft Charges

The Group's accounting policy in respect of regulatory provisions
is given in the section on provisions. In the absence of a legal
obligation, judgement is necessary in determining the existence
of a constructive obligation. In respect of the claims made for
refunds cof unarranged overdraft charges, the judgement of the
Group is that there is no constructive obligation pending the
outcome of the fegal case.

Syndications

As explained in the accounting policy on syndications, the Group
has elected to treat loans and advances pending syndication as
loans and receivables rather than account for them as trading
assets, Accordingly these are initially recognised at the draw
down date at the falr value as at the commitrnent date plus
directly attributable and incremental transaction costs.

Investment in Subsidiaries

As explained in the accounting policies, investments in
subsidiaries are included in the Bank's balance sheet. These
comprise equity investments in and capital contributions to
subsidiary entitias made by the Bank. These are carried at

cost less impairment provisions. At each reporting date, an
assassment is underiaken to determine if there Is an indication of
impairment. This assessment can include reviewing factors such
as the sclvency, profitability and cash flows of the subsidiary.

if impairment indicators are evident, an estimate of recoverable
amount is made which reguires the exercise of management
judgement.

More details of the methodofogy used to calculate recoverable
amount are given in critical accounting estimates below.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities require management
judgement in- determining the amounts 1o be recognised. In
particular, when assessing the extent to which deferred tax
assets should be recognised with consideration given to the
timing, nature and level of future taxable income. The recegnition
of deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried forward
refies on profit projections and taxable profit forecasts prepared
by management, whers a number of assumptions are required
based on the levels of growth in profits and the reversal of
deferred tax balances.

b} Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Group
to make estimations where uncertainty exists. The principal
critical accounting estimates made by the Group are considered
below. Disclosuras about estimates and the related assumptions
are also included in the appropriate Note to the Financial
Statements.

Fair Values

The designation of financial instruments for measurement
purposes is set out under the critical accounting judgements
above and the valuation methodologies for financial instruments
remain as disclosed in this accounting policy section.

Derivatives and other financial instruments classified as at fair
value through the incorne statement or available for sale are
recognised at fair value.

Debt securities measured at fair value and not traded in an
active market, principally comprising asset backed securities
{ABS) in the Treasury division, are valued using valuation
maodels that include non-market observable inputs. These
models use observed issliance prices in related asset classes,
market correlations, prepayment assumptions and external
credit ratings. For each asset class within the ABS portfolio, the
implied spread arrived at by using this methodology is applied
o the securities within that asset class. Additional assessments
are then made on possible deterioration in credit risk for each
individual security and on additional liquidity considerations for
particular asset classes.

Of the total debt securities carried at fair value on the balance
sheet, the fair values of those calculated using madels with
inputs that are not observable in the market is £3.054m (2007
£47,790m).

For debt secuwrities valuations using non-market observable
inputs, the effect of a one hundred basis point move in credit
spreads (which based upon experience is the only key sensitivity)
would result in a pre-tax movement of £163m {2007 £185m) for
assets classified as at fair value through the income statement
and a post-tax movement of £nil (2007 £(351}m), recognised in
equlity reserves, on assets classified as available for sala,

On ABS that were valued using modets with non-observable
market inputs, a £1,056m (2007 £78m) pre-tax negative fair
valug adjustment was recognised in the incams statement within
net trading income and a post-tax negative fair value adjustment
of £3,572m (2007 £158m) on ABS classified as available for sale
was recognised in equity reserves.

Effective Interest Rate

As described in the accounting policy for effective interast

rate, the Group uses statistical and mathematical maodels to
calculate the effective yield for loans and advances. The Group
applies judgement when determining the expected life of these
loans. The underlying products usually allow the customer to
make early repayment before the contractual maturity date. In
estimating the expected life of the loan, the Group takas into
account a number of relevant considerations when the asset

is initlally recognised to estimate the cash flows from early
redemptions including the type of product, previous experience
of customer behaviour, credit scoring of the customer and
anticipated future market conditions. The cash flows are
adjusted in the light of actual experience, however the effective
interest rate is not reassessed. As a consequence of the reduced
levels of principal repaid in 2008 and the resutting adjustments to
estimated future cash flows a £200m credit (2007 £nil} has been
taken to the income statement. if the estimated life of the Retall
portfelio were to increase or decrease by one maonth then the
carrying value of the Retall portfolic would increase or decrease
by £6m {2007 £18m) respectively.



Impairment Losses on Loans and Advances

The Group regularly reviews its loan portfolios carried at
amortised cost to assess for impairment. This review is
condusted across afl asset types and impairment provisions are
established o recognise incurred impairment losses within the
loan portfolios. As explained in the Group's accounting policy
ot loans and advances, impairment loss caleulations involve the
estimation of future cash flows of loans and advances based

on observable data at the balance sheet date, historical loss
experience for assets with similar credit risk chargcteristics

and other facters including, inter alia, future prospects of the
custormers, value of collateral held and reliability of information.
These calculations may be undertaken on either a portfolic basis
or individually for individually significant exposures. In applying
the portfolio basis the Group makes use of various statistical
madelling techniques which are specific ta differert portivlio

types.

The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing may
differ significantly from the assumptions made for the purposes
of determining the impairmant provisions given the range of
asset types, number of customers and current aconomic
conditiens. This uncertainty is exacerbated in the current
economic climate, where the timing of and value realisable from
the collateral held in the form of property is particularly uncertain.
Consaquently these allowances can be subject to variation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of a businass. As explained in
the accounting policy for goodwill it is subject to & six monthly
impairment review. This compares the recoverable amount,
being the higher of a cash generating unit's fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use, with the carrying valus. When this
indicates that the carrying value is not recoverable it is written
down through the income statement as goodwil impairment.

Tha recoverable amount of goodwill carried at 31 December
2008 has been based upon value in use. This calculation uses
cash flow projections based upon the five year business plan,
where the main assumptions usad for planning purposes relate
to the current economic outiook and opinions in respect of
ecanamic growth, unemployment, praparty merkets, interest
rates and credit quality. Cash flows thereafier are extrapolated
using a growth rate of 2.2% pa, reflecting management's

view of the expected future long term trend in growth rate of
the respective economias concerned, predominantly being

in the UK, and the long term performance of the businesses
concerned. The pre-tax discount rate used in discounting the
projectad cash flows has, in view of current credit conditions,
been increased to within a range of 14.4% - 15.3% pa (2007
10.0% - 12.2% pa), reflecting, inter alia, the perceived risks within
those businesses.

As at 31 Dacember 2008 the carrying value of goodwill held on
the baiance sheet is £667m (2007 £1,041m) as shown in Note
20. Goodwill has been impaired by £142m curing the year. The
unprecedentad levels of market turmei and current ecanomic
conditions have adversely impacted the short-term profitability of
the cash generating units. The Group has censidered the impact
upon assumptions used and has conducted sensitivity analysis
on the impairment tests. For example, an increass in discount
rate to 17% would result in an additional impairment to goodwil
of £31m; alternatively if projected cash flows reduced by Z20% an
impairment of £31m would arise.
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Investment in Subsidiaries

As explainad in the accounting policies, vestments in
subsiciaries ars included in the Bark's balance sheet. These
comprise equity investments in and capital contributions to
subsidiary entities made by the Bank and are carried at cost
jess impairment provisiona. If impaiment indicators are present,
a comparison of the recoverable amount, being the higher of
a subsidiary entity's valug in use and fair value less costs to
sell, is made with the carrying value. When this indicates that
the garrying value is not recoverable it is writien down by the
impairment loss identified.

The recoverabie amount of the Group's Australian operation has
been based upan value in use. This calculation uses five year
projections which are extrapolated thereafter uging a growth
rate of 2.2%. The pre-tax discount rate used in discounting the
projected cash flows is 14.6% pa.

At 31 Dacember 2008, the carrying value of the investment is
£1,510m. A sensitivity analysis has been concucted within the
following parameters: a discount rate of 13.6% pa and 15.6%

pa, variation of future profitability of plus/minua 10% pa against

forecast and economic growth of 2.0% pa and 2.5% pa beyond
2013, Within these parameters, the key sensitivity is profitability
and were projected profitability found 1o be 10% pa below
forecast, an impairment loss of some £162m would be recorded.

IFRS and IFRIC Not Yet Applied

The following standards and interpretations have been adoptea
by the European Unicn but are not effective for the year ended
a1 December 2008 and have not been appliad in preparing the
financial staternents:

iFRS 8 ‘Operating Segrments’ which is effective for pericds
commencing on or after 1 January 2008, This standard replaces
IAS 14 *Segmental Reporting' and aligns the disclosure of
operating segments in the financial siatements with the irternal
reporting of segments to senior management. Following the
acquisition of the Group by Lioyds TSB ple, the Group will adopt
the segmental structure and measurement basis for segments of
the Llayds Banking Group. These are currently being determined
by the new organisation.

Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements: A
Revised Presentation’ which is effective for periads commencing
on or after 1 January 2009. The revised standard will affect the
presentation of owner changes in equilty and of comprehensive
income. Adoption will not change the recognition, measurement
or disclosure of specific transactions or vents as raquirad by
other standards.

Amendment to I1AS 23 ‘Borrowing Cests” whigh is applicable
to borrowing costs related to qualifying assets for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or'after 1 January
2009. The application of this revised standard in 2008 would not
have had a maierial impact on the financial statements.

Amendment to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment: Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations’ which is effective for periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2009. This defines non-
vesting' conditions on canceliation and clarifies the accounting.
The application of this amendmeant would not have an impact
uporn the financial statements as the Group accounting palicy
accords with the treatment prascribed by the amendment.

Amendments to IAS 32 and IAS 1 'Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising cn Liguidation” which is
effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2009.
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This amendment addresses the balance sheet classification

of puttable financiat instruments and obligations arising only

on liquidation, Where these instruments represent a residual
interest in the net assets of an entity and mest certain other
conditions they should be classified as equity rather than
liabilities. The Group has no tems currently classified as fiabilities
that would need to be presented as equity as a result of this
amendment because these instruments fail to meet the criteria
for such a reclassification,

tFRIC 13 'Customer Loyalty Pragrammes' which is effective for
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2008. The application of
this interpretation in 2008 would not have had a material impact
on the financial statements.

The following interpretation has not yet been adopted by the
European Union but is effective for the vear ended 31 December
2008. The Group has implemented the principles of this
interpretation in preparing the financial statements:

IFRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’ which is effective
for periods commencing on or after 1 January 2008, The
application of this interpretation would not have affected the
financial statements as the Group accounting policy accords
with the requirements.

The following standards and interpretations have not yet been
adopted by the European Union, are not effective for the

year ended 31 December 2008 and have not been applied

in preparing the financial statements. Where appropriate
disclosures will be revised in the financial statements in the year
in which the standard or interpretation becomes applicable.

IFRS 1 'First-time adoption of IFRS' which is effective for periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2009, As the Group and
Bank reports under tFRS, the application of this amendment in
2008 would not have any effect upon the financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’ which is effective for periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2009. This amendment ramoves the definition of
the cost method which requires dividends from pre-acquisition
profits to be set off against the cost of an investment in a

- subsidiary. Application in 2008 would not have had an effect
upon the financial statements.

IFRIC 15 ‘Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate’
which is effective for periods commencing on or after 1 January
2009. The application of this interpretation would not have
affected the financial staterments as the Group accounting policy
accords with the requirements.

IFRIC 16 ‘Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation’
which is effective for periods commencing on or after 1 October
2008, The application of this interpretation in 2008 would not
have affected the financial statements as the Group accounting
policy accords with the requirements.

IFRIC 17 ‘Digtributions of Non Cash Assets to Owners' which is
gffective for periods commencing on or after 1 July 2008. The
application of this interpretation would not have affected the
financial statements as the Group accounting pelicy accords
with the requirements.

IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from customers’ which applies to
transfers of assets from custemers received on or after 1 July
2009. The application of this interpretation in 2008 would not
have had a materiai impact on the financial statements.

Improvements to IFRS 2008 The majority of these

improvements are effective for periods cormmencing on or after
1 January 2009 and thair application would not have had a
material effect upon the financial statements.

Amendments to I1AS 39 'Financial instruments: Recognition
and Measurement: Eligible Hedged ftems' which is effective for
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2008, This amendment
clarifies what can be designated as a hedged item in & hedge
accounting relationship and application in 2008 would not have
had a material impact upon the financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 39 'Reclassification of Financial Assets':
Effective Date and Transition which is effective on or after 1 July
2008. This amendment clarifies the effective date and transition
requirements for the change to the standard issued in October
2008 permitting entities to reclassify non derivative financial
assets out of the fair value through the income statement
category in particular circumstances. The application of this
amendment would not have affected the financial statements as
the Group accourting policy accords with the requirements,

Revised IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ and amended
IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements’
These changes are effective for periods beginning on or

after 1 July 2008 with the main effects being that the cost of
investment will comprise the consideration paid to the vendors
for equity with acquisition costs being expensed immediately;
goodwill will be accounted for only upon the acquisition of a
subsidiary as subsequent changes in interast will be recegnised
in equity and anly upen the loss of control will any profit or loss
be recognised in incomae. Further, any pre-existing stake held
will, where control is subsequently gained, be revalued with any
profit or 1oss arising being booked to income. These changes
will affect the manner in which acquisitions and disposals made
by the Group are accounted for after the implementation of the
revised Business Combinaticns standard and related revisions
to IAS 27.



1 Net Interest Income
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2008 2007
£m £m
intarest receivable:
Loans and advances to customers 32,000 27,919
Loans and advances to banks 693 2,241
Investrnent securities 619 69
Lease and hire purchase receivables 299 321
Interest receivable on loans and receivablos 33.61 30,860
Available for sale financial assets 2,108 2,278
Interast receivable on derivatives 3,486 3.332
Other 127 194
Total interest receivable 39,332 36,354
Interest payable:
Deposits by banks 3,955 2.567
Customer accounts 12,388 11,680
Deabt securities in issue 10,191 10,482
Other borrowed funds 392 348
Interest payable on liabilities held at amortised cost 26,926 25,075
Interest payable on derivatives 3,438 3,381
Cther 677 272
Total interest payabie 31,038 28,728
Net interest income 8,293 7,626
2 Net Trading (Expense}/Income
2008 2007
£m £m
Equity and commeodity instrumants and related non hedging derivatives 952 g2
interest bearing securities and related non hedging derivatives {4,174} 58
Fareign exchange and refated non hedging derivatives 80 72
Net gains and losses from trading financial instruments and non hedging derlvatlves (3,132) 222
Gains/{losses) on fair value hedges:
On hedging instruments 2,413 1,180
On the hedged items attributabte to the hedged risk (2,246) {1,218}
167 (36)
Cash fiow hedge inefiectiveness racognised 2 Q)]
Total net trading {expense)/income (2,963) 185
3 Net Operating Income
2008 2007
£m £m
included within net operating income are the fallowing:
Cash flow hedges:
Net (losses)/gains releasad from equity into income (Note 29} {2,561} 417
Financial instruments at fair value through the incorme statement:
Net (losses)/gains from trading financial instruments and non hedging derivatives {Note 2) (3,132) 222
Net {losses)/gains from designated financial instruments (261) 146
Available for sale financial nstruments:
Dividend income 108 29
Net realisad gains on sale (Note 28) 24 281
Financial instruments designated as loans and receivables:
Net realised gains on sale 22 3
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4 (Loss)/Profit on Sale of Businesses

Non-operating income consists of the following:

2008 2007
£m £m
Loss on the sale of Bank of Western Australia Ltd and St. Andrews Australia Pty Ltd (845}
Profit on the part disposal of Rightmovs plc (Note 13} 56 59
Distribution from Visa inc shares fisting 26
Profit an the sale and leaseback of certain branch premises 20 28
{743} 87

On 8 October 2008, the HBOS Group agreed the sale of part of its Australian operations, principally Bank of Western Australia Ltd
and St. Andrews Australia Pty Ltd, to Commonwealth Bank of Australia Limited. The sale completed on 18 December 2008 and
results in a pre-tax loss on disposal of £845m (including goodwill written-off of £240m) which is included as non-operating income

within the {loss)/profit on sale of businesses for the year.

Under tha share sale agreement HBOS plec has provided certain warranties to Commonwealth Bank of Australia, that all relevant,
material circumstances and facts in relation to the sale have been disclosed and described in agreament. The shars sale agreement
provided for adjustments to the initial purchase price based on the risk weighted assets of Bank of Western Austrafia Limited and the
net assets of St. Andrews Australia Pty Limited. As a result, the loss on sale of these businessas may be subject to adjustment for the

contingent élement of the commitment receivable.

Following the sale, HBOS retains a presence in Australia through Bank of Scotland intemational (Australia) Limited and Capital

Finance Australia Limited which are engaged in corporate banking and asset finance activities respectively, together with the Bank
of Scotland plc Sydney branch and therefore this sale does not constitute a discontinued activity. As such, the performance ot the
businesses sald and the loss on disposal remains within the profit arlsing from continuing operations of the Group. These businesses

are reperted in International division for segmental reporting purposes.

5 Administrative Expenses

2008 2007
£m em
Administrative expenses include:
Regulatory provisions charge (Note 25):
Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSC3) management expenses lovy 200
Unautharised cverdraft charges 122
Colleague costs (Note 6) 2,572 2,530
Accommodation, repairs and maintenance 465 427
Technology 218 226
327

Marketing and communication 326
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6 Colleagues

HBOS refers to ts employees as colleagues. Most UK based colleagues are contractually employed by HBOS ple, the ultimate
parent company. All expenses related to the employment of colleagues for whom the Bank gains the benefit of their employment are
recharged by HBOS to the Bank. Consequently, the Bank has no employees.

2008 2007
Number Number

The average number of colleagues recharged during the year was:
Ful time 48,576 53,526
Parttime 14,242 15,521
62,818 69,047

The aggregate remuneration recharged to the Group is included within administrative expenses and comprises:
2008 2007
£m tm
Wages and salaries 2,024 2,030
Social security costs 179 195
Pension gosts 264 198
Other post retirement benefits

Expense arising from share-based pgyments 106 107
2,572 2,530

The expense &rising from share-based payment arrangements does not include £4m credit (2007 charge £12mj} in relation to
National Insurance and income tax costs that are borne by the Group.

7 Directors’ Remuneration
The Directors of the Bank during the year were also Directors of HBOS pic, the parent company of the Bank. No Director received

emoluments for quakfying services to the Bank in the year ended 31 December 2008 or for the comparative period. Details of the
Directors' remuneration are disclossd in the 2008 HBOS pic Annual Report and Accounts.

8 Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Bank’s auditor and its
associates:

2008 2007
Group £m £m
Statutory audit of the Bank and consolidated accounts 1.7 . 1.7
Fees payable for cther services:
Audit of the Bank's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 3.3 29
Other services pursuant to legistation 0.5 0.7
Total audit and audit retated services 5.5 53
Tax services 0.5 0.7
Services relating to information technclogy . 01
Services reiating to corporate finance transactions 0.1 0.3
Other services 0.6 0.4
Total other services 1.2 1.5
Total® 6.7 6.8

(1) Excludes value added taxes

Other services pursuant 1o legislation includes reporting accountant services in support of the fisting rules and Includes the review of
the half yearly resuits.

in respact of the Bank, fees in respect of the statutory aucit were £0.2m (2007 £1.6m) and other fees amounted to £0.1m {2007
£0.Am).
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8 Segmental Analysis

Principal activities of the Bank of Scottand Group are the provision of banking and other financial services in the UK and overseas.

The Group's activities are organised on a divisional basis which reflect the business sector segments below. Information about the
main divisions, including their key products and markets, is located in the Business Review, Other activitios combine the activities of

the insurance & Investmeant and Group Items divisions of the HBOS Group which are not individually material to the Group.

Business sector

Retail Corporate  international Treasury Qther $g?:l
£m £m £m £m m £m

Net interest income - internal {2,392) 318 {3,703) 5,777
Net interest income - external 6,634 1,980 5,180 {5,507) ] 8,293
Net fees and cemmission incorne - internal 144 62 5 [211)
Net fees and commission income - external 988 317 188 210 63 1,826
Net trading income - externat 48 (652) {45) (2,314} {2,963)
Other operating incomae - internal 65 3 5 {73)
Other operating income - external 15 1,594 102 45 158 1,914
Net operating income/(expense) 5,502 3,682 1,732 (2,073) 227 9,070
Administrative expenses - internal {635) {245) 3 877
Administrative expenses - external {1,321) {650) (700) {165) {1,417} {4,253)
Depreciation and amortisation {55} {1,215) (55) {5) (212) {1,542)
Goodwillimpairment (69) (73) {142}
Other operating expenses 7 {44) (37
Operating expenses (2,080} {2,110) {818) (170) (796) (5,974}
Impairment losses on loans and advances {2,230} (6,669) {958) {9,857)
Impairment [ogses on investment securities (737} {35} (1,42%) {2,193}
Operating {loss)/profit 1,192 (5,834) {r9) {3,664) [569) {8,954)
Share of {loss)/profit of jointly controlled entities and associates 3 (951} 10 (938}
{Loss)/profit on sale of businesses 102 {845) {743)
{Loss)/profit before taxation 1,297 (6,785) (914) {3,664) (569) {10,635)
Total assets 280,639 145,022 63,463 148,596 6,258 643,978
Included in total assets:
Interests in jointly controtied entities and associates 68 955 165 5 1,193
Loans and advances to customers 270,971 135,261 62,328 4,455 473,015
Total liabilities 205,328 70,205 17,413 337,642 1,465 632,053
Inciuded in total liabilities:
Customer accounts 159,710 58,579 7,915 35,967 30 262,201
Capital expendiure on property and eguipment
and goftware a1 1 111 9 335 547
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9 Segmental Analysis continued

in July 2008 the Group announced a divisional reorganisation under which the Group's Business Banking became part of
Corporate division, moving from Retail division. In addition, there was a transter of Trading Cash Management from Treasury o
Corporate division. Accordingly the 2007 comparatives have besn restated to raflect thase new structures and certain cther minor
recrganisations, There is NG impact on the 2007 Consolidated Balance Sheet and Income Statement as previously published.

Business sector

Ratail Corporate tntgrnational Treasury Other ETSnD;I
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Net interest income - internal @10 492 (1,280} 1,878
Net interest income - extarnat 5023 1,779 2,365 {1,541) 7,626
Net fees and commission incoma - internal 177 13 2 (192)
Net fees and commission income - external 1,029 448 175 312 1,864
Nst tradling income - extemal 10 73 (2) 104 185
Other operating income - internat 20 16 <] (42)
Other operating income - external 34 2,024 108 69 339 2574
Net operating income 5,383 4845 1,304 388 330 12,349
Administrative expenses - internal (650) {191} 841
Administrative expenses - external (1,425 (762} {804} {184) {1,212} {4,187)
Depreciation and amortisation (o) (1,018) (48) 3 (196} {1,333)
Other operating expenses {15} {118} (133)
Qperating expenses (2,145} {1,871} (B65) (187} (685} (5,653)
Impairment losses on loans and advances {1,278) (618) (116) 2.012)
Impairment losses on investment securities {22} (37} Il (60)
Operating profit/loss) 1,938 2,219 612 201 {346) 4,624
Share of [loss)profit of jointly controlled entities and associates i)} 232 18 o241
Profit on sale of businesses 87 g7
Profit/lloss) before taxation 2,018 245 B30 201 {346} 4952
Total assels 275,410 135,340 72,800 119,567 715 503,632
Inciuded in total assets:
interests in jointly contralled entitiss and associates 81 1,525 133 1,739
Loans and advances to customers 268,573 122,661 68,300 232 501 460,267
Totat liabilties ] 231,322 69,617 32,918 245,502 2,429 581,788
Inciuded in total liabilities:
Customer accounts 169,883 60,810 24,780 17,167 a7 272,687
Capital expenditure on property
and equipment and software [¢] 43 83 12 394 539
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continued

9 Segmental Analysis continued

Geographical
The table below analyses the Group results and assets by geographical area based on the location of the customer.
2008 2007
Reast Rest

UK of world Total UK of world Totat

£m £m £m £m £m £m
Net interest income 6,595 1,608 8,293 6,308 1,318 7626
Nat fees and commission income 1,582 244 1,826 1,735 229 1,964
Net trading income {3,113) 150 {2,963) 149 36 185
Other operating income 4,788 {2,874) 1,914 2,421 153 2,57
Net operating income 9,852 {782) 9,070 10,613 1,738 12,348
Administrative expenses (3,533) {720) (4,253) {3,563) {624) (4,187}
Depreciztion and amortisation (1,482) {60) {1,542} {1,281) {52) {1,333}
Goodwill impairmen? {142} {142)
Other oparating expenses (37) {37) (118) (15} (133)
Operating expenses {5.194) {780} {5,974) (4,982) (B91) {5,6583)
Impairment losses on loans and advances (8,899) (958) (9,857) (1.893) (119 {2012)
Impairment 10588s an investment securilies - {2,158} (35) [2,993) 5%} 1 (60)
Operating (loss)/profit (6,399) {2,555) (8,954) 3,699 925 4,624
Share of {less)/profit of jointly controlled entities and associates {880) {58} (938) 63 178 241
{Loss)/profit on sale of businesses 102 (845) (743} a7 87
{Loss)/profit before taxation {71477 3,458) {10,635) 3,849 1,103 4,952
Total assets 520,273 123,705 643,978 483,207 120,425 603,632
Included in total assets:
Interests in jointly controlled entities and associates 789 404 1,193 1,457 282 1,739
Total liabilities 497,326 134,727 532,053 449,518 132,270 581,788
Inctuded in totai liabilities:
Capital expenditure on property and equipment and schtware 429 118 547 456 83 539




10 Impairment Provisions and Losses

a} Impairment provisions and fosses on loans and advances to customers designated as loans and receivables
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Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Impairment provisions £m £m em £m
At 1 January 3,373 1,561 2,997 1,148
Transfer In under the HBOS Group Reorganisation 1,528 1,643
New impairment provisions less releases 9,064 2111 9,720 1,950
Armounts written off {2.515) (1.726) (2,120} {1,806}
Disposal of subsidiary underizkings (115} 3 (17
Discount unwind/interest income on impaired loans and advances ta customars (149) (129) (140) (123}
foreign exchange translation 135 26 15 2
At 31 December 10,693 3,373 10,475 2,997
impairment provisions are held in respect of:
Retail secured lending 1,218 330 985 284
Retail unsecured lending 1,819 1,889 1,819 1,889
Corporate 6,563 832 7,593 808
Internationa! 1,092 322 68 16
10,693 3,373 10,475 2997
Impairment losses
New impairment provisions less refeases 9,964 2111 9,720 1,950
Recoveries of amounts previcusly written off {107} (99) {99) 83)
9,857 2012 9,621 1,867 -

Net charge to incoms statement

b) impairment provisions and lasses on investment securities

Total impairments on investment securities of £2,193m {2007 £60m) have been charged to the income staternent, of which £1,270m
(2007 £23m) relates to avaitable for sale financial assets (Note 29) and £928m (2007 £37m) relates 10 loans and receivables, as

shown below,
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Impairment provisions fm £m £m £m
At 1 January
New impairment provisions 1ess relzases 923 37 415 24
Amounts written off (37) (24)
At 31 December 923 415
Impairment pravisions are held in respect of:
Treasury 773 as
Corporate 150 64
923 15
2008 2007 2008 2007
Impairment losses £m £m f£m em
New impairment provisions less releases 923 37 415 24
923 37 415 24

Net charge to income statement
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11 Taxation

The tax credit for the year of £2,448m (2007 tax charge of £1,318m) results ins an effective rate of 23% (2007 27%). Included within

the tax credit of £2,448m is an overseas tax charge of £218m {2007 £236m).

2008 2007
£m em
Current tax

Corperation tax on profit for the year (525) 1,112
Adjustments in respect of pricr years {181) 8)
Qvarseas taxation on profit for the year 195 229
Adjustments in respect of prior years ' 14 7
Relief for averseas taxation {21} {65)
{518} 1275

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temparary differences {1,931} 116
Adjustments in respect of pricr years 1 3
Deferred tax changes in rates of corporation tax (Note 24) (76)
{1,930) 43
Tota! income tax on (loss)/profit (2,448) 1,318

The main UK corporation tax rate reduced from 30% to 28% in April 2008. The average rate of UK corporation tax for the year to

December 2008 is 28.5%.

The effective tax rate for the year is 23% (2007 27%) which is lower (2007 lower) than the average rate of corporation tax in the UK of

28.5% (2007 30%j). The differances are explained below:

2008 2007
£m Em
(Loss)/profit before taxation ) (10,635) 4,952
Expected tax {credit)/chargs at 28.5% (2007 30%} {3,031} 1,486
Effects of:
Changes in rates of corporation tax on deferred tax assets and liabitities 10 (76)
{Income)expenses not deductible/{chargeable) for tax purposes 358 (22)
Net effect of differing tax rales overseas 83 ¢}
Gains exempted or covered by losses (102) {88}
impairment on investment securities 52 16
Adjustments in respect of previous periods {168) 2
Tax losses where no deferred tax provided 310
Other 33 {8)
Total income tax on (loss)/profit {2,448) 1,318
Current tax credit recognised directly in equity
Relating to share plans (23}
Relating to available for sale investments (11) (7
1 (140)
Deferred tax (credit)/charge recognised directly in eguity (Note 24}
Relating to share plans 2 59
Relating o available for sale investments {1,917) (B5)
Relating to cash flow hedges (371) (218}
Refating to empioyee benefits {5)
Relating to othar 1
Relating to change in rate of UK corparation tax {5)
{2,291} (228}

In addition there is £nil (2007 £2m) recognised in equity relating to changes in the rates of corporation tax (Note 24),
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12 (Loss)/Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders

By virtue of the exemption contained within Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the income statement of the Bank is not

presented. Of the (loss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders a loss of £4,320m (2007 profit £2,420m) is dealt within the financial

statermnents of the Bank.
13 Financial Instruments Held for Trading

Financial assets and habilities held for trading (other than derivatives) are as follows:

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
em £m £m em
Financial assets held for trading
Debt securities 13,538 36,723 13,838 34,326
Leans and advances to banks 3,344 11,801 3,344 11,532
Loans and advances o customers 5,689 8,357 5,689 8,311
Total 22,571 54,681 22,5671 52,168
Financial liabilities held for trading
Debt securities in issue 3
Deposits by banks 7,631 8,989 7,631 8,989
Customer accounts 11,220 13,247 11,220 12,088
Other liabilities 168 168
Total 18,851 22,705 18,851 22145

Financial assets held for trading include £4,369m {2007 £4,711m} subject to repurchase {Note 42},

Following the International Accounting Standards Board's {IASB) decision in October 2008 to permit the reclassiication of financial

assets, the Group's Treasury division reclassified certain securities from assets held for trading into the available for sale (AFS)
portfolio and, subsequently. in light of increasing illiquicity in the markets for asset backed securities (ABS), changed ihe classification

of ABS from AFS to loans and receivables. Further details of these reclassifications are shown in Note 33.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

14 Derivatives

The Group's derivative transactions are either customer driven and generally matched, held within policyhalder funds as permitted by
the investment strategies or are carried out for proprietary purposes within limits approved by the Board. Where a derivative held for
economic hedging purposes does not qualify for hedge accounting, it is classified below ag held for trading.

The Group uses interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and other derivative instruments to hedge and reduce the interest rate
and currency exposures that are inherent in any banking business. The hedge accounting strategy adopted by the Group is to utilise
a combinaticn of the macro cash flow, micro fair value and nat invastment hedge approaches.

2008
Group Bank
Fair vaiue Falr value
Asset Liability Asset Liability
£m £m £m £m
Total derivatives assets/liabilities:
Held for trading 28,435 28,825 30,920 27,912
Held as qualifying hedges 22,082 12,002 15,454 11,736
Total recognised derivative assets/liabilities 50,517 40,827 46,374 39,648
2007
Group Bank
Fair value Fair valus
Assst Liability Asset Liahility
em £m £m Em
Total derivatives assets/iiabilities:
Held for trading 8,978 7758 8159 7.581
Held as qualifying hedges 4,816 4,405 3.975 2,865
Totat recognised derivative assets/liabilitios 13,784 12,160 12,134 10,548
2008 2007
Fair value Fair value
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Group £m £m £m £m
Derivatives held for trading
Exchange rate related contracts:
Forward foreign exchange 2101 3,562 1,035 856
Cross currency swaps 3,144 1,208 667 297
Options 1 t
§,245 4,770 1,703 1,154
Interest rate related contracts:
Interest rate swaps 18,781 20,725 5375 5,280
Forward rate agreements 1,474 1,461 120 111
Options 884 758 169 286
Futures 47 R 120 17 39
21,186 23,064 5,681 5726
Equity/index and commedity refated ¢ontracts:
Options and swaps 1,256 958 1,408 867
Credit related contracts:
Credit default swaps 748 33 186 8

Total derivative assets/liabilities held for trading 28,435 28,825 8978 77565




14 DPerivatives continued
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2008 2007
Falr value Falr vaiue
Asset Liabitity Asset Liabllity
Bank £m £m £m £m
Derivatives held for trading
Exchange rate related contracts:
Forward foreign exchange 2.205 3,877 1,137 912
Cross currency swaps 3,131 1,207 715 297
5,336 4,884 1,852 1,209
Interest rate related contracts:
interest rate swaps 21,851 19,790 5,31 5492
Forward rate agreements 1,481 1,465 121 111
Qptions 882 1,006 169 301
Futures a7 120 17 39
24,261 22,331 5,618 5,943
Equity and commodity related contract:
Options and swaps 618 614 510 421
Credit related contracts:
Credit default swaps 705 a3 179 8
Total derivative assets/liabifities held for trading 30,920 27,912 8,159 7,681
The Group and Bank has entered into derivative contracts for gualifying hedges as noted below:
2008 2007
Foir value ) Fair value
Asset Liabitity Asset Uahility
Group £m £m Em £m
Derivatives held as qualifying hedges
Derivatives designated as fair value hadges:
Interest rate swaps 4,738 805 738 583
Forward foreign exchange 27
Cross currency swaps 8,863 2,713 1728 1,836
13,601 3,518 2,467 2446
Derivativas designatad as cash flow hedges:
interost rato swaps 7,218 8,337 1,558 1,801
Forward rate agreements 1,037 21 10 4
Cross currency swaps 180 123 756 139
Options 46
Futures 3 25 15
8,481 8,484 2,349 1,959
Total derivative assets/liabilities held as qualifying hedges 22,082 12,002 4,816 4,405
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14 Derivatives continued

2008 2007
Fair value Fair value
Asset Liability Asset Liability
Bank £m £m £m £m
Derivatives held as qualifying hedges
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges:
Interest rate swaps 4,941 556 776 588
Farward foreign exchange 27
Cross currency swaps 2,588 2,713 926 382
7,529 3,269 1,702 995
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:
interest rate swaps 6,681 8,337 1,558 1.802
Forward rate agreements 1,037 3 17 14
Cross currency swaps 180 123 673 1398
Options 27
Futures 4 25 15
7,925 8,467 2,273 1,970
Total derivative assets/liabilities held as qualifying hedges 15,454 11,736 3,975 2,965
15 Loans and Advances to Customers
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Retail secured fending 239,758 235,858 224,982 223,429
Retail unsecured lending 18,592 18,808 18,592 18,908
Corperate, Internaticnal and Treasury 225,358 208,874 337,156 214,250
Gross loans and advances to customers 483,708 463,640 580,730 456,687
Impairment Josses on loans and advances (Note 10) (10,693) (3,373) {10,475) (2,.997)
Net lcans and advances to customers 473,015 460,267 570,255 453,590

Included in loans and advances to custormers ig £56,858m {2007 £nil} subject to repurchase (Note 42).

Loans and advances to custorners include advances securitised under the Group's securitisation and covered bonds programmes.

Further details are given in Note 16.
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15 Loans and Advances to Customers continued

The Group's gross lending exposure before impairment provisions and before taking account of collateral is analysed below;

2068 2007

£m Cm

Agricutture, forestry and fishing 574 647

Energy ) 1,318 2,262

Manufacturing industry 3,887 4,332 —

Caonstryction and property 46,634 41,009 m
Hotels, restaurants and wholesale and retait trade 12,368 12,620 ﬁ
Transport, storage and communication 7,693 6,834 z
Financial 46,521 36,572 &
Other services 12,688 14,749 ija
inchviduals: (SD..
Residential mortgages 238,696 235,771 s

Other personal lending 22,604 15,229

Non-UK residents 90,725 83,518

453,708 483,640

Group Bank

Restated Restated

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Loans and advances that are neither past dus noy impaired 441,276 441,649 544,629 437,764

Loans and advances that are past due but not impaired (Note 36) 16,401 11,622 12,678 9,582

Impaired loans {Note 36) 28,021 10,362 23,423 9,241

MBIAIBAD

483,708 463,640 580,730 456,587

Inciuded in loans and advances that are neither past due nor impaired of the Group are £478m (2007 £226m) of troubled debt
restructurad loans that wouid have been past due ar impaired had their terms not been renegotiated.

Loane and advances to customers include finance leases analysed as foliows:

2008 2007
£m £m
Gross invesiment in finance receivables:
Within one year 2,994 3,208
Between one and five years 4,904 5,805
More than five years 3,086 . 4221
11,884 13,232
Less: unsarned finance income {4,849) (3.234)
Present value of minimum lease payments 16,036 9908
Analysed as: ]
Within one year 2,407 2,669
Between one and five years 3,796 4,645
Maore than five years 3,832 2,683
Finance lease receivables 10,035 9,908

At 31 December 2008 total unguaranteed residual values accrued to the bensfit of the Group amounted to £nit {2007 £20m) and total
accumulated allowances for uncollectable minimurm lease payments teceivable amounted to £105rm (2007 £67m). :
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16 Securitisation and Covered Bonds

a) Securitisation

Loans and advances to customers include advances securitised under the Group's securitisation programmes, the majority of which
have baen sold by subsidiary companies to bankruptcy remote special purpose entities (SPES). As the SPEs are funded by the issue
of debt on terms whereby some of the risks and rewards of the portfolic are retained by the subsidiary, the SPEs are consclidated
fully and all of these advances are retained on the Group's balance sheet, with the related notes in issue included within debt
securities in issue.

b} Covered bonds

Certain loans and advances ta custormners have been assigned to bankruptcy remote limited liability partnerships to provide security
to issues of covered bonds by the Group. The Group retains substantially all of the risks and rewards associated with these loans and
the partnerships are consclidated fully with the loans retained on the Group's balance shest, with the related covered bonds included
within debt securities in issue,

The Group's principal securitisation and covered bends programmes, togsther with the balances of the advancss subject to notes in
issue at 31 December, are listed below. The notes in issue are reportad in Note 26,

2008 2007
Gross assets Notes Gross assets Notes
securitised inissue securitised inissue
Securitisation Type of loan £m £m* £m £m
Permanent UK residential mortgages 32,613 38,490 31,577 31,540
Mound UK residential mortgages 8,063 8,238 4,545 4,454
Swan Australian residential mortgages 2726 2,688
Candide Dutch residential martgages 5,569 5,704 2,705 2,758
Prominent Commaercial loans . 1,053 1,149 1,107 1,108
Pendeford UK residential mortgages 9,888 9,870 2,508 2,551
Melrose Commercial loans 780 1,134
Balliol UK residentiat mortgages 12,701 12,549
Brae UK residential martgages 9,213 9,955
Dakcta UK regidential mortgages 3,988 3,885
Deva UK residential mortgages 6,747 6,703
Penarth Credit card receivables 4,189 2,633
Tioba UK residential mortgages 2,647 2,568
Trinity UK residential mortgages 12,975 12,638
Wolthound Irish residential mortgages 4,083 4,107
Cther UK residential mortgages 68 179 68 182
113,797 118,668 45,986 46,417
Covered Bonds
Coverad Bonds UK regidential mortgages 51,756 49,408 34,711 38,315
Social Housing Covered Bonds UK residential mortgages 3,475 2,919 2,364 1,519
55,231 52,327 37,065 39,834
Total securitisations and covered bonds 169,028 170,995 83081 86,251
Less held by the Group (97,363) {94,265} {1,258) {1,258)
Totat 71,665 76,730 81,793 84,893

The balances reported for the Prominent securitisation abave include £456m (2007 £459m) advances and £456m (2007 £459m)
notes in issue that arise from a funded synthetic securitisation.

Cash deposits of £12,423m (2007 £5,144m} heid by the Group are restricted in use to repayment of the debt securities issued by the
ZPEs and other legal chligations.

In addition to the programmes noted above, the Group entered into synthetic securitisations, referencing an asset pool of £nil (2007
£14,089m), using credit default swaps of £nit (2007 £40my).

In total, the Group has securitised £97,363m of mortgage assets under certain securitisation and covered bond programmes
and purchased all of the loan notes in Issue relating to those issuances for £94,265m. These transactions did not lead to any
derecognition of the mortgage assets as the Group has retained all of the risks and rewards associated with the loan notes. See
Note 42 for further details about the Group's repurchase transactions.
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16 Securitisation and Covered Bonds continued

¢) Other special purpose entities

In addition to the SPEs described above, the Group sponsors two conduit programmes, Grampian and Landale, which invest in
asset-backed securities funded by commercial paper or through banking faciities. Details of the assets secured under these conduit
programmes are given in Note 17,

The SPEs within these conduit prograrmmes are consolidated fully, except for two of the four SPEs within Landale. One is the

central funding company for the conduit that obtains external funding and lends it to the purchasing companies. The second is 2
purchasing company that has acquired floating raie notes issued under the Group's mortgage securitisation programmes and which
is supported by liquidity lines that are provided by third party hanks. These entities are not cansolidated as thera are insufficlent
indicators of contral, in particular as the credit risk relating to the assets heid by the entities and the liquidity risks are not borne by the
Group. If these two entities ware consclidated by the Group the financial impact would be minimal with the principat effects increasing
deposits by banks by £1,126m (2007 £1,756m} and customer accounts by £51m (2007 £100m}) and increasing debt securities in
issue by £50m (2007 decrease by £1,856m). Group profit before tax would be increased by £2m (2007 £0.56m}.

17 Investment Securities

2008
At fair value
though the
income Available Loans and
statement for sale receivables Total
Group tm £m Emi £m
Listed
Debt securities 346 22,064 25,325 47,735
Equity shares 3 110 . 113
Total listed . 349 22,174 25,325 47,848
Unlisted
Debt securities 217 3,714 13,553 17,484
Equity shares 293 2,147 2,440
Total unlisted 510 5,861 13,553 19,924
Total 859 28,035 38,878 87,772
Comprising:
Debt securities 563 25,778 38,878 ) 65,218
Equity shares 296 2,257 2,553
2007
Al fair value
through the
income Aveiiable Loans and
statement for safe receivables Total
Group Lm £m m £m
Listed
Debt securities 632 31844 32,583
£quity shares ' 10 261 271
Total listed 649 32,205 32,854
Unlisted
Debt securities 15 14,833 527 15,511
Equity shares 308 2,042 3,250
Total unlisted 459 17,775 527 18,761
Total 1308 43,980 827 51,615
Comprising:
Dabt securities 790 48,777 527 48,094
Equity shargs 318 3.203 3,521

{1) Restated by £739m as explained in Note 18,
neluded in investment securities is £37,263m (2007 £8,996m; subject to repurchase {Note 42).

Following the international Accounting Standards Board's (JASE) decision in October 2008 to permit tha reclassification of financial
assets, the Group's Treasury division reclassified certain securities from assets held for tracing into the avallable for saig (AFS)
portfolio and, subsequently, in light of increasing Mliguidity in the markets for asset backed securities (ABS), changed the classification
of ABS from AFS to loans and raceivables. Further details of these reclassifications are shown in Note 33,
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17 Investment Securities continued

The fair value mavement during the year on investment securities held at fair value through the income statement is a gain of £37m
{2007 £65m) and the fair value movement during the year on investment securities classified as available for sale is a loss of £8,173m

{2007 loss of £432m).

Loans and recelvables deb? securities include asset backed securities of £17,703m {end 2007 available for sale debt securities
£18,563m) which are held in the Group's Grampian conduit. This is a series of bankruptcy remote special purpose entities (SPEs)
that are funded by the issue of commercial paper and banking facilities. The commaercial paper is included within debt securities in
issue. As some of the rewards and risks of the portfolio are retained by the Group, including the provision of liguidity facilities by Bank
of Scotland plc to the conduit, the assets and liabilities of the conduit are cansolidated ag part of the Group, The Group also has

a smaller conduf, Landale, of which two of the four SPEs are consolidated. These hold available for sale debt securities of £68tm
(2007 £604rm). Detzils of the Landale SPEs that are not consolidated by the Group are given in Note 18.

2008
At falr value
through the
Ingome Available Loans and
statement for sale receivables Total
Bank £m £m £m £m
Listed
Debt securities 346 21,333 45,419 67,098
Equity shares 3 5 8
Total listed 349 21,338 45,419 67,106
Unlisted
Debt securities 1,943 37,745 39,688
Equity shares 1,058 1,058
Total unlisted 3,001 37,745 40,746
Total 349 24,339 83,164 107,852
Comprising:
Debt securities 346 23,2716 83,164 106,786
Equity shares 3 1,063 1,066
2007
At tair value
through the
income Available Loans and
statament for sale raceivables Total
Bank £m £m £m 'm
Listed
Debt securifies 292 20,327 . 20,619
Equity shares 8 8
Total listad 292 20,335 20,827
Unlisted
Debt securities 1713 5.231 7 5,351
Equity shares 1,042 1.042
Total unlisted 13 6,272 7 5,393
Total 405 26,608 7 27,020
Comprising:
Debt securities 405 25,558 7 25,970
Equity shares 1.050 1,050




18 Interests in Jointly Controlied Entities and Associates
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Group Bank
Acquired Equity Share of carrying cost of
book value  adjustments netassets Goodwill vaitle investment
Interests Injointly controlled entities £m £€m £m £m em £m
At 1 January 2008 (as restated) 1,214 148 1,362 5 1,367 103
Exchange translation 5 {5) (5)
Acquisitions and subscriptions of capital 312 312 312
Disposals {40) {a) {43) {43)
Loss after tax {651} {651) {651)
Dividends paid {10} {10} (10)
At 31 December 2008 1,481 {516} 965 5 970 103
The Group's share of joinily controlled entities include the following:
{Loss)
/profit Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
Income Expenses Tax aftar tax assets assets liabilities liabilities Equity
£m £m £m em £m €m £m £m £m
2008 {557) (119} 25 {651) 2,149 4,885 {1,429) {4,635} 970
2007 433 {185) (7} 241 5,589 5272 {4,691) {4,803) 1,367

The Group's unrecognised share of losses for the year is £184m {2007 £22m). For entities making losses, subsequent profits
earmed are not recognised until previcusly unrecognised losses are extinguished. The Group's unrecognised share of losses net of

unrecognised profits on a cumulative basis is £211m (2007 £68m).

Group

Acqitired Equity Share of carrying

book value  adjustrnents net assels Goodwill value

interests in associates £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 {as restated) 357 15 372 372
Acquisitions and subscriptions of capital 160 160 160
Disposals {14) (14) {14)
l.oss after tax {287) {287) {287)
Dividends paid {8) (8) {8)
At 31 December 2008 503 {280) 223 223

The Group's share of associates include the following:
Loss

Revenue after tax Assets Liabitities Equity

£m £m £m £m £m

2008 (277) {287) 2,688 {2,465) 223
2007 26 1,875 {1.503) 372

The Group’s unrecognised share of losses far the year is £126m {2007 £5m). Far entities making losses, subsequent profits

earned are not recognised until previously unrecognised losses are extinguished, The Group's unreco

unrecognised profits on a cumulative basis is £131m (2007 £4m).

gnised share of losses net of
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

18 Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities and Associates continued

The Group's main jointly controlled entities in operation at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Nature of Issued Greup’s Statutory Principal
business share interest accounts area of
capital made up to cperations

Jointly controlled entities
AA Parsonal Finance Limited Finance ordinary £3,000,002 50% Dec 2008 UK
Green Property Investment Fund 1 ple ' Investment ordinary 43,198,100 50% Jun 2008 Ireland
Sainsbury's Bank plc Banking ordinary  £170,000,000 50% Cec 2008 UK

Except for the Green Property Investrment Fund 1 pig which is incorporated in Irefand, all of the interests in jointly controlied entities
above are incorporated in the UK. Al interests In jointly controlled entities are held by subsidiaries. Where entities have acgounts
that are drawn up to a dats other than 31 December management accounts are used when accounting for them by the Group. The
Greup's remaining holding of 13% in Rightmove plc was disposed of during the year (Note 4).

During the year, the Group reviewed the classification of its investments in jointly controlled entities and associates together with

its long term irvesstment foans 10 joint ventures, (collectively the Group's longer term interests in jointly controtied entities and
associates) in light of the deteriorating economic erwircnment. As a result of this review, certain longer term investment securities that
in substance form part of the Group's overall net investment in jointly controlled entities and associates hava been transterred from
investment securities - debt securities classified as loans and receivables to interests in jointly controlied entities and associates.
These longer term interests include loans for which settiement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the Group's interest in jeintly controlled entities and associates have been restated in the 2007 consolidated balance
sheet as shown below. There is no overall impact on the net assets as at 31 December 2007 as a result of this restatement. Certain
2007 disclosures have been amended accordingly.

Group

Acquired Equiity Share of carrying

book value adjustments net assets Googwill valug

Interasts in jointly controlisd entities £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2007 {as published) 328 54 452 2 454
Transfer from investment securities 515 515 515
At 1 January 2007 {as rastated) 913 54 gy 2 969
At 31 December 2007 (as published} 699 148 847 5 852
At 31 December 2007 (as restated) 1,214 148 1,362 5 1,367
Group

Acquired Eouity Share of carrying

book value adjustments not assets Gaoodwilt valua

Interests in associates £m £m £m £m o&m
At 1 January 2007 {as published) 123 56 179 179
Transfer from investment securities 224 224 224
At 1 January 2007 (gs restated) 347 56 403 403
At 31 December 2007 {as published) 133 15 148 148

At 31 December 2007 {as restated) 357 15 372 372
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19 Iinvestments in Subsidiaries

Investmeants in subsidiaries comprise investments in ordinary shares and capital contributions carried al cost.

Banks Others Total
Bank ] ] £m £on m
At 1 January 2008 ) 48 3,225 3,273
Subscriptions of capital 1,217 1.217
Impairment losses {107) {107)
At 31 December 2008 48 4,335 4,383

Impairment losses have been incurred as & result of detericrating economic conditions. The critical accounting estimate in respect of
investment in subsidiaries explaing how such investments are tested for impairment,

Tha main subsidiaries at 31 December 2008 are as foliows:

Bank's intergst
in ordinary

share capital Country of

and voting rights Pringlpal busipess incorporation

Bank of Scottand {Iraland} Ltd 100% Banking Ireland
HBGOS Australia Pty Ltd and subsidiaries 100% Banking Australia
Banco Halifax Hispania SA 100% Banking Spain
Halifax Estate Agencies Ltd 100% Estate agency and financial services UK
HBOS Cavered Bonds LLP 100%™ Residantial mortgage loans UK
Uberior investments pic 100% Investment holding UK

{a} HBOS Covered Bonds LLP does not have ordinary share capital, The Group conselidates a 100% interest in this activity,

The above information is provided in relation to the principal related undertakings and. in accordance with Section 231(5) of the
Companies Act 1985, a full list of related undertakings, as at 31 December 2008, will be annexed to the Company's next Annual
Return 1o be delivered to the Registrar of Companies for Scotland.

On 17 September 2007 in accordance with the provisions of the HBOS Group Recrganisation Act 2GC6 (the Act), the Governor and
Company of the Bank of Scotland registered as a public fimitec company under the Companies Act and changed its name to Bank
of Seotland pic. On the same day, under the Act, the business activities; assets (inclucing investments in subsidiaries) and liabilities of
CAPITAL 8ANK plc, Halifax pic and HBOS Treasury Services plc transferred to Bank of Scotland plc.

Al regulated banking and insurance subsidiaries are required to maintain capital at levels agreed with the relevant regulators; this may
impact those subsidiaries' ability to make distributions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

20 Goodwill and Other Iintangible Assets

Groug Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m m £m &m
Goodwill 667 1,041 376 426
Cther intangibles 481 476 394 357
1,148 1,617 770 783
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
Goodwill £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 1,041 342 426 66
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 649 360
Exchange translation 29 38
Additions 2
Disposals (256) 9
Impairment losses ¢harged to the income statement {142) (50)
At 31 December 667 1,041 376 426
Goodwilt is analysed on a divisional basis as follows:
2008 2007
£m £m
Retail 376 385
Corporate 268 342
Internationa) 23 314
Total 667 1.041




20 Goodwili and Other Intangible Assets continued

The primary component of goodwill disposed of comprises £240m in respect of the .
St. Andrews Austraia Pty Limited to Commonwealth Bank of Australia Limited (Note 4},

The Group carries out semi-annual and, if necessary,
allocatad as described in the accounting policy OR goo

assumptions used and sensitivity of the impairment testing.
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other impalrment reviews of cagh-generating units to which goodwill is
dwill. The critical accounting estimate in respect of goodwill explains the

71

ale of Bank of Western Austraka Limited and

The goodwill impairment of £142m principally comprises £72m being the full write-down of goodwil held in respect of the acquisition

of the ICC business banking division in lreland and £50m being the write-down of goodwill reiating to a specialist area of the UK

credit card business to a recoverable amount, baged on & value in use, of £20m. The write-downs have been triggered principally by

deteriorating ecenomic conditions.

Cumulative impairment losses charged to the incormne statement total £183m (2007 £41m, 2006 £41m and 2005 £nil),

2008 2007
Purchased Purchased
value of Software value of Software
in-force andg other in-force and other
investment intangible investment intangible
contracts assets Tota! contracts assets Total
Group £m £m £m £m m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2 1187 1,189 2 359 361
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 574 574
Excharige translation 24 24 34 34
Acquired through business combination 7 7
Additions 276 276 242 242
Disposals {100} {100} (29} {29)
Disposal of subsidiary uhderiakings {2) (94) (96)
At 31 December 1,203 1,293 2 1,187 1,189
Amortisation
At 1 January 713 713 197 197
Trangler in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 359 359
Exchange translation 32 32
Amertisation charge for the year 153 153 130 130
Disposals {2) {2} (9} {5)
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings {52) (52)
At 31 December 812 812 713 713
Carrying vatue :
At 1 January 2 474 476 2 162 164
At 31 December 481 481 2 474 476
Software
2008 2007
Bank £m £rn
Cost
At 1 January 929 270
Transfer in undar HBOS Group Reorganisation 506
Additions 186 162
Disposals (40} (2
At 31 December 1,075 929
Amortisation
At 1 January 572 162
Transter in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 308
Exchange transiation : {1
Amortisation for the year 119 102
Additions 2
Disposals {9)
At 31 December 681 572
Carrying value
At 1 January 357 108
At 31 December 394 357
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

21 Property and Equipment

2008 2007

Property Equipment Total Property Equipmant Total
Group £m £m £m £m m m
Cost
At 1 January 1,541 1,530 3,071 380 585 965
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 1,072 a36 2,008
Exchange franslation 17 44 61 5 13 18
Additions 63 208 2 117 180 297
Disposats (116) {132) (248) (a1) (179} (220}
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings {53) {108) (161) 2 2)
Transfer from investment property (Note 22) 5 5
Transters and other movements 3 3
At 31 December 1,452 1,542 2,994 1,541 1,530 3,071
Depreciation
At 1 January 625 1,185 1,780 80 430 510
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 509 609 1,118
£xchange translation 7 30 ar 3 7 10
Depreciation charge for the year 61 1560 21 57 161 218
Disposals (18) {102) (120) (26) (50} {76}
Disposal of subsidiary undertakings (16) {B5) (101)
Transfers and other movements 2 2)
At 31 Dacember 659 1,148 1,807 625 1,155 1,780
Carrying value
At 1 January 916 375 1,291 300 155 455
At 31 December 394 1,187 916 75 1,291

793

Included within Group property and equipment are assets that are in the course of construction amounting to £89m (2007 £127m)
which are not depreciated until the assets are brought into use. These are primarily properties that will be classified as investment

properties upon compietion,

2008 2007

Prepeity Equipment Totat Property Equipment Total
Bank Em £Em m m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 1,395 1,345 2,740 222 362 584
Transfer in under HBOS Group Recrganisation 1.089 ag7 2,076
Exchange translaticn 2 3 5
Additions 48 184 232 98 157 256
Disposals {83) {108} {191} (17) (158) {(175)
Transfers and other movements 3 3)
At 31 December 1,362 1,424 2,786 1,395 1,345 2,740
Depreciation
At 1 January 600 1,032 1,632 44 270 314
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 521 668 1,189
Exchange translation (1) {1} {2)
Cepreciation charge for the year 55 133 188 o 143 194
Disposals {13) {80) {a3) (17} (48) {85)
Transfers and other movements 1 [4)]
At 31 Daecember 641 1,084 1,725 600 1,032 1,632
Garrying value
At 1 January 795 313 1,108 178 a2 270
At 31 December 721 340 1,061 795 313 1,108
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22 Investment Properties

2008 2007
Graup £m £m
At 1 January 34 39
Trangfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 54
Additions 18
Disposals {52
Exchange translation 1
Fair value movernent (10) {2
Trangter to property and equipment (Note 21) (5)
At 31 December 43 34

[mvestment proparties are carried at their fair value as datermined by independent qualified surveyors having recent experience in
the Incation and category of the property being valuad. Fair valuas were determined having regard to recent market transactions
for similar preperties and in accordance with guidance published by the Fioyal institution of Chartered Surveyors. Valuations are
performed at teast annually,

Rental income and expenses in respect of the above properties amounted to £2m and £nil respectively (2007 £1m and £nil
raspectively).

23 Qperating Lease Assets

Assets leased to customers includs the foflowing amounts in respect of operating lease assets:

2008 2007
GCarrying Carrying
Cost  Depreciation value Cost Depraciation valua
Group Er £m £m £m tm £m
Ai1 January . 6,483 {1,840) 4,643 3,203 {1.209) 2,084
Trangfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 2,871 (274} 2,597
Exchanga translation 96 (34) 62 (28) 3c 2
Additions 1,488 1,488 1,785 1,785
Disposals {1,733} 685 (1,048) {1,438} 538 (840)
Depreciation charge for the year {1,178) {1,178} {GB5) (985)
At 31 December $,334 {2,367) 3,967 6,483 {1,840) 4,643
2008 2007
Cartying Larrying
Cost  Depreciation value Cost Depreciation valus
Bank Em £m £Em em £m £m
Al 1 January 30 m 29 30 2 20
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation
Exchange translation 2 2 1 1
Additions
Disposals {30) (5) {35) ’ {3 3
Depreciation charge for the year . 6 6 3 3
At 31 December 2 2 30 {1) 29

Euture minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are due to be recaived in the following pericds:

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Naot later than one year 849 864 2 24
Later than one year and not tater than five years 2,245 1,920
Later than five years 52 689

3,146 3,473 2 24

Included in: the depreciation charge for the year is £144m (2007 £1m) in relation to changes in the estimated residual values of certain
operating lease assets.

Total future rainimum sub-lease income of £13m at 31 December 2008 (£19m at 31 December 2007) is expected to be received
under non-cancellable sub-leases of the Group's premises.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

24 Deferred Tax

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

Statutory and tax position £m £'m £m £m
Deferred tax kakility 787 1,300 159 202
Deferred tax asset {3,969) {335) {2,282) (354)
Net position {3.182) 085 {2,123) {152)

At 31 December 2008 a deferred tax liability of £156m {2007 £171m)] relating to investments in subsidiaries has not been recognised

because the Bank controls whether or not the liability will be incurred and it is satisfied that it will not be incurred in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax iosses carried forward to the extant that the realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits is probable,

Deferred tax assets of £92m (2007 £nil) have not been recognised in respect of unrealised capital lossas carrled forward as there are
no predicted future capital profits, Capital kasses can be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition deferred tax assets of £42m (2007 £42m) have not been recognised in respect of Eligible Unreliaved Foreign Tax (EUFT)

carried forward as there are no predicted future taxabie profits against which the unrelieved foreign tax credits can be utilised. EUFT
can be carried forward indefinitely

As g result of the Finance Act 2607, the main UK carparation tax rate reduced from 30% to 28% in April 2008. UK deferred tax

balances that are not expected to have been realised by April 2008 have been restated at the rate of 28%. In addition, the German
corporation tax rate reduced from 25% to 18% in January 2008,

The movement in the net positian is as follows.

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 965 371 {152) {205)
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 786 113
{Cradit)/charge to income for the year (Note 11) (1,930} 119 (611) 79
Credit to equity for the year (Note 11 £2,291) {223) {1,347} {149)

Disposals M
Changes in rate of corporaticn tax recognised in income (Note 11) (76) 9
Changes in rata of corporation tax recognised in equity (Note 11) 5) 3
Other movements 33 (7} (13) 4]
At 31 December {3,182) 965 12,423) {(152)
Deferred tax liabilities
2008
Availabie
Capital for sale Cash ffow Effective

allowances  investments hedges  interest rate Other Total

Group £m Em £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 1,067 15 98 120 1,300
Credit to income for the year {518) (12) {7) (535)
[Credity/charge to equity for the year {13) 2 {12)
Disposals (3) (3) (6}
Other movements 72 {1} {31) 40

At 31 December 620 1] 81 787




24 Deferred Tax continued

Deferred tax assets
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Trading 2008
Avatlable losses
Cash flow Employee for sale carried
hedges benefits Provisions  investments forward Other Total
Group £m £m £ £m £m £m £m
At 1 January {34) {19) {168) {114} (335}
Charge/{credit} to income for the year 5 {348) 977 {1,513) {516} (1,395)
Credit to equity for the year {371} {5) {1,903) {2,279}
Disposals a7 47
Other movements {9} 2 i1 1 n
At 31 December {405) {19) {478) _(924) (1,514) {629) {3,969}
Deferred tax liabilities
2007
. Available
Capital for sale Cash flow Eflgctive
allowancas investments hedges interest rate Other Total
Group £m m £m £m £m €m
At 1 January 362 97 177 63 699
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 749 8 5 121 a5 802
Charge/(credit) to income for the year 39 (2 (i9) {24) (©)
Charge/icredit) to equity for the year (B5) {182) 59 (188)
Change in rate of corporation tax recognised in income (76) {7 (10) (93}
Change in rate of corporation tax recognised in equity 7 A
Other movements (8] 3 (3) {7}
At 31 December 1,087 15 98 120 1,300
Deferred tax assels
2007
Effective
Cash flow Empioyee intergst rate
hedges benefits Provisions adjustment Other Total
Group tm m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January {(10) {162} [C1)) (107 {328)
Transtar in under HBOS Group Reorganisation (13) {40} 49 (112} (116)
Charge to income for the year 3 25 7 125
(Crediti/charge to equity for the year {36) 1 (35)
Change in rate of corporation tax recognised in income 1 a 7 17
Change in rate of corporation tax recognisad in equity 2 2
At 31 December {34) (19) (188) {(114) (335)
Deferred tax liabilities
2008
Avaitable
Capital for sale Cash flow Effective
allowances  investments hedges  interest rate Other Total
Bank £m Em £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 33 18 102 48 202
{Cradit)/charge to income for the year (33) a75 {13) 8 937
(Credit)/charge to equity for the year {982) 2 {880}
At 31 December 1 89 59 159
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Notes to the Financial Statements

continued

24 Deferred Tax continued

Deferred tax assets

Trading 2008
losses
Capital Cash flow Employee carried
allowances hedges benefits Provisions forward Other Total
Bank £€m £m £m Em £m £m €m
At 1 January {39) (10} {160) {145) (354)
{Credit)/charge to income for the year {53} 13 4 138 {1,495) (35) (1,548}
Credit to equity for the year {367) (367)
Other movements (13) {13)
At 31 December {53} {406) {6) {142} {1,495) (180) {2,282}
Deferred tax liabilities
2007
Available
Capital for sale Cash flow Effective
allowances investments hadges interest rate Other Total
Bank em £m m £m £m £m
At 1 January 10 3 18 31
Transfer in under HBOS Group Reorganisation 30 13 171 182 5 401
(Credit)/charge to income for the year (5) 2) {72) 54 (25)
(Crediti/charge to equity for the year 5 {171) (23) (188}
Change in rate of corporation tax recognised in incoma {2) {8) (4) {14)
Other movements (1 {1) (2)
At 31 December 33 18 102 49 202
Deferred tax assets
2007
Eifective
Cash flow Employee interast rate
hedges henefits Provisions adjustment Qther Total
Bank £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January (5) {137) {59) (35} (238)
Transfer in under HBOS Greup Reorganisation 4 (57) {227) (288)
(Credit)/charge to income for the year (2) 22 59 25 104
{Credit)/charge to equity for the year 42} 82 40
Change in rate of corparation tax recognised in income 1 12 10 23
Change in rate of corporation 1ax recognised in eguity 3 3
At 31 December {39) {10} (180} {145) (354)
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25 Provisions

Group Bank

Regutatory Other Regulatory Other
provisions provisions Total provisions provisions Totai
£m £m £m £m £m £
At 1 January 2008 106 66 172 106 29 135

Exchange translation 3 3

Charge to administrative expenses 200 H 231 200 7 207
Utilisad in year {10) {51) {61} (10) {10)
At 31 December 2008 296 49 345 286 38 332

The Group is an authorised institution and operates in the UK or ovarseas within the regulatory framework establishad in the UK by
the Financial Services Authority or overseas by local regulatory bodies. As a result of this, regulatory provisions are established when
alegal or constructive obfigation exists as a result of a past event whers it is prebable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Regulatory provisions include the following:

I. the estimated cost of making redrass payments to customers in raspect of past product sales where sales processes have been
deficiert or whare fees and premiums have been overcharged; and

ii. the costs estimated by management for the FSCS management expense levy against deposit taking firms to fund the UK
compensation scheme for customers of authorised financial services firms that are unable to pay claims made against them.
Further details are given below.

In addition, other provisions include property-related costs in respect of surplus leased space that amounted to £39m {2007 £25m)
at the year end, provisions far long term and annual leave, provisions in respect of lagal liabifties and for obligations under reward
programmes.

The timing of cash outflows for regulatory and other provisions can be uncertain and depend on a number of variables cutwith the
control of the Group. It is estimated that £191m (2007 £35m) of the outstanding provisions will be settled within the next year.

Financial Services Compensation Scheme {FSCS5)

The Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS) is the UK's statutory compensation scheme for customers of authorised
financial services firms that are unable to pay claims made against them, Bank of Scotland pic, as an authorised firm, is obliged to
pay levies to the FSCS as part of its funding arrangements, as explained below.

The FSCS raises levies against firms authorised by the Financial Services Authority (FSA) in respect of its management expenses
and compensation costs. Under a haw funding system intreduced on 1 April 2008, the levies are splil into five broad classes, one of
which is protected deposits. Each deposit-taking firm contributes an amount in respect of these costs. which is praportiongte to their
share of the protected deposits for the relevant year. The levies are subject to the maximum thresholds determined by the FSA.

Since October 2008, the FSCS has contributed 1o the costs of transferring, and/or paid compensation to, the customers of certain
fafled firms (including Bradford & Bingley plc, Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander Limited, Heritable Bank pic, Landsbanki's icesave and
London Scottish Bank plc). As a result, the FSCS is now a creditor of these firms.

To fund these activities, the FSCS has oktained interest-only finance from HM Treasury of £19.7 biflion (as at 16 December 2008},
which is due to be refinanced in 2011, The FSCS expects the amounts owed fo it by falled firms to be reduced as assets are
realisad or other payments are made to crecitors, In turn, this will enable the FSCS to reduce its borrowings from HM Treasury.

In the meantime, the FSCS will need to meet ils anticipated obligations in respect of interest payments cn its borrowings through
management expenses levies oh authorised firms.

The FSA, on behalf of the FSCS, has issued guidance regarding the levies to be made by the FSGS in 2009. This guidance indicates
that the FRGS is expectad to raise the next levy before 31 March 2009 and that the annuat limit on the FSCS management expenses
lavy for 2008/09 has been set at £1 bilion, B80S has accrued a charge of £200m in respect of forecast management expenses levies
for the levy years 2008/08 and 2009/10 that are based upon its share of protected deposits as at 31 December 2007 and 2008
respectively.

Whan the existing borrowing with HM Traasury is refinanced in 2011, a repayment schedule for the outstanding principal will be
agreed between HM Treasury and the FSCS, after which the FSCS will ralse compensation costs levies against firms in respect of
these amounts. Thesa levies could be significant. However, no provision has been made for these costs to date as their amount is
unknawn and is not expected 1o be quantifible untl 2011 at the earligst.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

26 Debt Securities in Issue

-

2008 2007
At fair At tair

valize thraugh AL vatue thraugh At

the income amortised the incoma amartised
statement cost Total statement cost Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m m
Certificates of deposit 50,956 50,856 63,680 63,680
MTNs issued 48,630 48,630 28,188 29,198
Covered bonds 34,022 34,022 39,184 39,184
Commercial paper 12,132 12,132 28,648 28,648
Securitisation ' 42,708 42,708 1,842 43,967 45,808
188,448 188,448 1,842 204,678 208,520

Included within commercia! paper above is £2,979m (2007 £11,954m) issued by the Grampian conduit and £nit (2007 £137m) issued
by the Landale conduit,

The additional amount contractually payable on maturity of the debt securities held at fair value through the income statement at 31
December 2007 was £294m. During 2007, £0.1m moverment in the fair value of these liabilities was attributable to changes in credit
spread risk.

2008 2007
At fair A fair

value through At vilue through At

the income amortised the incame amortised
statement cost Total statemant cost Total
Bank £m £m £m £m £m Em
Certificates of deposit 50,956 50,956 63,680 63,680
MTNs issued 47,897 47,897 29,939 29,930
Covered bonds 34,022 34,022 39,184 39,184
Commercial paper 9,086 9,086 16,385 16,385

Securitisation 1,495 1,495

143,456 143,456 148,168 149,188
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Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m m £m £m

Preferred securities 403 247
Preference shares 1,227 1,227 1,227 1,227

Subordinated liabilities

Dated 11,201 10,485 10,505 9,522
Undated 5,948 3,752 6,350 4,106
18,779 17,881 18,082 14,855
Group
2008 2007
Preferred securities £m £im
£250m 8,117% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities Series 1 of £1,000 each (Class A) 250 250
£150m 7.754% Non-cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities Series 2 of £1,000 each (Class B) 150 150
©2bn 6.0064/6.0895% Fixed Rate Perpetual Securities 2,000
Fortrose preference shares 2
Newburgh preference shares 2
Accruad interest 3 13
403 24417

During 2007 Fortrose Invesiments Limited, a subsidiary, issued £2,000m of Fixed Rate Perpetual Securities and other subsidiaries
issued Preferred Securities totalling £4m, all of which were redeemed during 2008.

Group

2008 2007 2008 2007

Preference Shates £m £m £m £m
£300m ¢ 1/4% Non-cumulative Irredeemalie £1 preference shares 300 300 300 300
£100m 9 3/4% Non-cumulative irredeemable £1 preference shares 100 100 100 100
ESOOm 6 1/8% Non-cumulative preference shares 800 800 800 800
Accrued interest 27 27 27 27
1,227 1,227 1,227 1,227

There have been no new issues during 2008,
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27 Other Borrowed Funds continued

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007
Dated subordinated liabilities £m £m £m £m
500m 5.50% instruments 2009 478 367 478 367
650m 4.75% Subordinated Bonds 2009" 621 477 621 477
US$500m Notes 2010 342 249 342 249
US$150m Notes 2011 103 75 103 75
12.8m 6.25% Instruments 2012 12 g
325m 6.125% Notes 2013 310 239 310 239
1,000m Subordinatead Callable Fixed/Floating Rate instruments 2013 734 734
£250m 8.375% Instruments 2019 250 250 250 250
750m 5.5% Notes 2012 716 551 716 551
USE1,600m 4.25% Subordinated Guaranteed Notes 2013 684 499
£330m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014 330 330 330 330
£300m Fieating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014 300 300 300 300
£700m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014 700 700 700 700
£300m Ficating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014 300 300 300 300
£250m 119% Subordinagted Bands 2014” 250 250 250 250
Aus$200m instruments 2014 88
Aus$125m instruments 2015 55
Aus$200m instruments 2018 88
Aus$200m instruments 2016 88
£150m 10.5% Subordinated Bonds 2018° 150 150 150 150
£500m 9.375% Subardinated Bonds 2021° 500 500 500 500
£520m Floating Rate Subordinatad Notes 2014 520 520 520 520
£300m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014 300 300 300 300
£300m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014* 300 300 300 300
£270m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014” 270 270 270 270
£500m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014 500 &0C 500 500
£2,000 Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000
Aus$300m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2017 131
£1.000m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 2014 1,000 1,000
Falr value hedge adjustments 120 28 120 28
Unamortised premiums, discounts and issug costs n (n (1) (1)
Accrued interest 146 138 146 133

11,201 10,485 10,505 9,522

* Trangferred in under the HBOS Group Recrganisation Act 2006

Cn 30 June 2008, £1bn floating rate subordinated notes were Issued by the Bank, at par, to its parent undeartaking HBOS plc. The

notes bear interest at the threa month LIBOR plus 67 basis points.
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27 Other Borrowed Funds continued

During 2007 the Bank Issued floating rate subordinated notes at par to its parent HBOS plc, as follows:

On 28 February 2007, £520m floating rate subordinated notes were isstied by the Bank, at par, to its parent undertaking H30S pic.
The notes bear interest at the three month LIBOR rate plus 76 basis points.

On 26 August 2007, A$300m floating rate subordinated notes were iszued by a subsidiary of the Bank, at par. to its ultimate parent
undertaking HBOS ple. These instrurnants bear interest at the three month Australian Bank Bilt rate plus 76 basis points.

On 31 October 2007, £500rn floating rate subordinated notes were issued by the Bank, at per, to ite parent undertaking HBOS plc.
The riotes bear interest at the three month LIBOR rate plus 76 basis points.

©On 31 December 2007, £2bn floating rate subordinated notes wers issued by the Bank, at par, to its parent undertaking HBOS ple.
The notes bear interest at the three month LIBOR rate plus 76 basis points.

No repayment, for whatever reason, of dated subordinated liabilities prior to their stated maturity and no purchase by the relevant
entity of its subordinated debt may be made without the consent of the Financiaf Services Authority. On a winding up of the Bank or
subsidiary, the claims of the hoiders of dated loan capital shali be subordinated in right of payment to the claims of all depositors and
creditors of the Bank or subsidiary other than creditors whose claims are exprassed ta rank parl passu with, or junior to, the claims of
the holders of the dated loan capital.

Group Bank
2008 2ner 2008 2007

Undated subordinated liabifities : £m £m £m £m
US$300m Reset Notes
£200m Perpetual Notes 200 200 200 200
£300m Pempetual Regulatory Tier 1 Securities 300 300 300 300
500m Instruments 478 367 478 367
US%250m Floating Rate Primary Capital Notes 174 126 171 125
£150m tnstruments 150 150 150 180
JPY 170n Instruments 128 76 128 7B
£100m Instruments 100 100 100 100
JPY b instruments 40
£300m Instrumants ‘ 300 300 300 300
250m Parpetual Preferred Notes 250 250
£150m Perpetual Preferred Notes 150 150
£150m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 150 150 150 150
£500m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes 500 500 500 500
£100m 12% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds® 100 100 100 100
£100m 8.75% Perpatual Subordinated Bonds™ 100 100 100 100
£75m 13.625% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds” 75 75 75 75
£50m 9.375% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds” 50 50 50 50
£500m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes” 500 580G 500 500
£300m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes” 300 300 300 300
£250m Floating Rate Subordinated Notes* 250 250 250 250
£2,000 Floating Rate Subordinated Notes C 2,000 2,000
Fair value hedge adjustmenis 67 43 66 33
Unamorised pramiums, discounts and issue costs {4) 5 {4} {5)
Accrued interest 33 K} 36 35

5,948 3,752 6,350 4,106

* Transferred in under the HBOS Group Reorganisation Act 2006

On 30 September 2008, £2bn floating rate subordinated notes were issued by the Bank, at par, to its parent undertaking HBOS plc.
The notes bear interest at the three montn UBOR rate plus 133 basis points.

No exercise of any reciemption option or purchase by the relevant antity of any of the undated subordinated liabiities may be made
without tha consent of the Financial Services Authority. On a winding up of the Bank or subsidiary, the claims of the holders of
undated loan capital shall be subordinated in right of payment to the claims of all depositars and ¢reditors of the Bank or subsidiary
other than creditars whose claims are expressed to rank pari passu with or junior to the claims of the hciders of the undated Joan
capital. The undated loan capital is junior in point of subordination to the dated loan capital referred to above.
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28 Share Capitat

Ordinary

shares
Allotted, called up and fully paid £m
At 1 January 2007 436
Shares issued B3
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 499
Shares issued 825
At 31 December 2008 1,324

Authorised share capital
At 31 December 2008 the authorised share capital comprised:

Ordinary shares
8,085 million ordinary shares of 25 pence each (2007 2,085 million).

On 26 February 2009 an ordinary resoluticn was passed to increase the authorised ordinary share capital of BoS plc by a further

16,000 million to 24,085 million {Note 44).

Preference shares

The terms of the following preference shares when issued are such that these shares are classified as other borrowed funds rather

than as issued share capital,

375,000,000 9.25% non-cumulative irredeemable preference shares of £1 each (2007 375,000,000),
125,000,000 9.75% non-cumulative iredeemable preference shares of £1 each (2007 125,000,000),
250,000 8.117% non-cumulative perpetual preference shares class ‘A’ of £10 each (2007 250,000},

150,000?.?54%. non-cumulative perpetual preference shares class ‘B’ of £10 each (2007 150,000).

Note 27 details the preference sharas that have been issued and c¢lassified as other borrowed funds.

Issued share capital

At 31 December 2008 the Company's issued ordinary share capital amounted to 5,296,712,311 shares (2007 1,996,712,311).

During June 2008, 300 million ordinary shares were issued at £5.00 each. In September 2008 500 million ordinary shares were

issued at £3.00 each and in December 2008, 2,500 milion ordinary shares were issued at £1.00 each. On 26 February 2009

13,918,333,333 ardinary shares were issued at £0.60 each (Note 44).
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fl

Share Share Cash flow Available Other Retained
capital premium hedge for sale reserves™ earnings Minority
reserve reserve®™ interests Total

Group £€m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
At 1 January 2008 499 6,343 {85) {313) 1,565 13,479 356 21,844
Foreign exchange translation {23) 118 i} 106
Available for sale investments:

Net change in fair value {8,173} {8,173)

Tax thereon 2,276 2,216

Realised gain on sale transferred

to the income statement {(Note 3) {24) {24)

Tax thereon 7 7

impairment recognised in income

statement (Note 10b) 1,270 1,270

Tax thereon (355) (355)
Cash flow hedges:

Effective portion of changes in

fair value taken to equity {3,889) (3,889)

Tax thereon 1,088 1,088

Losses transferred to income

statement {Note 3) 2,561 2,561

Tax thereon {717) {717}
{Loss)/profit for the year {8,238) 51 {8,187)
Total recognised income and expense {957) {5,022) 118 {8,238) 62 {14,037)
Dividends paid (Nate 30) {1,228) {43) {1,271)
issue of new shares {Note 28} 825 4,675 5,500
MI acquisitions 242 242
Repayment of equity to
minority shareholders {353} (353)
At 31 December 2008 1,324 11,018 {1,042) 15,335} 1,683 4,013 264 11,925

{a) The avalable for sale reserve is comprised of £(5,285)m (2007 £(450Hm) in respect of treasury assets and £(50)m (2007 £137m} in respect of corporate and other

investments.

(b} Other reserves principally include the merger reserve of £434m arising from the combination of Halifax and Bark of Scotland in 2001 and the merger reserve of

£812m arising under the HBOS Group Reorganisation.

(¢} The cumulative balance for exchange translation at 31 December 2008 is £67m {2007 £{28)m).
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29 Shareholders’ Equity continued

Other reseryes
Share Share Cash flow Available Other Retained Minority Total
capital premium hedge for sale reserves earnings interests
reserve reserve (a) (3]

Group £m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
At 1 January 2007 436 3,928 416 204 486 8,568 369 12,405
Foreign exchange transtation 2 6) 12 8
Available for sale investments:

Net change in fair value {432) (432)

Tax thereon 96 98

Realised gains on sale transterred

to the income statement (Noie 3) {281) {281

Tax therecn 80 80

Impairment recognised in income

statement {Note 10b) 23 23

Tax therson (&) (6}
Cash flow hedges:

Effective portion of changes in

fair value taken tc equity (313) {313}

Tax thereon 97 97

Gains transferred to income

staternent (Note 3) (417} 417)

Tax therecn 125 125
Profit for the year 3,608 30 3.638
Total recognised income and expense (508} {518) 8) 3,608 42 2618
Transfer in under HBOS
Group Reorganisation 7 1 1,085 5,0M 15 8,119
Divigends paid (Note 30) {1,872) {43} (1,715}
Issue of new sharas (Note 28) 83 247 98 2,578
Disposat of subsidiaries (125) {125}
Movements in share-based
compensation reserve (36) {36)
At 31 December 2007 499 6,343 (85) {313} 1,565 13,479 356 21,844

{a) The availabile for sale reserve is comprised of £{5.285)m (2007 £{450)m) in respect of treasury assets and £{50)m (2007 £137m) in respect of corporate and other
investments.

{b) Chhar reservas principally include the merger reserve of £E494m arising from the cormbinaticn of Halfax and Bank of Scotland in 2001 and the merger reserve of
£612m arising under the HBQS Group Reorganisation.
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Share Share Cash flow OT‘% Retainad Total
capital premium hedge for sale reserves® earnings
resarve reserve’™

Bank £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
A1 January 2007 436 3,926 7 584 3,872 8,805
Foraign exchange translation ) {7}
Available for sale investments:

Ned change in fair value 310 (310)

Tax thereon 62 &2

Net gains transferred to income statement (62} {62)

Jax thereon 51 51
Cash flow hedges:

Effective portion of changes in fair value
" taken to equity (299) (229

Tax therson 90 a0

Net losses transferrad to income staternent (410) {4105
Tax thereon 120 120
Profit for the year 2,420 2,420
Total recognised income and expense {499) {259) " 2,420 1,655
Transfaer in under HBGS Group Reorganisation 386 18 1,086 5,457 6,947
Oividends paid (Note 30) (1,672} (1,672)
lssue of new shargs {Note 28} 63 2,417 2,480
Movements share-based compensation resarve (36) {38)
At 31 December 2007 and t January 2008 499 6,343 {113} {234) 1,643 10,041 18,179
Available for sale investments:

Neat change in fair value {4,181) {4,181}

Tax thergon 1,189 1,189

Net gains transferred to income statement 43 43

Tax thereon {12) {12

Impairment recognised in incame

statement 651 651

Tax thereon {185) {185}
Cash flow hedges:

Effective portion of changes in fair value

taken to equity (3,881) {3,881)

Tax thereon 1,002 1,092

Net losses transferred to income statement 2,588 2,588

Tax thereon {725) {725}
Loss for the year (4,320) {4,320)
Total recognised income and expense (826) (2,495) {4,320) (7,741)
Dividends paid {Note 30) {1,205} {1,205)
lssue of new shares (Note 28) 825 4,675 ] 5,500
At 31 December 2008 1,324 11,018 {1,039) {2,729) 1,643 4,516 14,733

{a) The avallable for sale reserve is comprised of 6(2.468}m {2007 £480m} in respect of freasury assets and £{261)m (2007 £137m} in respect of corparate and other

investments,

{b) Other reserves principally inciude the merger reserve of £494m arising from the combination of Hafifax and Bank of Scetland in 2001 and the marger reserve of
£612m arising under the HBOS Group Reorgarisation. The cumulative balance for exchange translation at 31 December 2008 is £{28Im (2007 £{28)m).
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30 Dividends

Dividends are charged to reserves only when the Bank has a contractua! obligation to pay. The following dividends have been
charged to retained earnings during the year:

Grgup and Bank
2008 2007
. £m £m
Ordinary share dividends
2008 final dividend 1,050
2007 inmerim dividend 622
20067 final dividend 1,205
Preference dividends
Equity cividends paid 23
1,228 1,672
31 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m cm
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 43 37
Guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit 4,898 6,491 10,223 10,124
4,808 6,534 10,223 10,161
Commitmenis
Short term trade related transactions 137 115 76 88
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other commitments 1o lend with a maturity:
Up te and including ona yaar 50,211 68,253 47,116 71,620
Over one year 33,100 31,416 30,971 26,384
83,457 98,784 78,163 98,090

Inciuded above in the Bark's disciosures are guarantees to subsidiaries of £5,866m (2007 £4,288m) and commitments to
subsidiaries of £nil (2007 £12,851m). The Bank provides credit enhancement on the assets of its Grampian conduit vehicles through
letter of credit. A #abifity of £422m has been recognised covering the collective impairment on asset backed securities (ABS) held in
the Grampian vehicles.

The contractual amounts above indicate the volume of business outstanding at the year end and do not reflect the underlying credit
and other risks, which are significantly lower as some facilities wili not be drawn down and some facilities that are drawn will be
supported by collateral.

Whaere the Group or Bank is a lessee the future minimum lease payments under non-canceilable operating leases are due to be paid
in the following pericds:

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
Mot later than one year 161 170 129 124
Later than one year and not later than five years 5983 627 470 453
Later than five years 1120 1,205 720 751
1,874 2,002 1,319 1,328

Where the Group is a lessee the future obligations payable under finance leases are as follows:
2008 2007
Group £m £m
Not later than one year 1

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure on property and equipment that is authorised but not provided for in the accounts,
for contracts which have been entered into amount to £18m (2007 £21m), Commitrments for contracts which have been placed in
relation 1o operating lease assets amount to £10m (2007 £11m).
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31 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments continued
Legal and regulatory matters

a) Unarranged overdraft charges

On 27 July 2007 it was announced that members of the Group, atong with seven other major UK current account providers, had
reached agreement with the OFT to commence legal proceedings in the High Court of England and Wales for a declaration {or
declarations) to resolve legal uncertainties concerning the fairmess and lawfulness of unarranged overdraft charges (the Test Case). it
was also announced that HBOS and thosa other providers will seek a stay of all current and potential future court proceedings which
are brought against therm in the UK concerning these charges and have chtained the consent of the Financial Ombudsman Service
fFOS) not to proceed with cansideration of the merits of any complaints concerning these charges that are referred 1o them prior to
the resolution of the Test Case, By virtue of a walver granted by the FSA of its complaints handling rules, HBOS (and other banks,
including the banks party to the Test Case) will not be dealing with or resolving customer complaints about unarranged overdraft
charges while the waiver is in forca. On 22 January 2002, the FSA confirmed that it Is extending its walver regarding unarranged
ovardraft charges complaints until 26 July 2009.

The first step in the Test Case was a tral of certain prefiminary issues concerning the legal status and enforceability of contractual
tarms relating to unarranged overdraft charges. This preliminary trial concluded on 8 February 2008 and the judgment was handed
down on 24 April 2008. The judgment held that the contractual terms relating to unarranged overdraft charges currently used by the
Group (i) are noi capabls of being penalties, but (i) are not exampt from assessment for fairmess uncer the Unfair Terms in Consumer
Contract Regulations 1999 (UTCCRs),

At a court hearing on 22 and 23 May 2008, the Judge granted HBOS and the other Test Case banks permission to appeal his
decision that current unarrangad overdraft charges are assessable for faimess under the UTCCRs. This appeal concluded on 5
Novemnber 2008. On 26 February 2008, the Court of Appeal dismissed the banks’ appeal and held that the charges are assessable
for fairness. The banks will now e applying to the House of Lords for permission to appeal this judgement.

A furtner hearing tock place in early July 2008, at which the Court was asked to consider whether terms and conditions previously
used by the Test Case banks are capable of being penalties and whether the Judge's decision in April 2008 (that tha banks' current
contractual terms are capable of being assessed for fairness under the UTCCRs) can be applied to historic terms,

The Court handed down its judgment on 8 October 2008 on this second stage of the test case process. The Court ruled that
charges applied under Halifax and Bank of Scottand's previously used terms and conditions cannat be penalties. Howevar, the Court
also ruled that the historic terms and conditions are not exempt from assessment for faimess under the UTCCRs. The banks intend
1o appeal this latter decision.

Further Court hearings will be required before the test case process is concluded.
A definitive outcorme of the Tast Case is uniikely to be known for at teast twelve months.

Given the early stage of these proceedings and the uncertainty as 1o thelr outcorne, itis not practicable at this time to estimate any
potential financial effect.

b) Payments Protection Insurance (PPl

The final raport from the Competition Commission (CC) into Payment Protection Insurance (PP was receivad on 28 January 2009.
The remedies published were broadly similar to those outlined in the CC’s Provisional Decision with some changes to the sales
process.

Whitst the Group believe many of the remedies could improve customer searching and enable switching, the inability to sell
approptiate insurance products at a point when custemers take on increased financial commitment, will ikely result in lower levels of
protection for UK consumers.

The Group is actively reviewing its custorner propositions in light of the CC's final report to ensure that the Group continue to offer a
valuable protection product to the Group's customers.

The Group tock the decision to launch a regular premium protection product, This was launched in early February 2009.

The FOS has been receiving a large number of comptaints in relation to PPl sold by a number of praviders and has written 1o the FSA
suggesting an industry wide review of PP} sales standards. [n response, the industry is working on a Statement of Principles to define
a consistent way of handling sales complaints. The FSA is considering FOS' suggestions and a statement from tha FSA in relation to
its most recent thematic work in relation to PPt is expected in the first quarter of 2009,

¢) Other legal and regulatory matters

The Group Is engaged in other litigation in the UK and overseas arising out of its normal business activities. The Group considers that
none of these actions are material and has not disclosed any contingent liahility in respect of these actions because it is not practical
to do so.
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32 Measurement Basis of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The accounting policies descrine how different classes of financial instruments are measured, and how income and expenses,
inctuding fair value gains and losses, are recognised. The following table analyses the carrying amounts of the financial assets and
liabitities by category and by balance sheat heading.

2008
fair u
the income statgment
Derivatives Held Designated Avallable Loans and Financial Total
designated for upeon for sale receivables liabilities
as hedging trading initial at amortised
instruments recopnition cost Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2008
Financial assets
Cash and baiances with
central banks 2,502 2,502
Items in course of cellection 445 445
Financial assets held for trading 22,571 22,57
Derivative assats 22,082 28,435 50,517
Loans and advances to banks 12,445 12,445
Loans and advances to customers 473,015 473,015
Investment securities 859 28,035 38,878 67,772
Other financial assets 362 362
Total financial assets 22,082 51,006 859 28,035 527,647 629,629
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 97,066 97,066
Customer accounts 262,201 262,201
Financial liablities held for trading 18,851 18,851
Derivative liabilities 12,002 28,825 40,827
Debt securities in issue 188,448 188,448
Other borrowed funds 18,779 18,779
Other financial liabilities 241 241
Total financial liabilities 12,002 47,676 566,735 626,413
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32 Measurement Basis of Financial Assets and Liabilities continued

2007
At fair valug through
{he income statemant
Derivatives Held Designated Avaiabla Loans and Financial Total
designated for Upon for sale receivablas liabilitiss
as hedging trading initial at amortised
instruments racognition cost
Group £m £m £m m £m £m £m
As at 31 Decdember 2007
Financial agsets
Cash and balance with
central banks 2944 2,944
tems in course of coliection 845 945
Financlal assets held for trading 54,681 54 681
Derivative assets 4,816 8,978 13,724
Loans and advances to banks 4,095 4,005
Loans and advances to customers 460,267 460,267
Investrent securities 1,108 49,980 527 51,615
Ofther financial assets 557 557
Total financial assets 4,816 63,659 1,108 49,980 469,335 588,898
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 41,513 41,513
Customer accounts 272,687 272,687
Financial liakiltties held for trading 22,7G5 22,705
Derivative lighilities 4,405 7755 12,160
Debt securities in issue 1,842 204,678 206,620
Invesiment contract liabilities 98 98
Other borrowed funds 50 17,631 17,881
Other financial liabilities 286 286
Total financial liaklities 4405 30,460 1,890 £36,085 573,850
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32 Measurement Basis of Financial Assets and Liabilities continued

2008
Atfalryalue through
the ingome statement.
Derivatives Held Designated Available Loans and Financial Total
designated for upon for sale receivables Habilitles
as hedging trading Initial at amortised
instruments recagnition cost Bank
£m m £m £€m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 2008
Financial assets
Cash and balances with
central banks 1,820 1,820
ltems in course of collection 449 449
Financial assets held for trading 22,571 22,571
Derivative assets 15,454 30,920 46,374
Loans ang advances to banks 34,144 34,144
Loans and advances to customers 570,255 570,255
investment securities 349 24,339 83,164 107,652
Other financial assets 649 649
Total financial assets 15,454 53,491 349 24,339 690,481 784,114
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 97,091 97,094
Customer accounts 458,967 458,967
Financial liabiities held for trading 18,851 18,851
Derivative liabilities 11,736 27,912 39,648
Debt securities in issue 143,456 143,456
Other borrowed funds 18,082 18,082
Other financial fiabilities 133 133
Total financial liabilities 11,736 46,763 717,720 776,228
2007
Alfalrvalue through
thaingome stalement
Derivatives Held Designated Avallable Loans and Financal Total
dasignated for upon for sale receivables lrabiiities
as hedging trading initial at amortisec
instrumants rgcognition cost
Bank £m £m £m &m £m £m £m
As at 31 December 20G7
Financial assets
Cash and balance with
centra hanks 1,667 1,667
Items in coursa of collection 890 890
Financial assets held for trading 52,169 52,169
Derivative assets 3,975 8,159 12,134
Loans and advances to banks 25,458 25,458
Loans and advances to customers 453,590 453,590
Investment securities 405 26,608 7 27,020
Other financial assets 2,235 2,235
Total financial assets 3,975 60,328 405 26,608 483,847 575,163
Financial liabifities
Deposits by banks 47,321 47,321
Customer accounts 316,849 316,849
Financial liabilities held for trading 22145 22,145
Derivative liabilities 2,965 7,581 10,646
Debt securities in issue 149,188 149,188
Other borrowed funds 14,855 14,8685
Other financial liabilities 103 103
Total financial flabilities 2,965 29,726 528,318 561,007
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33 Financial Asset Reclassifications

FoiloWing the puglication by the Internationat Accounting Standards Board {IASB) and subsequent endorsement by the European
Union in October 2008 of the amendments to Internationa Accounting Standard 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement' {|AS 39) and IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, the Group has reviewed the classification of its trading
pertfolio.

Thie Group has noted that the ongoing market dislocation and the deterioration of the world’s financial markets that has occurred
during the third quarter of 2008 is a sufficiently rare circumstance to warrant a review of the classification of financial assets held for
trading.

With effect from 1 July 2008, the Group transferred from the held for trading classification certain asset backed securities (ABS) and
floating rate notes (FRNs) with fair vatues at the time of £9,112m and £3,098m respectively, to the available for sale {AFS) classification
withir investment securities. The carrying values as at 31 December 2008 are £10,132m and £3,410m respectively and the fair values
as at 31 December 2008 are £10,047m and £3,410m respectively.

Subseguent 1o the transfers performed on 1 July 2008, the Group datermined in light of increasing illiquidity in the markets for A8
to change the classification of certain ABS assets from AFS to loans and receivables. A portfolio of ABS was reclassified to loans and
receivablas with etfect from 1 November 2008 with fair values ai that time of £35,446m. The carrying values and falr valuss as'at 31
December 2008 are £37,173m and £35,791m respectivaly.

The financial impact of the reclassifications described above is set cut below.

a) Debt securities reclassified from held for trading to AFS, with effect from 1 July 2008 .

Negative fair value adjustments of £730m wers taken through the income staterment relating to thesa assets for the period from 1
January 2008 to 30 June 2008 {full year 2007 £212m). If these assets had not been raclassified during the year additional negative
fair value adiustments of £981m, net of accration of discount of £98m, would have been recognised in the income statement and the
AFS reserve movement would have been reduced by £776m (post tax) for the period from 1 July 2008 to 31 December 2008.

At 1 July 2008 the effective interest rates on the reclassified debt securities rangad from 3% to 12% with expected recoverable cash
flows of £13,359m.

b) ABS reclassified from available for sale to loans and receivables, with effect from 1 November 2008

Negative fair value adjustments of £3,301m (post tax) were taken through AFS reserves for the period from 1 January 2008 to 31
October 2008.(full year 2007 £319m post tax). If these assets had not been reclassified during the year additional negative fair value
adjustmants of £708m (post tax) would have been recognised in the AFS reserves for the period from 1 November 2008 to 31
December 2008.

Foliowing this change in classification, these securities are no longer subject to measurement at fair value, alihcugh they wili continus
to be subiect to regular impairment testing.

At 1 November 2008 the effective interest rates on the ABS reclassified, ranged from 3% to 12% with expected recoverable principal
flows of £40,968m.
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34 Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and fiabilities not carried on the Group's
balance shast at their fair values. This note provides agditional information in respect of financial instruments carried as toans and

receivables or held at amortised cost (Note 32).

Carrying Carrying Fair Fair
armount amourt value valus
2608 2007 2008 2007
Group £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
l.oans and advances to banks 12,445 4,095 12,478 4095
Loans and advances tc customers 473,015 460,267 462,062 482,363
investrent securities 36,872 527 38,056 27
Other financial assets 362 557 362 557
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 97,066 41,513 97,100 41,528
Customer accounts 262,201 272,687 262,952 273,883
Debt securities in issue 188,448 204,678 182,470 203,579
Other borrowed funds 18,779 17,831 20,839 16,414
Other financial liabilities 241 286 240 286
Garrying Carrying Fair Fair
amount amount value value
2008 2007 2008 2007
Bank £m cm Em £m
Financial assets
Leans and advances to banks 34,144 25,458 34,179 25834
Loans and advances to customears 570,255 453,590 559,933 455,319
lnvestment securities 83,164 7 81,057 7
Other financial assets 649 2,235 649 2235
Financial liahilities
Deposits by banks 97,0t 47,321 87,126 47338
Customer accounts 458,967 316,849 459,717 317,903
Debt securities in issue 143,456 148,188 139,388 148,306
Other borrowad funds 18,082 14,855 17,514 15,469
Other financial labilites 133 103 133 103

The valuation methodotogies for calculating the fair value of financial instruments carried as 10ans and receivables and at amortised

cost are set out below,
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34 Fair Value of Financial Instruments continued

Fair value Is the amount for which the Group could exchange an asset, of could settle a liability, with other knowiedgesable, willing
parties in an arm’s iength transaction. The objective of the valuation techniques applied Is to datermine what the values would have
baen at year end in an arm’s length transaction motivated by normal business considerations.

Loans and advances to banks, loans and advances to customers, deposits by banks and customer accounts are not regularly
traded and so market prices are not available. In this instance, valuation technigues are applied to determine the fair value of these
instruments.

For loans and daposits with variable interest rates, the fair value is represented by the carrying value as these products are at an
administered rate that can be immediately repriced. The portfolios are stratified into various sub-groups, and also distinguish between
performing loans and non-performing loans. For performing loans. counterparty credit risk is taken into account in determining the
fair value with reference to current spreads at which similar products are currently pricad, as appropriate. For non-performing loans,
fair value is determinad taking into account expected cash flows and discounting them over the period when they are expected 10 be
recovered. .

For other loans fair value is estimated by discounting anticipated contractual cash flows at current market interest rates. The portiolios
are stratified into various sub-groups, and also distinguish between parforming loans and non-parforming loans. For performing
toans, current market interest rates are derived by reference to the rates at which sirnilar products are currently priced and after
taking into account significant changes in credit spreads. Credit spreads are determined with reference to new originations for similar
products, ang take into account the typs of product, the maturity profile of the portfolio and collateral heid. For non-performing loans,
fair value is determined taking into account expected cash flows and discounting it over the pariod when thay are expected to be
recovered,

For other customer depasits, fair valug is estimated by discounting anticipated contractual cash flows at current market interest rates,

For investrnent securities hekl as loans and receivables and debt securities in issue and other borrowed funds carried at amortised
cost, the fair values have been dearived using quoted prices where available, broker valuations and where thase are not available,
cash flow models, adjusted for credit spreads where appropriate. Cash flow models take into account expected cash flows and the
axpected maturity of the instrument.

The fair values have been calculated on a product basis and as such do not necessarily represent the value that could have been
obtained for a portfolio if it were sold at 31 December 2008,
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35 Expected Maturity

The tables below set out the expected maturity of financial assets and liabilities,

2008 2007

Less than 12 months Lass than 12 manths

12 months or more Totat 12 months or mare Total
Group £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets
Cash and halances at central banks 2,502 2,502 2,944 2,944
Financial assets hald for trading 18,324 4,247 22,571 36,921 17.760 54,681
Loans and advances (o banks 11,169 1,276 12,445 3,313 782 4,095
Loans and advances to customers 144,016 328,999 473,015 167,587 292,670 460,267
Investment securities 18,077 49,695 67,772 6,154 45,483 51,615
Derivative assets 9,332 41,185 50,517 3,492 10.302 13,794
Financial liabilities
Deposits by banks 94,861 2,205 97,066 40,192 1,321 41513
Customer accounts 251,102 11,099 262,201 252,870 19,817 272,687
Financial liabilities held for trading 18,851 18,851 22,503 202 22,705
Derivative liabilities 9,319 31,508 40,827 3404 8,756 12,160
Investment contract fiabilities a8 98
Debt securities in issus 91,107 97,341 188,448 116,918 89,602 208,520
Other borrowed funds 2,317 16,462 18,779 1,909 15,972 17,881

2008 2007

Less than 12 months Less than 12 months

12 months or more Total 12 months or more Totat
Bank £m £m €m em Lm £m
Financial assets
Derivativa assets 8,790 37,584 46,374 3,486 8,648 12,184
Investment securities 15,129 92,723 107,852 2,675 24,345 27020
Financial liabilities
Derivative liabtities 8,984 30,664 39,648 3,061 TA55 10,546
Otnher porrowed funds 1,304 16,7178 18,082 o9 13,936 14,855
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The Group's approach to managing credit risk is set out on pages 14 10 20 of the Risk Management report. The table below sets out
the Group's and Bank's exposure to credit risk relating to financial instruments before taking account of collateral and other security.

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m

Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 2,502 2944 1,820 1,667
ltems in the course of collection 445 945 449 800
Financial assets held for trading 22,571 54,681 22,571 52,1689
Derivative assets 50,517 13.794 46,374 12,134
Loans and advances to banks 12,445 4,005 34,144 25,458
Loans and advances to customers 473,015 460,267 570,255 453,550
Debt securities 65,219 48,094 106,786 25,870
Other firancial assets (excluding equity shares) 362 557 649 2,235
' 627,076 585377 783,048 574,113
Contingent liabilities and commitments 88,355 106,218 88,386 108,251
Total 715,431 691,695 871,434 682,364

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are managed on a divisional

customers is given in Note 15.

basis as shown In Note 9. Further analysis of loans and advances o

Included in loans neithar past due nor impaired are the following troubled debt restructured loans which would have been past dug

or impaired had their terms not been renegotiated.

Group Bank

2008 2007 200 2007

£m £m £m £m

Renegotiated loans 478 229 424 210

Retail - residential mortgage lending

Loan to value analysis of residential mortgage fending

Group Barik

2008 2007 2008 2007

% % % %

L ess than 80% 28 47 29 47

80% to 70% 10 18 1" 19

70% to 80% 13 18 13 18

80% to 90% 18 13 16 13

90% to 100% 16 4 15 3

Greater than 100% 17 16 .

Total 100 100 100 100

The average loan to value of residential mortgage stock held by the Group was 56%
the Group was 67% (2007 65%). For impaired mortgages in the Group, the average loan to val

residentiai mortgages includes past due loans,

{2007 44%) and for new residential lending in

Iue was 76% (2007 579%). The stock of
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36 Credit Risk continued

Corporate, International and Treasury

The Group’s Corporate, International and Treasury neither past due nor impaired lending exposures are analysed by internal credit

rating below:
Group Bank
\ 2008 2007 2008 2007
Internat rating % % % %
Better than satisfactory risk 45 46 74 85
Satistactory risk 40 42 19 26
Viabie put monitaring 12 10 6 8
High risk 3 2 1 1
100 100 100 100

Past due but not impaired

The ageing of the Group's and Bank’s lending exposure that is past due but not impaired {before impairment provisions} is analysed

below:
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m £m £m £m
0to 3 months 15,273 11,407 12,257 9.542
3 to 6 months 922 1582 420 9
More than 6 months 206 70 1 31
Total 16,401 11,629 12,678 9,582
Impaired loans
The Group's and Bank's impaired gross lending exposure (before impairment provisions) is analysed below:
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m em £m £m
Retail secured lending 6,914 4,234 6,010 3,773
Retail unsecured lending 2,209 2,269 2,210 2,269
Corporate - no loss . 1,242 1,648 1,242 1,648
Corporate - with loss 12,606 1,570 13,566 1,480
International 3,060 641 395 71
26,031 10,362 23,423 8,241

Loans categorised as impaired with no Joss represent loans that have been individually assessed as having impairment
charzcteristics but where the Group expect, after taking into consideration collateral and other credit enhancerents, full recovery of

both interest and capital.

The ageing of the Group's gross lending exposure that is impaired (before impairment provisions) is analysed below:

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

&m £m £m £m

Q1o 3 months 9,973 1,428 9,747 1,194
3 to 6 months 5,862 3,002 4,957 2,628
6 to 12 months 4,760 2138 4,031 1.885
Qver 12 months 2,878 1,599 2,423 1,424
Recoveries 1,784 1,795 1,785 1,795
Possession 774 399 480 315
Total 26,031 10,362 23,423 9,241

Impainment provisions as a % of closing net advances were 2.26% (2007 0.73%) for the Group and 1.84% (2007 0.66%) for the

Bank,

Impaired loans as a % of ¢lesing net advances wers 5.50% (2007 2.25%) for the Group and 4.11% (2007 2.04%) for the Bank.

Impairment provisions as a % of impaired loans was 41% (2007 33%) for the Group and 45% (2007 32%j) for the Bank.
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36 Credit Risk continued

Collateral and other credit enhancements held
Financial assets that are past due or individually assessed as impaired may be partially or fully collateralised or subject to other forms

of credit enhancement.
Assetis in these categories subject 10 collateralisation are rainly corporate and residential mortgage ioans.

For corporate loans, security may be in the form of floating charges where the value of the collateral varies with the laval of assets
such as inventory and receivebles heid by customer. For thesa and other reasons collateral given is only accurately valued on
origination of the loan or in the course of enforcement actions and as a result it is not practicable to estimate the fair value of the
collateral held. '

A description and the estimated fair value of collateral held in respect of residential morigage loans that are past due or individually
assessed as impaired was as follows:

2008 2007
Falr value Fair value
£m em

Nature of assets
- Residential property 13,634 10,660
13,534 10,660

Collateral included in the above table reflects the Group's interest in the property in the event of default. That hetd in the form of
charges against resicential property in the UK is restricied to the outstanding loan balance. tn other territories, where the Group is not
obliged to return any sale procesds to the mortgagee, ths full estimated fair value has been included.

Repossessed collateral
During 2008 the Group obtained assets as a result of the enforcement of collateral held as security as foliows:

2008 2007
Carrying Carrying
amount amaunt
£m em

Nature of assets
- Residential property 817 292
617 202

The Group does not use assets obtained in its operations. Assets obtainad ars normally sold, generally at auction, or realised in an
orderly manner to settle indebtedness. Any surplus funds are returned to the borrower or are otherwise dealt with in accordance with
appropriate insolvency regulations.

Credit ratings
The internal cradit ratings of the Group are assessed an a comparable basis to thoss given by external crecit rating agencies. Where

external credit ratings are avaiiable, these have been used in the analysis below.

Group )
AAA AA A BBB Other rated Unrated Total
As at 31 December 2008 % Y % % % % %
Financial assets held for trading 67.4 19.3 124 0.5 0.7 100.0
Derivative assets 4.1 346 44.2 0.8 16.3 100.0
Loans and advances to banks Nno 35.8 202 9.3 04 3.6 100.0
Debt securities 52.3 22.9 17.0 34 31 1.3 1000
Group
ABA Al A BB Othar rated Unrated Total
As at 31 December 2007 % % % % % % Y%
Financia! assets held for trading 515 4.2 13.7 04 0.3 0.2 100.0
Derivative assets 4.3 621 183 c5 6.8 100.0
Loans and advancas to banks 17.3 45.2 106 24.4 .3 2.2 10C.0

Debt securities 60.4 238 12.5 0.2 01 32 100.0
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36 Credit Risk continued |

Bank AAA AR A BBEB Other rated Unrated Total
As at 31 December 2008 % % % % % Y% %
Financial assets held for trading 67.4 19.3 124 0.5 0.7 100.0
Derivative assets 51 32.5 44.3 0.9 17.2 100.0
l.oans and advances to banks 1.0 72.7 6.9 3.3 6.1 100.0
Debt securities 50.2 24.5 204 1.8 3.0 0.4 100.0
Bank .

AAA AA A BBR QOther rated Unrated Totai
As at 31 December 2007 % % % % % % %
Financial assets held for trading 53.4 324 13.9 0.3 10G.0
Derivative assets 5.0 63.8 189 0.6 1.7 100.0
Loans and advances to banks 25 8.2 16.7 39 a1 70.6 100.0
Debt securities 49.4 28.8 20.5 0.4 03 08 100.0

Financial assets held for trading
Financia! assets held for trading are almost exclusively invested in investment grade investments. An analysis of financial assets
held for trading is given in Note 13.

Derivative assets
Derivative assets are primarily traded with investrent grade courterparties. An analysis of derivative assets is given in Note 14,
The above analysis excludes certain intercompany derivative balances which represent 8% of the Bank's derivative assets.

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to banks are primarily invested with investment grade banks.

Debt securities I
Debt securities are primarily held within the Treasury & Asset Management and Corporate divisions and are almost exclusivaly issued
by investment grade counterparties. Excluded from the above analysis of debt securities held by the Bank are certain securitisation
loan notes issuad by Special Purpose Entities which are held by the Bank. Had these been included at the Group’s credit rating of
‘AA then 90% of the debt securities would be rated 'AA’ or above.

Amounts owed by Group entities
The Bank's inter-company assets are primarily transacted with companies in the Group that have credit rates of ‘AA",

Contingent liabilities and commitments

Contingent liabilities and commitments are analysed in Note 31. This amount reflects the outstanding business at the year end and
reflects the maximum credit exposure that couid he drawn down. Some facilities will not be drawn down or may be only partially
utilised.
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36 Credit Risk continued

Treasury debt securities - credit exposure

As part of its investment credit activities Treasury holds a portiotio of debt securities which are analysec below. The investment
credit business has two functions: firstly it manages part of the Group's prudential liquidity portfolio and secondly it takes investment
positions principally thraugh the Grampian conduit.

Following the International Accounting Standards Board's (IASB) decision to permit the reclassification of financial assets, Treasury
reclassified certain securities from assets held for trading into available for sale (AFS) portfolio and, subsequently, in light of increasing
iliquidity in the markets for asset backed securities {ABS), changed the classfiication of ABS from AFS, to loans and receivakles (Nate

MBIAIBAD
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Treasury’s total debt securities portiolic as at 31 December 2008, net of fair value adjustments and impairment provisions, is @
summarised in the following table: %
2008 e
Fair value o)
through £
Loans & Avatlable intome
receivables for sale statement Total
Asset class Em £m £m £m
Asset Backed Securities:
Diract 20,443 3,064 23,497
Grampian conduit 16,730 16,730
37173 3,054 40,227
Covered bonds 4,062 4,062
Bank/financial institutional Floating Rate Notes (FRNs) 15,985 1,901 17,886
Bank certificates of deposit (CDs) . 2,960 3,068 6,028
Qthert" 1,787 6,045 7,832
Total Treasury Assets 37173 24,794 14,068 . 76,035 S,
Landale 695 695
Totat (net of fair value adjustments and impairment provisions) 37173 25,489 14,068 76,730 g)
&
2007 3
Fair value %
through o
Loans & Available income ©
raceivablas for sale staternent Total
Assst class £m £m £m £m
Asset Backed Securities:
Direct 9,612 13,729 23,341
Grampian conduit 18,583 18,563
28175 13,729 41,904
Covered bonds 3,070 3,070
Bank/Ainancial institutional Fioating Rate Notes (FRNs) 11,3886 5,997 17,393
Bank certificates of deposit (CDs) 1,774 13,618 15,392
Qther 1,877 982 2,859
Total Treasury Assels 46,292 34,326 80,618
Landale B11 811
Total (net of net of fair value adjustments and impairment provisiens) 46,903 34,328 81,229

(1) Principally Governments and Supra-nationals.
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36 Credit Risk continued

Fair value adjustments and impairment losses

Far the year to 31 December 2008, the impact of fair value adjustments and impairments on the Treasury debt securities portfolio

{after raclassification) is as follows:

Income Income AFS AFS
Statement Statement Reserve Reserve
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
2008 2007 2008 2007
Asset class £m £m £m £m
Fair value adjustments
Asset Backed Securities 2,781 167 4,959 443
FRNs 343 102 1,309 169
Other {597) (42} 359 95
Total fair value adjustments 2,527 227m 6,627 707
Impairment losses
Asset Backed Securities 773
FRNs 618
Other 30
Total impairment losses pre tax 1,421
Total fair value adjustments and impairment losses pre tax 3,948 227 6,827 707
Tax on Banking Book fair value adjustments {1,856} {198)
Total fair value adjustments taken to AFS reserve 4,771 508
1} Incladed in Net Trading Income (Note 2) as part of interest bearing securities and related non hedging derivatives.
Exposure to Asset Backed Securities (ABS)
Net Book Net Book
Exposure value Exposure valug
2008 2008 2007 2007
£ % £m %
Mortgage Backed Securities
Us RMBS® 6,922 64 9,307 a8
Non-UiS RMBS 7,867 93 7920 99
cMBs™ 3,314 95 3,340 99
18,103 79 20,567 99
Coliaterised Debt Obligations
caom 2,129 49 3,320 98
cLom 3,455 91 3,214 99
5,584 68 5,534 99
Personal Sector
Auto loans 1,620 98 1.526 100
Credit cards 3,494 96 2772 99
Personal loans 1,096 95 980 98
6,210 96 5278 jeie]
FFELP Student Loans™ 6,992 04 5,586 98
Qther ABS 637 89 672 99
Total Uncovered ABS 37,526 82 38.637 99
Negative Basis'® 2,701 0 3,287 99
Total ABSEH 40,227 81 41,804 99

(1} RMBS means Residential Morigage backed Securities; CMBS means Commercial Mortgage Backed Securities; CBO means Collaterised Bond Cbligations; CLO

means Gollaterised Loan Obligations; FFELP means Federal Family Education Lean Programme.
(2) Negative basis means bonds hek! with separate matching credit default swap (CDS) protection,
(31 The total comprises US securities of £24,304m (2007 £16,333m), and Non-US securities of £15,823m (2007 £25,571).

{4) There has been no increase in net exposure as a result of the purchasa of ABS during the year. Any increase in net exposure is the result of exchange rate

movemsni in excess of paydowns, NFVAs and impairments.
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a7 Market Risk

The HBOS Group's approach to managing market risk is set out on pages 20 to 23 of the Risk Management report. The tables below
set ot the HBOS Group's sensitivity to market risk through exposure to the trading book and non-trading financial instruments.

Ths table below sets out by major currency the sensitivity (before tax) of the Group's and Bank's Net Interast Income (NIl over one
year to an immediate 25 basis points {bps) shift to ali interast rates as at the balance shaet date. The table excludes the sensitivity to
insurance contracts and investment contracts which are not material.

RETICYg)

|

Ag at 31 December Group
2008 2007 m
_ +25bps -26bps +250ps -26bos 5
“Impact of inlerast rate shift on income statement {expens)/income £m £m £m m 5
Currency 8
Sterling §2.4 {119.8) {21.2) 216 :"6
US Detlar {2.9) 27 (0.6} 05 2
Euro {8.0) 8. {4.3) 43 ®
Australian Dollar (1.5} 1.5 01 o z
Other (0.3) 0.3 0.1 {0.1)
Total 69.7 {107.0) (25.9) 26,2
Base case projected Nil is calculated on the basis of the HBOS Group's current balance sheet, with forward rate paths implied by
current market rates, and coritractual (or behaviourally adjusted) re-pricing dates. It also Incorporatas corporate planning assumptions
ahout future balance sheet volumes. The sensitivities show how this projected NIl weuld change in response to an immediate parallel
shift to all relevant interest rates - market and administered.
The principal driver of the risk is re-pricing mismatch but the methodology also recognises that behavioural re-pricing assumpticns,
for example prepayment rates, are themseives a function of the fevel of interest rates.
The measure. however, is simplified in that it assumes all interest rates, for all currancies and maturities, move at the same time and
by the same amount. Also, it does not recognise the impact of management actions that, in the event of an adverse movement, could 10
reduce the impact on NI, ?D
@
In addition 1o the net interest sensitivity, the Group's net equity is alsc axposed to movements in the fair vaiue of available for sale §
investment securities and cash flow hedging derivatives. a
Non-trading currency exposure
HBOS Group structural currency exposures are shown in the Risk Management report. Structural currency exposures arise from the
Group's investments in overseas subsidiaries, branches and other investments and are noted in the table below. :
2008 2007
Net Borrowing Remaining Net Borrowing Rernaining
investments  taken outio structural investrments 1aken out to structural
in overseas hedge net currency in overseas hedge nel currency
operations  investments exposure operations investments exposure
Funclional currency of the operation £m £m £m £m £m £m
Australian Dollar 2,015 2,015 2,023 181 212
Euro 2,201 2,201 1,352 1,200 53
US Dollar 101 181 10 a7 97
Other (23) (23) 4 4
Total 4,384 4,397 {13} 3,476 3,207 269
101
At 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 there are no material net currency exposures in the non-trading book relating to g.):?
transactional {or non-structural) positions that woudd give rise to net currency gairs or losses. Additional information on the HBOS o}
Group's foreign exchange risk is set out on pages 21 to 22 of the Risk Management report. 5_
o

The table below sets out the sensitivity befora tax of the HBOS Group's available for sale and cash flow hedge reserves 10 &n
immediate 25 bps shift to all interest rates as at the balance sheet date.

As &t 31 Decarmber Group
2008 2007

+25bps -26bps +2Bbps -250p5

impact of interast rate shift £m £m £m £m
Available for sale {14.5) 14.5 {15.7) 15.7
Cash flow hedge reserve 84.9 (84.9) 1161 (ng.y

Total 70.4 (70.4) 100.4 (1004}




102 Bank of Scotland plc Annual Report and Accounts 2008

Notes to the Financial Statements
‘continued

38 Liquidity Risk
The HBOS Group's approach to managing liquidity risk is set out on pages 23 to 26 of the Risk Managemant report.

The tabies below set out the contractual cash flows attaching to the Group's financiat liabilities. Certain long dated financial liabilities
allow for the early termination at the option of the Group. Where the tenns of these instruments have been designed to economically
compel the Group to early settls, the earlier settlsment date has been applied. For undated instruments the earlier of 20 years or
expected date of maturity has been applied.

Group 2008
Upto1 103 3to12 1to5 Over 5
maonth months months years years

Liabilities £m om m m £m

Deposits by banks 49,711 41,710 3,880 1,428 492

Customer accounts 160,985 16,669 42,758 25,795 30,133

Financial tiabilities held for trading 10,994 4,640 3,518

Derivative liabilities:

Gross settled derivatives - outflows 35,701 31,615 19,016 42,827 35,077

Gross settled derivatives - inflows (36,761) (32,588} (19,028) (42,323) {33,121}

Gross settled derivatives - net flows {1,060) (973) {12) 504 1,956

Net settled derivative liabilities 1,044 1,088 8,557 15,198 7,576

Derivative liabilities {19) 112 8,545 15,702 9,532

Debt securities in issue 21,684 25,443 40,453 83,513 26,732

Other borrowed funds 28 861 1,150 5,936 20,636

Other financial liabilities 365

tindrawn loan commitments 44,961 3,041 7,031 23,263 7,071

288,709 92,476 107,335 155,637 94,596

Group 2007
Upto! 1103 3to 12 1105 Over 5
morth months months Years years

Lizbities £m £m em £m £m

Deposits by banks 23,663 12413 4,369 629 673

Customer accounts 194,728 19,975 26,871 21,090 25,923

Financiai liabilities held for trading 10,610 5,556 6,540 242

Derivative lizbilities:

Gross settled derivatives - outflows 20,581 21,997 15,723 39,253 15,802

Gross gettled derivatives - inflows (20,562) {22,105} {15,471) (38,558) (15,104)

Gross settled derivatives - net flows 19 {108} 252 695 698

Net settled darivative liabilities 286 516 1,355 4,144 2,024

Derivative liabiities 305 408 1,807 4,839 2722

Investment contract liabilities g8

Debt securities in issue 26,990 48,086 42,800 75,603 36,843

Other borrowed funds 49 282 1619 5,463 21,511

Other financial liabllities 286

Undrawn lean commiimenis 48,080 2670 5,761 22,006 6,995

304,591 89,390 89,607 130,962 94,765
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Bank 2008
Uptot 1t 3 3to12 1105 Over 5
month maonths months years years

Liabilities £m £m £m £m Em

Deposits by banks 51,118 40,900 5,620 8,779 579

Customer accounts 224,968 17,332 49,616 135,900 49,992

Financial liabilities held for trading 10,994 4,640 3,518

Derivative liahilities:

Gross settled derivatives - outfiows 37,667 33,718 18,561 39,760 34,320 -

Gross settled derivatives - inflows {38,784} (34,704) (18,578} {39,254) {32,721)

Gross settled derivatives - net flows {1,117} {986} i 506 1,599

Net settled derivative Habitities 144 1,087 8,571 15,183 7,161

Derivative liabilities {240) 101 8,554 15,689 8,760

Debt securities in issue 15,443 24,994 38,335 48,826 25,573

Other horrowed funds 28 861 1,121 5,138 20,636

Other financial liabilities 638

Undrawn ioan commitments 44,561 3,041 7,031 23,263 7,071

347,910 91,869 113,795 237,595 112,611

Bank 2007
Upio ! 1103 3to12 1105 Qver s

month months montns years years

Liabikties £m £m £m £m em

Deposits by banks 26,812 14,914 5,283 2,260 759

Customer accounts 185,148 16,032 30,282 83,681 68,744

Financial fianilities held for trading 10,139 5,478 8,525 242

Derivative fiabilties:

Gross settied derivatives - outflows 19,897 22,966 13,464 18,063 7.388

Gross settled derivatives - inflows (19.923) (23,189) {13,456} (18,095) (7,513)

Gross settled derivatives - net flows {28) (223) 8 {32) (117

Net settled derivative liabiities 194 3n 1,37C 4178 2,407

Derlvative liabiiities 168 148 1,378 4146 2,290

Debt securities in issue 21,536 40,627 35902 37,951 27,798

Cther borrowed funds 28 254 1,489 5,738 17,823

Other financial liabilities 103

Undrawn loan commitments 43,812 2545 5491 20977 6,668

287,546 79,998 86,350 154,095 124,082
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

39 Related Party Transactions

Banking fransactions are entered into by the Bank with its subsidiaries in the normal course of businass and are at normal
cammercial terms, These include loans. deposits and foreign currency transactions. The ultimate parent of the group during 2008
was HBOS plc. The group also enters inte banking transactions with it and its subsidiaries in the normal course of business. Interest
income and interest expense are £2.101m (2007 £1,554m} and £2,873m (2007 £1,504m) respectively. HBOS plc is the principal
employer of the group and staff and other costs in the year of £2,251m (2007 £2,190m} were recharged to the group.

In the year ended 31 December 2008, the group provided both administration and processing services to Sainsbury's Bank ple. The
amount payabie to the Group during the year was £26m (2007 £42m), of which £10m is outstanding at the year end (2007 £18m).
At 31 December 2008, Sainsbury's Bank plc also has balances with the Group and Bank that are included in loans and advances

to banks of £908m (2007 £726m). Balances with the Greup and Bank that are included in deposits by banks are £1,274m (2007
£3,430m) and £1,274m (2007 £3,430m) respeactively.

Included within balances of the group and Bank are the following amounts relating to jointly controfled entities and associated
undertakings:

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Leans and advances to customers 14,180 11,373 14,153 11,186
Customer accounts 213 521 213 521

Included within balances of the group and Bank are the following amournts relating to fellow subsidiary undertakings:

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m £m £m £m

Loans and advances to customers 36,341 30,258 37,106 29,760

Customer accounts 37,354 29,578 38,513 29,554
Included within balances of the Bank are the following amcunts relating o its own subsidiaries:

2008 2007

fm £m

Loans and advances t¢ banks 22,826 21,798

l.oans and advances to customers 141,859 60,434

Deposits by panks 7,676 10,315

Customer accounts 76,407 8,022
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40 Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel comprise members of the Bank of Scotland 8oard, the Company Secretary and, as the senior executive
committee of the Group, the HBOS Executive Commities.

Product transactions

Key management personnel and other colleagues, as well as receiving salary, incentives, shares, pensions and other benefits are
antitled to enter into product transactians with HBOS plc and its subsidiaries. These transactions are generally in the form of banking,
savings, mortgage, loan, insurance, assurance and investmant products. Any product offerings that are recefved on beneficial terms
compared to the terms received by customers and which give rise 1o taxable benefits in kind are declared to HM Revenue & Customs
and taxed accordingly.

Kay managament personnel and connected persons have undertaken ransactions with HBOS plc and its subsidiaries, jointly
controfled entities and associated undertakings in the normal course of business, details of which have been disclosed to the Group
are given below: :

Mortgages, credit cards and term loans

Number

of key

managemett
personnet £000
At 1 January 2007 5 2160
Amounts advanced during the year B 2,892
Interest charged 8 27
Amounts repaid during the year 1 (2,038)
Upon resignation 3 {1,460)
At 31 December 2007 7 1,827
Amounts advanced during the year 8 453
Interest charged ] 110
Amounts repaid during the year 8 {567)
At 31 December 2008 8 1,823

Included above is £1,675k {2007 £1,582k) in respect of mortgages, £18k (2007 £15k) in respect of cradit cards and £130k (2007
£130K) in respect of terms loans. '

Bank, cheque or current accounts

Number Credit Debit Net
of key balances balances balances
managiamem

personnel £000 £'000 E£'000

At 1 January 2007 9 7,345 {1,017] 6,328
Net movement during the year 15 (575) 419 {294)
Upon resignation 3 (128} 1,238 1,107
At 31 December 2007 12 6,641 (200} 8,44
Net movement during the year 12 (2,892) 189 {2,703)
At 31 December 2008 1 3,749 {11} 3,738
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

40 Transactions with Key Management Personnel continued

Savings and deposit accounts

Number
of key
management
parsonnel £'000
At 1 January 2007 2 471
Upon appointment 2 1,550
Amounts deposited during the year 9 5952
Interest credited 7 114
Amounits withdrawn during the year 7 12,393}
Upgn resignation 1 (32)
At 31 December 2007 10 5,662
Amounts deposited during the year 8 4,595
Interest credited ] n
Amounts withdrawn during the year 9 (7,721}
At 31 December 2008 7 2,847
Life assurance and investment contracts
Number
of kay
management
parsonnel £'000
At 1 January 2007 1 3,684
Upon appointmant 1 622
Premiums paid/amounts invested during the year 4 1,705
Other movements including investment returns 4 {1.978)
Total sum insured/value of investment at 31 December 2007 5 4,033
Premiums paid/amounts invested during the year 2 408
Other movements including investment returns 5 (3,658}
4 786

Total sum insured/value of investment at 31 December 2008

The number of directors, together with their connected persons, who had transactions and balances with banking activities in the

Group were as follows:

Number of 2008 Number of 2007

directots £°000 directors £'000

L.oans 3 1,070 6 1,440
Quasi-ivans and credit cards 4 12 © 14
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41 Cash and Cash Equivalents .
2008 2007

Restated

Graup £m £m
Cash and balances at central banks . 2,502 2,944
Less: mandatory raserve deposits ' {296) (373)

- 2,206 2,57

Loans and advancas to banks 12,445 4,095
Less: amounts with a maturity of three moriths or more (6,665} {3,755}
' 5,780 340

Cash and cash equivalents . 7,986 2,914

Mandatory reserve deposits are held with local central banks in accordance with statutory requiraments; these deposits are not
availabie to finance the Group's day to day operations.

ihcluded in total cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2008 is £864m (2007 £658m) of cash hald at the central bank as
collateral against notes In circulation of £957m {2007 £881m).

Mandatory reserve deposits of £373m at 31 December 2007 have baen reclassified from loans and advances to banks to cash and
balances at central banks. In addition, total cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2007 have been restated to include certain
cash deposits held with the central Bank of reland of £853m (1 January 2007 £635m) and cash heid at the central bank as collateral
against notes In circutation of £881m (1 January 2007 £857m) which are available to finance the Group's day to day opetations. The
cashflow statemenis have been adjusted accordingly.

2008 2007

Bank £m £m
Cash and balances at central banks ' 1,820 1,887
Less: mandatory reserve deposits (296) (373)
1,524 1,294

Loans and advances 1o banks 34,144 25458
Less; amounts with a maturity of three months or more : 116,315) (25,030}
17,829 428

Cash and cash equivalents ' 19,353 1722
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

42 Securities Borrowing and Lending, Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The Group entars into securities lending transactions and repurchase agreements, whereby cash and securities are temporarily
recelved or transferred as collateral. Where the securities sold subject to repurchase or pledged as collateral are retained on the
balance sheet the funds received under these arrangements are recognised as fiabilities. These transactions are all in respect

of standard securities borrowing and reverse repurchase agreements which are undertaken under standard market terms and
conditions, or are in respect of securities exchange transactions under the Bank of England's Special Liquidity Scheme. Assets and
liabilities relating to such arangements at 31 December are as follows:

Related

Asset liability

2008 2007 2008 2007

Group £m £Em £&m £m

Agsets subject to repurchase

Financial assets held for trading (Note 13} 4,369 4,711 3,425 4,523
Loans and advarnces to cusiomers (Note 15) 56,858 39,220

Investment securities {Note 17) 37,263 8,996 31,682 7.841

98,490 13,7G7 74,327 12,364

In addition to the above, financial assets pledged as collateral as part of securitias lending transactions amounted to £89,109m (2007
£11,918m).

Securities held as collateral as stock borrowed or under reverse repurchase agreemeants amounted to £76,018m {2007 £39,875m), of
which £64,378m (2007 £28,817m) had been resold or repledyed by the Group as colisteral for its own transactions. These securities
are nat recognisad as assets, and the cash advanced is recognised within financial assets held for trading, loans and advances to
banks and loans and advances 1o customers.

Helated

Asset liabitity

2008 2007 2008 2007

Bank £in ] £m om

Assets subject to repurchase

Financial assets held for trading {MNote 13) 4,369 4,711 3,425 4523
Loans and advances to customers (Note 15) 24,939 17,333

Investment securities {Note 17} 62,559 8,365 48,484 8,202

91,867 14,076 69,242 12,725

in additicn to the above, financial assets pledged as collateral as part of securities lending transactions amounted to £88,742m (2007
£11,918m).

Securities held as collateral as stock borrowed or under reverse repurchase agreements amounted to £90,699m (2007 £32,976m),
of which £67,022m (£28,817rm) had been rasold or repledged by the Group as collateral for its own transactions. These securities are
not recognised ag assets, and the cash advanced is recognised within financial assets held for trading, loans and advances to banks
and oans ang advancas o cuslomers.
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The Group's approach to managing capltal is set out on pages 27 to 28 of the Risk Management report. The Group's capital -

resources are set out in the table below.

As at As at
31.12.08 010108
£m £m
Capital resources
Tier 1
Crdinary share capital 1,324 499
Eliginie reserves 16,019 21,380
Minority interests 318 285
Perpetual non-cumulative preference shares
Preference share capitai 1,200 1,200
thnovative Tier 1
Praferred securities 698 608
Deductions from Tier 1
Goodwill & other intangible assets {1,211) (1,611}
Excess expacted loas {536) (875)
Other deductions {484) (84}
Total Tier 1 capital 17,328 21,492
Upper Tier 2
Available for sale reserve 186
Undated subordinated debt 5,551 3,383
Collectively assessed impairment provisions 1,454 463
Lower Tier 2
Dated subordinated debt 9,094 0,685
Deductions from Tier 2
Excess expacted logs ¥ {538} (B75)
QOther deductions {325) (84)
Total Tier 2 capital 15,238 12,768
Supervisory deductions:
QOther deductions {919} (734}
Total capitai resources 31,647 33,526
(1) Unaudited
The table below detaiis moverments in Tier 1 capital during the year.
2008
£m
As at 1 January 21,492
Loss attributable to parent company shareholders {8,238}
Ordinary dividends paid {1,205)
Qrdinary share capital issued 5,500
Other (221}
As at 31 December 17,328
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Notes to the Financial Statements
continued

44 Post Balance Sheet Events

a) Lloyds Banking Group

On 18 September 2008, with the support of the UK Government, the boards of HBOS plc (HBOS) and Lioyds TSB Group ple {Uoyds
TSB) announced that they had reached agreement on the terms of the recommended acquisition of HBOS by Lioyds TS8. The terms
of the acquisition were subsequently amended, as announced on 13 October 2008, at the same time as the announcement of the
participation by HBOS and Lloyds TSB in the Government's action plan to recapitalise some of the mejor UK banks. The acquisition
was to ba implemented by means of a scheme of arrangement, with a separate scheme of arrangement in relation to preference
shares, under sections 895 to 899 of the Companies Act 2006.

0On 12 January 2008 the Court of Session in Edinburgh, Scotland made an order sanctioning the scheme of arrangement for the
acquisition and the preference share scheme of arrangement. The last day of trading in HBOS ordinary and preference shares was
14 January 2008,

0On 15 January 2008 HBOS raised £11.5bn of capital (before costs and expenses) through an issue of £8.5bn of new ordinary
shares under a placing with HM Treasury subject to clawback by existing shareholders, and an issua to HM Treasury of £3bn of new
preference shares, Lioyds TSB raised £4.5bn {before costs and expenses) through an issue of £3.5bn of new ordinary shares under
& placing with HM Treasury subject to clawhack by existing shareholders, and an issue to HM Treasury of £1bn of new preference
shares.

On 16 January 2009 the Lloyds TSB acquisition of HBOS complated following final court approval and Lloyds TSB was renamed
Lioyds Banking Group plc. The exchange of HBOS shares for Lioyds Banking Group shares tock place at an exchange ratio of 0.605
of a new Lloyds Banking Group share for every one HBOS share held. As a result, the UK Government through HM Treasury owned
approximately 43,4% of the enlarged ordinary share capital of Lloyds Banking Group. In addition, each class of preference share
issued by HBOS, including the preference shares issuad to HM Treasury in the capital raising was reptaced with an equal number of
new Lloyds Banking Group preference shares.

HBOS ordinary and preference shares were de-listed from the Official List of UK Listing Authority and admission to trading on the
London Stock Exchange was cancelled on 18 January 2008 when trading in the new Lloyds Banking Group shares commeanced.

b} Other

On 26 February 2008, the Board of Bank of Scotland plc (BoS) approved an ordinary share capital issuance of £8.351bn to HBOS.
This passes the ordinary share capital provided by HM Treasury to HBQOS on 15 January 2009 down to BoS. In addition, this fulfils
HBOS requirements under the terms of the HM Treasury subscription agreement.

inorger to facilitate this capital injection, the authorised ordinary share capital of BoS was increased by 16,000 million ordinary shares
of £0.25 each and 13,918,333,333 were issued to HBOS for a total of £8.351bn.

45 Ultimate Parent Undertaking

From 16 January 2009, Bank of Scotland plc's ultimate parent undertaking and controfling party is Lioyds Banking Group ple
(formerly Lloyds TSB Group plc} which is incorporated in Scotland, Lioyds Banking Group ple will produce consolidated accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2009. Copies of the annual report and accounts of Lloyds TSB Group pic for the year enged 31
December 2008 may be obtained from Lloyds Banking Group's head office at 25 Grasham Street, London EC2V 7HN,

Prior to 16 January 2009, HBOS plc was the ultimate parent undertaking of Bank of Scotland plc. Copies of the annual report and
accounts of HBOS ple for the year ended 31 December 2008 may be abtained from HBOS plc's registered offica at The Mound,
Edinburgh, EH1 1YZ or downloaded via www lloydsbankinggroup.com,



